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Pliant -~ Responsible Leadership

Pliant is a dynamic, full-service film and flexible packaging
products provider for medical, personal care, food, industrial
and agricultural markets.

At Pliant, we maintain the highest standard of customer service
with on-time delivery, technical support and competitive pricing.
We add to this a best practices attitude towards cost
leadership, value and sustainability initiatives.

We are committed to excellent workmanship, continual
technological advancement, superior service and a commitment
to leadership to help our customers improve their businesses —
and further ours.

That’s what we call Pliant
responsible leadership.

A company-wide focus on improving delivered quality, lowering costs
and improving efficiency has boosted productivity across the board.

We have more than 3,000 employees
committed to delivering error-free,
high-value products every day.

In an energized atmosphere, a corporate-wide team effort

keeps the drive for excellence in motion. aurcommumty e

o and with investors.”
What customers see is Pliant’s goal to constantly exceed

their expectations — in our product quality, effective
solutions, responsive service and fair pricing.




Pliant Delivers Dynamic Results in 2006

Pliant had a great year in 2006. Our results were solid — we grew sales to
over $1 billion, we earned over $100 million in EBITDAR* and we improved
our free cash flow over $100 million versus 2005. This strong performance
enabled us to accelerate our business plan. We have an extremely capable
and strong team focused on delivering a powerful business plan. As a
“Sustafnab,-']fty result of our successful debt reduction, we are now able to invest behind
our business plan with serious, sustained capital — to hammer our plans
and Consfstency forward on a continuous basis. We have stayed true to our balanced
business model and it continues to deliver results.

are cornerstones
The foundation of our balanced model is:

N »
fOI’ Pliant. o Focused sales growth into growing markets, growing customers,
growing products, new products

o Continuous cost reduction of materials, conversion costs, SG&A costs,
fixed costs

In 2006, we once again had very impressive “numbers-behind-the-
numbers” with many noteworthy accomplishments. We set quite a few
records including record sales, a record number of patented innovations,
record gross waste rates, record net waste rates and record customer
quality levels. These performances were the result of the focused

effort of the entire Pliant team and its partners.

On behalf of the 3,073 employees of Pliant,
I would like to present some of our 2006 accomplishments.

Pliant’s Commitment to the Community

Pliant's employees are committed to making a difference at work.
Throughout the year we have opportunities to use our spirit

and team work to make a difference in the community. We believe
that leadership in our community is as important as anything else
we do. In 2006, Pliant contributed time and financial resources

to a number of charitable organizations, including the United Way,
Boys’ Club and Children's Hospital. Pliant Corporation has also
committed to be a supporter of Special Olympics in 2007.

i

Focused Sales Growth

We are not seeking quick hits to drive sales forward, but rather,
long-term differentiated solutions with industry leading customers.
This is not the easiest path to growth, but it is much more sustainable
and defensible over time. The following are the key components of
our long-term growth program.

*EBITDAR refers io Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation, Amartization, Restructuring and other costs
and non-cash charges,




Value-added Products & Innovation

We are committed to being the industry leader in certain focused technolo-
gies and in certain focused markets. We have 17 major innovation programs
under way to deliver solutions against those objectives. For example, we
are extrapolating our thin film strengths into the printed shrink market, we
are leveraging our bag making know-how into personal care bags and we
are utilizing our knowledge in barrier films to create new solutions for the

“ 3 :
agriculture market. in addition, we have a dedicated Next Generation team We don’t believe
focused on maintaining our leadership positions in the future. We have that the big beat
invested in both of our technology centers to maintain a firm foundation
in technology development, the small...
Multi-year Contracts we believe that
Properly designed contracts are good for our customers, good for Pliant
and good for our material suppliers. They dampen volatility in the supply the fast beat
¢hain and allow all parties to optimize. The majority of Pliant’s business

is under contract and we added quite a few meaningful contracts in 2006 the slow.”
with large, leading consumer products companies. Qur goal is to partner
with industry leaders and to lessen the company’s participation in
transactional, resin-sensitive markets,

Focused Capacity Expansion

We minimize the need for adding new capacity through our gross waste
reduction programs and throughput efficiency programs. We are focused
on driving growth and shifting towards more profitable business. We
generally add leading edge capacity in advance of our growth curves so
we can capitalize on attractive market and customer opportunities, We
grew our value-added manufacturing capacity between 20 and 25 million
pounds in 2006 in North America, Europe and Australia. This new capacity
is being loaded with accretive sales volumes.

Continuous Cost Reduction

Continuous cost reduction is cultural at Pliant. Qur goal is to always
improve our cost position year over year. We strive to lower our pound-
for-pound costs each year while driving down our base costs. Waste is
of no value to anyone, and we are focused on making it extinct. We are
also working aggressively to reduce the use of high-cost materials across
the board.

Materials

o Global Resin Partnerships - We are in our third year of
repositioning our resin procurement program and very happy
with our progress. We are now one of the largest buyers of
Middle Eastern film-grade resins and well poised to benefit
from the significant capacity increases coming on line in the
Middle East over the next several years.




o Use of Lower Cost Resins - We are becoming one of the largest
buyers of secondary market resins. We have instalied extra silos,
blending equipment and film quality inspection equipment to
precisely control the blended use of lower cost resins. This effort
is accelerating into new grades of resins in 2007. Through very
inventive engineering, we are learning to mix traditionally
incompatible resins.

“We have multi-
o Reuse of Resins — We are an innovater in the reuse of waste resins
generational generated during the manufacture of film. We are successfully reusing
. materials in unique, patentable ways that will allow us to minimize
commitments to total waste in the Pliant product portfolio.
the areas where o Use of Lower Cost Materials — We have expanded our materials
program to investigate the reengineering of inks, additives, packaging
we are leaders.” and specialty resins to drive out costs. This effort is accelerating in

2007. Traditional resins are only two-thirds of our material costs;
we are looking broadly at our entire material buy to identify
additional cost-savings opportunities.

Pliant’s Annual Capital Investment
{2004-2007 PLAN)
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Conversion Costs

o Gross Waste - In 2006, we again set a Company record with a 9.6%
gross waste, over two full points of improvement in 3 years (19%) -
from 11.9% in 2003. Qur momentum continues, and once again, we
have significant improvements planned for 2007.

o Net Waste — In 2006, we also set a record for net waste with 4.4%
net waste. This is a 3.7-point improvement in 3 years (46%) — from
8.1% in 2003. We have significant improvements planned for 2007.




o Throughput Efficiency — The ultimate goal in our plants is to operate
every machine at full speed making quality product 168 hours per
week, 365 days per year. This is the gold standard. We are focused
on this outcome and have several initiatives in setup/changeover
times, increased run speeds, scheduling enhancements and other
uptime improvements toward this goal.

o Delivered Product Quality — At the end of the day, our customers “We are f lexible
want error-free, damage-free products delivered to them on time . L
with no documentation errors. We measure what we call the Perfect packaging specialists
Order and we are systematically identifying and implementing _—
improvements towards achievement of this goal. ---a”dprOUd Of’t-
Base Costs

| o SG&A - We have kept headcount flat to down for the third year in
5 a row. We are dedicated to keeping our base costs in check.

o Manufacturing Super Plants — Scale is important in many of
Pliant's core product offerings. We have deliberate plans to
maintain our leading edge in delivered cost and take advantage
of all scale opportunities.

2006 Financial Highlights

In 2006, we grew sales in a tough market and achieved EBITDAR in
our communicated range. At the same time, we accomplished a
transformational debt reduction through our successful chapter 11
reorganization from which we emerged in July 2006. The combination
of our performance and our debt reduction led to a huge yearto-year
improvement in free cash flow, enabling us to both increase our capital
reinvestment and achieve our net liquidity targets.

o Sales increased $84 million or 8% from ~%1.1 billion
to ~$1.2 billion
® Unit volume increased ~2.0% with ~1.5% downgauging

o Resin price changes and volatility was passed through for
the second year in a row

o Profit/EBITDAR increased ~$12 million or 13% from
$92 million to $104 million

o Debt decreased by $515 million or 41% from
$1.25 billion to $737 million

o Capital expenditures/reinvestment increased $7 million
or 21% from $34 million to $41 mitlion

o Free cash flow improved ~$107 million from 2005 to 2006




“Our customers want
error-free, damage-free
products delivered to
them on time with no
documentation errors.
Pliant’s job is to
make that happen

on every order.”

Pliant Long-Term Business Plan

We are very committed to our balanced long-term business plan and
some of our key long-term objectives are as follows:

o Sales Growth Based on Growing Accretive Sales Mix — Causes us
to invest in new, state-of-the-art capacity and maintain a focused
innovation agenda. We will organically grow sales around 2% to 3%
per year. Downgauging will mask about 1.5 points per year.

o Sales Growth Based on Growing With the Winners — This causes us to
re-align our relationships with products and customers that are
growing and have compelling sales propositions themselves.

o Cost Reduction Based on Lowering Material Costs — Materials are the
largest element of our cost structure and we have a multi-faceted
game plan for reducing our costs.

o Cost Reduction Based on Lowering Conversion Costs — Results in
throughput efficiency, focused projects and footprint rationalization.

o Cost Reduction Based on Lowering Base Costs - Keeps our 5G&A
in check and always focusing on retaining the best staff possible
at Pliant.

o Cost Reduction Based on Lowering Supply Chain Costs — Focuses
on actively managing our freight spend, working with customers
to improve shipping efficiencies and reduce storage costs.

o /ncrease EBITDAR 10% Per Year — Coupled with our solid, investment-
backed improvement programs, virtually every single long-term
outlook for resin prices calls for a return to historical profit rates
as new worldwide capacity comes on line in 2008 and 2009. This
will impact Pliant and the industry very favorably and probably add
additional EBITDAR to our outlooks.

o Mitigate Resin Price Induced Volatility — Pliant is more prepared than
ever to succeed in unfavorable resin pricing environments because
of our success in reengineering our resin procurement program, our
waste reuse program and our customer contracts.

a Improve Our Capital Structure and Ratios Each Year — We will increase
our liquidity every year while at the same time increasing our capex
reinvestment every year and we will completely pay off our revolver
within a few years.




Pliant and the Community

Pliant regularly donates its time, money and energy to charities in its
communities. Qur goal is to make our communities better and enrich

the lives of others. Our simple goal is to lead by serving in these areas.

We support many worthy causes including the Special Olympics.

“We believe that
leadership in our
community is as

important as

anything else we do.”




“We are building

a responsible
leadership company
for the long haul -
and 2006 was

a step along

the way.”

Summary

We have solid momentum with our customers, our focused sales growth
areas and our cost reduction programs. Consistent with our long-term
plans, our goals for 2007 are as follows:

o Qrganic sales growth of ~1.5% to 2.5%
= Downgauging will be around 1.5%
w Timing of plant consolidations and equipment relocations
could affect these numbers slightly.

a Cost structure decreasing for the fourth year in a row
s Headcount will be held flat, operational costs will decrease,
manufacturing overheads will decrease.

o Capex reinvestment increasing for the third year in a row
m investment for material cost reduction, operational cost reduction,
growth products, growth customers, innovation programs and
operational systems.

o Net liquidity increasing for the second year in a row
= Higher EBITDAR, lower cash interest outflows and improved
working capital efficiency.

o EBITDAR increasing for the second year in a row
m Our goal is ~ $110 to $114 million depending on the inevitable
timing of resin volatility.

Pliant is very focused and we are committed to achieving our results
via our balanced business model. We expect to achieve our 2007 plan
by expanding our business in focused areas, driving technology and
innovation in focused areas and delivering world-class performance to
our customers, We are very excited about 2007. We look farward to
achieving the goals that we have set and establishing a firm foundation
for continued improvement in 2008.

On the pages that follow, please look at some of the innovative new
products that Pliant is bringing to the industry to make life just a little
bit better for you and me. Flexible Packaging responsible leadership

makes a difference.

Harold Bevis
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Pliant Corporation

We have made forward-looking statemerts in this annual report. All such forward-looking statements, whether written or
oral, by us or on our behall, are expressly quatified by this cautionary statement. All forward-looking statements, including,
without limitation, management's examination of historical operating trends, are based upon our current expectations and
various assumptions. Qur expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in goed faith and we believe there is a reason-
able basis for them. But, there can be no assurance that management's expectations, beliefs and projections will result or
be achieved. All forward-looking statements apply only as of the date made, We undertake no obligation 1o publicly update
or revise forward-looking statements which may be made to reflect events or circumstances after the date made or to reflect
the occurrence of unanticipated events,

Qur risks are more specifically described in the “Risk Factors” of Part |, ltem 1A of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2006, provided herein. If one ar more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or if
underying assumptions prove incomrect, our actual results may vary materially from those expected, estimated or projected.




Pliant introduces Stratos™
a line of 42- and
45-gauge, ultra-high-
yield machine films for
load containment.
Representing Pliant’s
continued technology
leadership in the three-
billion-pound stretch
film market, Stratos
provides cost-effective
palletizing that fulfills
sustainability initiatives,
all in one package.

~ StretchFilm



10 Breaking new ground.

With embossed, printable
Touch of Silk™ films, the
personal care products
manufacturer is offered
unigue packaging that
stands out on the store
shelf. Pliant’s Touch of Silk
replaces brash and glossy
alternatives with a product
that is soft to the eye

and soft to the touch.

The softer feel also results
in reduced “rustling”
noise, convey-
ing the impor-
tant product
gualities of
discretion

and gentleness.

Focl. oA | i
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Pliant is a leading
producer of films and
flexible packaging to
protect products, patients
and professionals. Like
all Pliant medical film
products, Optym™ Device
Packaging Films are
manufactured in 1SO
9002-certified facilities
and engineered to
exacting specifications.
Pliant continues to expand
its customer base of
innovative medical device

packaging films, leveraging
existing products into
new business for new

customers.




12 Breaking new ground.

Pliant, the industry-
leading supplier of bags
and film for bakery
products, brings exciting
new packaging alternatives
to market with FreshView™
Bakery Bags for your
premium bakery items.
Featuring side-by-side
extruded lanes of printable
white opacity with a

clear window, FreshView
provides eye-catching
packaging with a view!
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With toughness for
product protection plus
the clarity and gloss

that attract consumers,
Bullseye™ Shrink Film
from Pliant fulfills market
demand for multi-pack
shrink wrap with enhanced
shelf appeal. Double-
digit growth is projected
through 2010. And
Bullseye Shrink Film's
buiit-in sustainabitity
solution leads to a
packaging savings

of 40-60%!




14 Breaking new ground.

Pliant focuses on healthy
lifestyle choices with
SteamQuick™ printed films
and packaging solutions

?tii'-' At S

. R ]
L TR Y
Lo

for steam-cooked frozen
and fresh vegetables. As
an industry leader in film
and converting technology,
Pliant mixes customer
convenience with value-
added innovation for our
high-quality SteamQuick
packaging bound for
high-growth markets.




15

Blockade™ Plastic Mulch
Films make fields flourish.
Pliant is leading the way in
helping farmers reduce the
cost of controlling pests
as well as improving the
efficiency of irrigation. Qur
unique film technology is
rapidly replacing the need
for multi-step metallized
films while dramatically
improving performance.

Blockade




16 Breaking new ground.

Pliant goes to the head
of the line with MaxGrab™
Handle Bags, drawing upon
its expertise as a leading
maker of films in developing
these containers for light,
bulky consumer goods. A
printable, sturdy and cost-
effective product, MaxGrab
is an outstanding handle
bag for a variety of items
such as diapers and adult
incontinence products,
tissue/towel overwrap

and snack food packs.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 26549

FORM 10-K
(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
OR

(W) TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number 333-40067

PLIANT CORPORATION

{Exact Name of the Registrant as Specified in its Charter)

Delaware 43-2107725 11,
(State or other jurisdiction of (LRS. Employer"&
incorporation or organization} Identification No.) SgN\ 160,

1475 Woodfield Road, Suite 700
Schaumburg, IL 60173
(847) 969-3300
{Address of principal executive offices and telephone number)

Securities registered pursvant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: Series AA 13% Cumulative Redeemable Convertible Preferred
Stock, par value $0.01 per share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.
Yes O NoX

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15{d} of the Act.
YesO NoX

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required
to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes® No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K (§ 229.405 of this
chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. &

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer or a non-accelerated filer.
See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer [J Non-accelerated filer X]
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act). Yes O No X

At March 13, 2007 there were 100,003 outstanding shares of the Registrant’s common stock. As of March 13, 2007,
49,871, or approximately 49.87%, of the outstanding shares of the Registrant’s common stock were held by persons other
than affiliates of the Registrant. There is no established trading market for the Registrant’s common stock and, therefore,
the aggregate market value of shares held by non-affiliates cannot be determined by reference to recent sales or bid and
asked prices.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO REGISTRANTS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS DURING THE
PRECEDING FIVE YEARS

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section 12, 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a
court. Yes & No DO

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
None.
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This report contains certain forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncentainties, including
statements about our plans, objectives, goals, strategies and financial performance. Qur actual results could
differ materially from the results anticipated in these forward-looking statements. Some of the factors that could
negatively affect our performance are discussed in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Cautionary Statement for Forward-Looking Information” and elsewhere
in this report. Unless indicated otherwise, “Pliant,” the “Company,” “we” or “us” refers to Pliant Corporation
and its subsidiaries.

PART 1
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

Pliant, with 2006 revenues of approximately $1,159.0 million, is one of North America’s leading
manufacturers of value-added films and flexible packaging for food, personal care, medical, agricultural
and industrial applications. We offer some of the most diverse product lines in the film industry and have
achieved leading positions in many of these product lines. We currently operate 23 manufacturing and
research and development facilities worldwide and we currently have approximately one billion pounds of
annual production capacity.

We were formed in 1992 as a Utah corporation and reincorporated in Delaware on July 18, 2006. We
have a proud heritage through predecessor companies that traces back many decades. We have combined
strategic acquisitions, internal growth, product innovation and operational improvements to grow our
business from net sales of $310.8 million in 1996 to $1,159.0 million in 2006. We have invested to expand
our capabilities and value-added product offerings for our customers. Between January 1, 2003 and
December 31, 2006, we invested a total of $132 million to expand, upgrade and maintain our asset base and
information systems.

Chapter 11 Bankruptcy Proceedings and Reorganization

The Company and ten of its subsidiaries filed for protection under Chapter 11 of Title 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in January 2006. On June 19, 2006, the Company filed with the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”) its Fourth
Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization (the “Plan”) which was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on
June 23, 2006. On July 18, 2006, the Company consummated its reorganization through a series of
transactions contemplated in the Fourth Amended Plan and emerged from bankruptcy.

In connection with the Plan, on July 18, 2006, we issued 100,003 shares of new common stock, par
value $.01 per share (“New Common Stock) to holders of our existing common stock {“Old Common
Stock”) and to other stakeholders. We also issued shares of Series AA Redeemable Preferred Stock, par
value $.01 per share (“Series AA Preferred Stock”) to certain of our stakeholders.

We have worked diligently in an effort to analyze each of the claims filed in our Chapter 11 cases, and
have already made significant progress in reconciling such claims with our books and records. Moreover,
we have been steadily making distributions to the holders of many such claims, as well as to creditors
appearing in our schedules, and have filed objections to certain claims as necessary. To date, we have filed
five omnibus objections to claims, resulting in a reduction to the claims register of more than 80 claims
totaling more than $86.5 million, which were primarily claims made by equity holders who received
distributions of new securities according to the Company’s Plan. In addition, we have paid more than $47
million to satisfy contract cure amounts, vendor trade agreements, and other unsecured claims. We
estimate that there are approximately $2.5 million in non-litigation claims remaining for processing. See
Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Overview” for more detaited information on our emergence from bankruptcy.




Controlling Shareholders

As of March 13, 2007, J.P. Morgan Partners (BHCA), L.P. and/or affiliates (“JP Morgan™) owned
approximately 50.09% of our outstanding New Common Stock and 12.48% of our outstanding Series AA
Preferred Stock.

Industry Overview

We manufacture and sell a variety of plastic films and flexible packaging products. Our products serve
customers in a variety of flexible packaging markets, including the food and beverage, retail,
pharmaceutical, medical, personal care, household, industrial and agricultural film markets, as well as
secondary packaging and non-packaging end use markets. According to the Flexible Packaging
Association, the North American market for flexible packaging was approximately $21.8 billion in 2005 and
has grown at a compound annual growth rate, or CAGR, of approximately 2.09% in revenues from
2000-2005. Many of our plastic films are flexible packaging products as defined by the Flexible Packaging
Association. However, the flexible packaging market, as defined by the Flexible Packaging Association,
does not include certain of the products we sell, such as agricultural films, and includes certain products we
do not sell, such as wax papers and aluminum foils. We believe, however, that trends affecting the flexible
packaging industry also affect the markets for many of our other products.

Flexible packaging is used to package a variety of products, particularly food, which accounts for just
over half of all flexible packaging shipments. Recent advancements in film extrusion and resin technology
have produced new, sophisticated films that are thinner and stronger and have better barrier and sealant
properties than other materials or predecessor films. These technological advances have facilitated the
replacement of many traditional forms of paper or rigid packaging with film-based, flexible packaging that
is lighter, is lower in cost and has enhanced performance characteristics. For example, in consumer
applications, stand-up pouches that use plastic films are now often used instead of paperboard boxes, glass
jars or metal cans. In industrial markets, stretch and shrink films are often used instead of corrugated
boxes and metal strapping to unitize, bundle and protect items during shipping and storage.

Certain industry and market share data reported herein are based on estimates made by the Flexible
Packaging Association in a “State of the Industry Report 2006,” which was compiled based on data
compiled from surveys submitted by its members, or from data provided by the Flexible Packaging
Association in an investment base report titled “Paper and Packaging: Industry Overview and Outlook”
issued in December 2006. Pliant serves on the Board of Directors of the Flexible Packaging Association
and Pliant is a dues-paying member of the FPA. Unless otherwise indicated, the market share and industry
data used throughout this report were obtained primarily from internal company surveys and management
estimates based on these surveys and our management’s knowledge of the industry. We have not
independently verified any of the data from third-party sources. Similarly, internal company surveys and
management estimates, while we believe them to be reliable, have not been verified by any independent
sources. While we are not aware of any misstatements regarding our industry data presented herein, our
estimates involve risks and uncertainties and are subject to change based on various factors, including
those discussed in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Cautionary Statement for Forward-Looking Information” in this report.

Products, Markets and Customers

Our products are sold into numerous markets for a wide variety of end uses. In 2006, we reorganized
our Specialty Products Group and separated it into two operating segments, Specialty Films and Printed
Products. In addition, we combined our prior Performance Films segment with our Engineered Films
segment. These changes were in response to a re-evaluation of our aggregation criteria. As a resuit, the
segment information for previous years has been reclassified to reflect these changes. Our products are




offered through four operating segments: Specialty Films, Printed Products, Industrial Films, and
Engineered Films. Operating segments are components of our business for which separate financial
information is available that is evaluated regularly by our chief operating decision maker in deciding how
to allocate resources and in assessing performance. In each of our segments, the loss of one or more major
customers, or a material reduction in sales to these customers would have a material adverse effect on the
results of operations of such segment. For more information on our operating segments and geographic
information, see Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

Specialty Films

Our Specialty Films segment accounted for 18.4%, 18.2%, and 19.0% of our consolidated net sales in
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Our Specialty Films segment produces personal care films, medical
films, and agricultural films.

Personal Care. 'We are a leading producer of personal care films used in disposable diapers, feminine
care products and adult incontinence products. Personal care films must meet diverse and highly technical
specifications. Many of these films must “breathe,” allowing water vapors to escape. In some applications,
the softness or “quietness” of the film is important, as in adult incontinence products. We are one of North
America’s leading producers of personal care films, with an estimated market share of approximately 35%.

Medical. We are a specialized niche manufacturer of medical films. Our medical films are used in
disposable surgical drapes and gowns. We also produce protective packaging for medical supplies, such as
disposable syringes and intravenous fluid bags. In addition, our products include packaging for disposable
medical devices. Our medical films are manufactured in “clean-room” environments and must meet
stringent barrier requirements. A sterile barrier is necessary to provide and assure the integrity of the
devices and to prevent contamination and tampering. These films must also be able to withstand varied
sterilization processes.

Agricultural.  We are a leading manufacturer of polyethylene mulch films that are sold to fruit and
vegetable growers and to nursery operators. Our mulch films are used extensively in North America and
Latin America. Commercial growers of crops like peppers, tomatoes, cucumbers and strawberries are the
primary consumers of our mulch films. These crops are typically planted on raised beds that are tightly
covered with mulch film. The mulch film eliminates or retards weed growth, significantly reduces the
amount of water required by plants, controls soil bed temperatures for ideal growing conditions and allows
easy application of fertilizer. We are one of North America’s two largest producers of mulch films, with an
estimated market share of approximately 28%.

Printed Products

Our Printed Products segment accounted for 19.9%, 20.0% and 21.4% of our consolidated net sales in
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. OQur Printed Products segment provides printed rollstock, bags and
sheets used to package consumer goods. Printed bags or rollstock are sold to bakeries, fresh and frozen
food processors, manufacturers of personal care products, textile manufacturers and other dry goods
processors. Bread and bakery bags represent a significant portion of our Printed Products business. Our
Printed Products segment produces approximately four billion bread and bakery bags each year, with an
estimated share of between 20% to 25% of the North American market.

Printed Products also includes our Mexican subsidiary, which is a leading producer of printed
products for Mexico and other Latin American countries. It also produces personal care and barrier films
for these markets. In 2006, approximately 26% of our Printed Products sales were outside the
United States, primarily in Mexico and Latin America.




Industrial Films

The Industrial Films segment accounted for 27.7%, 28.6%, and 26.2% of our consolidated net sales in
2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Our Industrial Films segment manufactures stretch and PVC films. In 2006, approximately 23% of our
Industrial Films sales were outside the United States, primarily in Canada, Europe and Australia. Our
customers in this segment include national distributors, such as Bunzl, and Xpedx; grocery chains, such as
A&P, Kroger, Publix and Safeway; and end-users, such as Proctor & Gamble, Costco, and Wal-Mart.

Stretch Films. Our stretch films are used to bundle, unitize and protect palletized loads during
shipping and storage. Stretch films continue to replace more traditional packaging, such as corrugated
boxes and metal strapping, because of stretch films’ lower cost, higher strength, and ease of use. We are
North America’s fourth largest producer of stretch films, with an estimated market share of between 10%
and 13%.

PVC Films. Our PVC films are used by supermarkets, delicatessens and restaurants to wrap meat,
cheese and produce. PVC films are preferred in these applications because of their clarity, elasticity and
cling. We also produce PVC films for laundry wrap and other industrial applications. Finally, we produce
individually-packaged rolls of PVC film for consumer household use. The film is packaged in cartons
(“cutterboxes™) with serrated edges or slide-cutters, and sold into bulk retail and food service markets in
North America, Latin America and Asia. In 2006, we were the second largest producer of PVC films in
North America, with an estimated market share of approximately 25%. In addition, we are a leading
producer of PVC films in Australia and the second largest producer in Europe, with estimated market
shares of approximately 50% and 16%, respectively.

Engincered Films

The Engineered Films segment accounted for 33.3%, 32.4%, and 32.7% of our consolidated net sales
in 20006, 2005, and 2004, respectively,

Engineered films are a key component in a wide variety of flexible packaging products. These films
are used in packaging for end-use markets such as coffee, confections, snacks, fresh produce, lidding, and
hot-filt liquids. Generally, our engineered films add value by providing the final packaging product with
specific performance characteristics, such as moisture, oxygen or odor barriers, ultraviolet protection or
desired sealant properties. Because engineered films are sold for their sealant, barrier or other properties,
they must meet stringent performance specifications established by the customer, including gauge control,
clarity, sealability and width accuracy. We are a leader in introducing new engineered film products to
meet flexible packaging industry trends and specific customer needs. We are North America’s leading
manufacturer of polyethylene-based sealant films with an estimated market share of between 30% and
35%.

We also manufacture a variety of barrier and custom films, primarily for smaller, but profitable, niche
segments in flexible packaging and industrial markets. For example, in 2006 we were North America’s third
largest producer of films for cookie, cracker and cereal box liners, with an estimated market share of
between 15% and 20%. We are also a leading manufacturer of barrier films for liners in multi-wall pet
food.

In 2006, in order to mitigate company-wide capacity constraints and permit more efficient equipment
utilization, approximately 10% of Engineered Films capacity was used for the production of personal care,
medical, and agricultural products.




Sales and Marketing

Because of our broad range of product offerings and customers, our sales and marketing efforts are
generally product or customer specific. We market in various ways, depending on both the customer and
the product. However, most of our salespeople are dedicated to a specific product line and sometimes to
specific markets or customers.

The majority of our Specialty Films, Printed Products and Engineered Films are sold by cur own
direct sales force. These salespeople are supported by customer service and technical specialists assigned
to each salesperson, and in some cases, to specific customers. Customer service representatives assist with
order intake, scheduling and product information. Technical support personnel assist the salesperson and
the customer with technical expertise, quality control and product development. We believe it is critical
that our sales, marketing and technical support teams work together in order to meet our customers’
product needs and provide meaningful product development.

Many of our Printed Products are sold through brokers. National grocery chains and some smaller
customer accounts are serviced by our own direct sales force. Generally, each salesperson is supported
individually by a customer service specialist and by a group of technical specialists.

Industrial Films are generally sold through distributors and directly to certain large, national accounts.
We have an independent contract sales force that sells our stretch pallet wrap films to national and
regional distributors. Our PVC filins are sold by our own sales force to regional and national distributors,
directly to national grocery chains, and directly to converters, who repackage the film for sale in retail
markets.

Certain of our products, such as our agricultural films, are sold through regional distributors. In
addition, certain of Engineered Films are sold through brokers who have long-standing relationships with
customers.

Manufacturing

Between January 1, 2003 and December 31, 2006, excluding acquisitions, we have invested a total of
$132 million to expand, upgrade and maintain our asset base and information systems. Qur asset base has
an insured value of approximately $1 billion and includes over 200 film extrusion lines, over 35 printing
presses, and 70 bag converting machines. With 23 plants, we are often able to allocate lines to specific
products. Our multiple manufacturing sites and varied production capabilities also allow us to offer
multiple plant service to our national customers. Generally, our manufacturing plants operate 24 hours a
day, seven days a week.

We manufacture our film products by combining thermoplastic resin pellets with other resins,
plasticizers or modifiers, then melting them in a controlled, high temperature, pressurized process known
as extrusion to create films with specific performance characteristics. The films are then placed on a
circular core in up to 40-inch diameter rolls, packaged, and shipped directly to customers as rollstock or
may undergo further processing. Additional processing steps can include printing in up to 10 colors, slitting
down to a narrower width roll, converting into finished bags, or re-rolling onto smaller diameter rolls and .
packaging for sale as retail or institutional cutterboxes.

Backlog and Seasonality

We do not have any material order backlog and we do not believe that aggregate sales reflect any
significant degree of seasonality.




Technology and Research and Development

We believe our technology base and research and development provide critical support to our
business and customers. Qur research and development group provides the latest resin and extrusion
technology to our manufacturing facilities and allows us to test new resins and process technologies. We
have 17 innovation programs underway to deliver solutions to our existing markets and allow us to access
new markets. For example, we are extrapolating our thin film strengths into the printed shrink market, we
are leveraging our printed bag making know-how into personal care bags and we are utilizing our
knowledge in barrier films to create new solutions for the agricultural market. Our technical centers in
Newport News, Virginia and Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin have pilot plants that allow customer sampling
and the ability to run commercial scale-ups for new products without interrupting operations in our
manufacturing plants. We are able to use our broad product offerings and technology to transfer
technological innovations from one market to another.

Our technical representatives often work with customers to help them develop new, more competitive
products. This allows us to enhance our relationships with these customers by providing the technical
service needed to support commercialization of new products and by helping them to improve operational
efficiency and quality throughout a product’s life cycle.

We spent $8.7 million, $8.7 million, and $6.5 million on research and development for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, before giving effect to revenues from pilot plant sales. In
addition, we participate in several U.S. government-funded research and development programs.

Intellectual Property Rights

Patents, trademarks and licenses are a part of our business. We have patent protection on several of
our products and processes, and we regularly apply for new patents on significant product and process
developments. We have registered trademarks on many of our products. We also often rely on unpatented
proprietary know-how, continuing technological innovation and other trade secrets to develop and
maintain our competitive position. In addition to our own patents, trade secrets and proprietary know-how,
we occasionaily license from third parties the right to use some of their intellectual property. Although we
constantly seek to protect our patents, trademarks and other intellectual property, our precautions may not
provide meaningful protection against competitors and the value of our trademarks could be diluted.

Raw Materials

Polyethylene, PVC, polypropylene and other resins and additives constitute the major raw materials
for our products. We purchase much of our resin from major oil companies and petrochemical companies
in North America. We also purchase a portion of our supply from manufacturers located outside
North America, as well as non-prime resins purchased from secondary market brokers in North America
and we are now one of the largest buyers of Middle Eastern film-grade resins. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, raw material costs, which consist primarily of resin costs, comprised approximately
67% of our total cost of goods sold. Significant increases in the price of resins increases our costs, reduces
our operating margins and impairs our ability to service debt unless we are able to pass all of these cost
increases on to our customers. The price of resin is a function of, among other things, manufacturing
capacity, demand, and the price of ethylene feed stocks. Resin shortages or significant increases in the
price of resin could have a significant adverse effect on our business. Since the middle of 2002, we have
experienced a period of significant uncertainty with respect to resin supplies and prices. High global energy
prices have had significant impact on the price and supply of resins in 2006.

Major suppliers of resin have implemented price increases to cover their increases in feedstock costs,
and to improve their operating margins as capacity utilization increases. Due in part to consolidation in the
resin supply industry, suppliers have resisted the customer’s efforts to limit or defer the effect of these




increases. Conversely, the prices of our products generally fluctuate with the price of resins. We estimate
that approximately half of our sales are made on a transactional basis, which allows us to pass through
resin price increases, although competitive market conditions in our industry from time to time limit our
ability to pass the full cost of higher resin pricing through to our customers immediately or completely. The
other approximately one half of our sales are made pursuant to customer contracts, most of which dictate
the timing in our ability to pass through the increase. A portion of these contracts have been renegotiated
to allow resin cost changes to be passed along on a monthly basis, with some allowing cost changes to be
passed through quarterly and a small number requiring a longer delay. In combination, the cost to the
Company of the gap between the speed in which resin price changes are passed on to us and the time in
which we can pass these cost changes on to our customers has an impact on both our results of operations
and our working capital needs. This trend is industry wide and its impact has been significant in 2006,
Although we believe that the renegotiation of some customer contracts should reduce the impact of resin
price changes in the future, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in passing through such
costs to our customers.

As one of the largest consumers of packaging resin in the United States, we are working with our
suppliers to minimize the effects and the timing of the pass through of increased resin costs and to
maximize the likelihood that resin supplies continue to be available to us in sufficient quantities and on
timetables necessary to meet the needs of our customers. We have an aggressive program using materials
engineering and substitution to maximize our operationat flexibility, enabling increased purchases of non-
U.S. sourced and non-prime resins. We are becoming one of the largest buyers of off-spec resins and
secondary markets resins and we have installed extra silos, blending equipment and film quality inspection
equipment to precisely control the blended use of lower cost resins. We also regularly evaluate commodity
hedging, collar agreements, and other protective strategies and will implement them if and when
appropriate and cost effective.

Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive on the basis of service, product quality,
product innovation and price. Small and medium-sized manufacturers that compete primarily in regional
markets service a large portion of the film and flexible packaging market, and there are relatively few large
national manufacturers. In addition to competition from many smaller competitors, we face strong
competition from a number of large film and flexible packaging companies. Some of our competitors are
substantiaily larger, are more diversified, and have greater resources than we have, and, therefore, may
have certain competitive advantages.

Employees

As of March 1, 2007, we had approximately 3,073 employees, of which approximately 872 employees
were subject to a total of 8 collective bargaining agreements that expire on various dates between 2007 and
2010. The agreement covering our Chippewa Falls union facility was recently renewed and expires
March 2, 2008. We also entered into a new agreement with our Toronto union group which expires on
February 19, 2010. Our Calhoun, Kent, and Australia union facilities have agreements with expiration
dates in 2007. Also, the Langley union facility will be closing during 2007.

Environmental Matters

Our operations are subject to environmental laws in the United States and abroad, including those
described below. Our capital and operating budgets include costs and expenses associated with complying
with these laws, including the acquisition, maintenance and repair of pollution control equipment, and
routine measures 1o prevent, contain and clean up spills of materials that occur in the ordinary course of
our business. In addition, our production facilities require environmental permits that are subject to




revocation, modification and renewal. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with
environmental laws and our environmental permit requirements, and that the costs and expenses
associated with such compliance are not material to our business. However, additional operating costs and
capital expenditures could be incurred if, for example, additional or more stringent requirements relevant
to our operations are promulgated.

From time to time, contaminants from current or historical operations have been detected at some of
our present and former sites, principally in connectien with the removal or closure of underground storage
tanks. The cost to remediate these sites has not been material, and we are not currently aware that any of
our facility locations have material outstanding claims or obligations relating to contamination issues.

Available Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the SEC. Qur SEC filings
are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov. You may also read
and copy any document we file at the SEC’s public reference room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C.
20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference facility.

We maintain an Internet web site at http://www_pliantcorp.com. We do not currenily make our
annual, quarterly and current reports available on or through our web site. We believe our investors and
potential investors have access to our reports through the SEC’s web site or commercial services.
Therefore, we do not believe it is necessary to make our reports available through our web site. We also
provide electronic or paper copies of our filings free of charge upon written or oral request directed to
Pliant Corporation, 1475 Woodficld Road, Suite 700, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173, telephone:

(866) 878-6188.

Cautionary Statement for Forward-Looking Information

Some of the statements set forth in this report including, but not limited to, those under the heading
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation,” are in
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
These statements relate to analyses and other information that is based on forecasts of future results and
estimates of amounts not yet determinable. These statements also relate to our future prospects,
developments and business strategies. These forward-looking statements are identified by their use of
terms and phrases such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,”
“predict,” “project,” “will” and similar terms and phrases, including references to assumptions, These
forward-looking statements are not historical facts but instead represent only expectations, estimates and
projections regarding future events. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that are difficult to predict and may
cause actual results to be materially different. These factors include, but are not limited to, the following:

e general economic and business conditions, particularly an economic downturn;

s  continuing losses and charges against earnings resulting from restructuring or the impairment of
assets;

e industry trends;

¢  risks of high leverage and any increases in our leverage;
s  interest rate increases;

* changes in our ownership structure;

¢ changes in the Company’s composition of operating segments;




e raw material costs and availability, particularly resin;

s the timing and extent to which we pass through resin cost changes to our customers;
s the loss of any of our key suppliers;

» changes in credit terms from our suppliers;

* competition,

* the loss of any of our major customers;

* changes in demand for our products;

* new technologies;

e changes in distribution channels or competitive conditions in the markets or countries where we
operate;

e  costs of integrating any future acquisitions;

* loss of our intellectual property rights;

e foreign currency fluctuations and devaluations and political instability in our foreign markets;
s changes in our business strategy or development plans;

s availability, terms and deployment of capital;

s availability of qualified personnel;

» labor relations and work stoppages;

e increases in the cost of compliance with laws and regulations, including environmental laws and
regulations; and

» other risks and uncertainties listed or described from time to time in reports we periodically file
with the SEC.

We may also make additional forward-looking statements from time to time. All such subsequent
forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, by us or on our behalf, are also expressly qualified by
these cautionary statements. All forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, management’s
examination of historical operating trends, are based upon our current expectations and various
assumptions. Our expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in good faith and we believe there is a
reasonable basis for them. But, there can be no assurance that management’s expectations, beliefs and
projections will result or be achieved. All forward-looking statements apply only as of the date made. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise forward-looking statements which may be made to
reflect events or circumstances after the date made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

Our risks are more specifically described in the “Risk Factors” section of this report. If one or more of
these risks or uncertaintics materialize, or if underlying assumptions prove incorrect, our actual results may
vary materially from those expected, estimated or projected.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risks and uncertainties are among the factors that could cause our actual operating
results, financial condition or liquidity to differ materially from the forward-looking statements made in
this report or which could otherwise adversely affect our business. There may be other factors, including
those discussed elsewhere in this report or in other filings made by us with the Securities and Exchange




Commission {the “Commission”), that may cause our actual operating results, financial condition or
liquidity to differ materially from the forward-looking statements made in this report or which could
otherwise adversely affect our business. You should carefully consider these factors in evaluating any
forward-looking statements made in this report and prior to making any investment decisions with respect
to our securities.

Risks related to Emergence from Bankruptcy

OQur actual financial results after emergence from bankruptcy may vary significantly from the projections
filed with the Bankruptcy Court.

We recently emerged from Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings on July 18, 2006 pursuant to terms of
our Plan, which Plan was approved by the Bankruptey Court. In connection with the Plan, we were
required to prepare projected financial information to demonstrate to the Bankruptcy Court the feasibility
of the Plan and our ability to continue operations upon emergence from bankruptcy. At the time they were
last filed with the Bankruptcy Court, the projections reflected numerous assumptions concerning
anticipated future performance and prevailing and anticipated markel and economic conditions, many of
which were and continue to be beyond our control and which may not materialize. Projections are
inherently subject to uncertainties and to a wide variety of significant business, economic and competitive
risks. Our actual results will likely vary from those contemplated by the projections and the variations may
be material.

Qur actual financial results after emergence from bankruptcy may not be comparable to our historical
financial information.

As a result of the consummation of the Plan and the transactions contemplated thereby, our financial
condition and results of operations from and after July 18, 2006 may not be comparable to the financial
condition or results of operations reflected in our historical financial statements.

We may be subject to litigation claims that were not discharged in the bankruptcy cases which could have
a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of aperations.

The nature of our business may subject us to litigation. Because our Plan required that alt allowed
unsecured claims against us, other than claims with respect to our previously outstanding 13% senior
subordinated notes, were reinstated, the vast majority of the litigation claims against us that arose prior to
the date of our bankruptcy filing were not resolved during our Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings. The
ultimate resolution of such claims is uncertain and may have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We cannot be certain that the bankruptcy proceeding will not adversely affect our operations going
forward.

Although we emerged from bankrupicy upon consummation of the Plan, we cannot assure you that
having been subject to bankrupicy protection will not adversely affect our operations going forward,
including our ability to negotiate favorable terms from suppliers, hedging counterparties and others and to
attract and retain customers. The failure to obtain such favorable terms and retain customers could
adversely affect our financial performance,
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Risks related to our Financial and Capital Structure

The extent of our indebtedness could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our
eperations, limit our ability to react to changes in the economy or our industry and prevent us from
meeting our debt obligations.

Although the Plan resulted in the elimination of net $289 million of our subordinated debt and
approximately $298 million of our mandatorily redeemable stock, we continue to have a significant amount
of indebtedness upon emergence from bankruptey. As of December 31, 2006, we had total debt of
$737.6 million.

Our indebtedness may limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital
expenditures, product development, debt service requirements, acquisitions and general corporate or other
purposes. Such indebtedness also may limit our ability to adjust to changing market conditions and to
withstand competitive pressures, possibly leaving us vulnerable in a downturn in general economic
conditions or in our business, or we may be unable to carry out capital spending that is important to our
growth and productivity improvement programs.

Limits on our borrowing capacity under our credit facilities may affect our ability to finance our
operations. '

While our credit facilities provide for a maximum of approximately $200 million of financing, our
ability to borrow funds under the credit facilities is subject to the amount of eligible receivables, inventory,
machinery and equipment, and real estate in our borrowing base under the facility and the application of
reserves against such amounts, Our ability to make borrowings under our credit facilities also is
conditioned upon our compliance with certain financial covenants. Moreover, covenants contained in our
indentures may further impose limits on the amount we may borrow under our credit facility.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our indebtedness and could be forced to
take other actions to satisfy our obligations under our indebtedness, which may not be successful.

Our estimated cash debt service for 2007 is expected to be approximately $40.3 million, consisting of
$28.2 million of scheduled bond interest payments, approximately $11.8 million of interest payments on
our revolving credit facilities and $(0.3 million in other payments.

Our ability to make scheduled payments or to refinance our debt obligations depends on our financial
and operating performance, which is subject to prevailing economic and competitive conditions and to
certain financial, business and other factors beyond our control. These factors include:

e Our ability to generate cost savings and manufacturing and operational efficiencies sufficient to
achieve projected financial performance, as well as initiatives to obtain new business and to
generate and manage working capital consistent with such projections;

¢ Variations in the financial or operational condition of our significant customers;

» Material shortages, transportation systems delays or other difficulties in markets where we purchase
supplies for the manufacturing of our products;

* Significant work stoppages, disputes or any other difficulties in labor markets where we obtain
materials necessary for the manufacturing of products or where products are manufactured,
distributed or sold;

» Increased development of competitive alternatives to our products;

¢ Fluctuations in interest rates;
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¢ Unscheduled plant shutdowns;

¢ Increased operating costs;

» Changes in prices and supply of raw materials;

» Changes in credit terms offered by our suppliers;

¢ Qur ability to obtain cash adequate to fund our needs;

* Various worldwide economic and political factors, changes in economic conditions, currency
fluctuations and devaluations, credit risks in foreign markets or political instability in foreign
countries where we have manufacturing operations or suppliers;

» Physical damage to or loss of significant manufacturing or distribution property, plant and
equipment due to fire, weather or other factors beyond our control;

» Legislative activities of governments, agencies and similar organizations, both in the United States
and in foreign countries, that may affect our operations;

¢ Our ability to comply with government regulations, including public market disclosure requirements
such as those contained within the Sarbanes-Oxley Act,

e Legal actions and claims of undetermined merit and amount involving, among other things, product
liability, recalls of products manufactured or sold by us, and environmental and safety issues
involving our products or facilities; and

» Possible terrorist attacks or acts of aggression or war, which could exacerbate other risks such as
slowed production or interruptions in the transportation system.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt service obligations in the
future, we may be forced to reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assets, seek additional capital or
restructure or refinance our indebtedness. These alternative measures may not be successful and may not
permit us to meet our scheduled debt service obligations. In the absence of such cash flows and capital
resources, we could face substantial liquidity problems and might be required to dispose of material assets
or operations to meet our debt service and other obligations. Qur indentures and credit facilities restrict
our ability to dispose of assets and use the proceeds from the disposition. We may not be able to
consummate those dispositions or to obtain the proceeds which we could realize from them and these
proceeds may not be adequate to meet any debt service obligations then due.

If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flow and are otherwise unable to obtain funds necessary to
meet required payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on our indebtedness in the future, or if
we otherwise fail to comply with the various covenants, including financial and operating covenants, in the
instruments governing our indebtedness, we could be in default under the terms of the agreements
governing such indebtedness. In the event of such default, the holders of such indebtedness could elect to
declare all the funds borrowed thereunder to be due and payable, together with accrued and unpaid
interest, the lenders under the credit facilities could elect to terminate their commitments thereunder,
cease making further loans and institute foreclosure proceedings against our assets, and we could be forced
into a subsequent bankruptcy or liquidation. If cur operating performance declines, we may, in the future,
need to obtain waivers from the required lenders under our credit facilities to avoid being in default. If we
breach our covenants under the credit facilities and seek a waiver, we may not be able to obtain a waiver
from the required lenders. If this occurs, we could be in default under the credit facilities and the lenders
could exercise their rights, as described above, and we could be forced into a subsequent bankruptcy or
liquidation.
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Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to interest rate risk.

Although we have substantially reduced our variable rate indebtedness, our borrowings under our
credit facilities are at variable rates of interest. An increase of 1% in interest rates would result in an
additional $100,000¢ of annual interest expense for each $10.0 million in borrowings under such facilities.
We are thus exposed to interest rate risk to the extent of our borrowings under the credit facilities.

We will rely significantly on the funds received from our subsidiaries to meet our debt service obligations,
but our subsidiaries may not be able to distribute sufficient funds to us.

Although we are an operating company, a significant amount of our revenue is generated by our
subsidiaries. For the year ended December 31, 2006, 19.1% of our net sales was generated by our
subsidiaries. As a result, our ability to satisfy our debt service obligations will depend significantly on our
receipt of dividends or other intercompany transfers of funds from our operating subsidiaries. The
payment of dividends to us by our subsidiaries is contingent upon the earnings of those subsidiaries and is
subject to various business considerations as well as certain contractual provisions which may restrict the
payment of dividends and the transfer of assets to us. In the event of a subsequent bankruptcy, liquidation
or recrganization of our subsidiaries, claims of creditors of our subsidiaries will generally have priority as
to the assets of such subsidiaries over our claims as the holder of the equity of our subsidiaries.

The lack of an established trading market for our securities may adversely affect their liquidity.

None of our securities currently are listed or traded on any nationally recognized securities market or
exchange. Although we are taking steps to permit our Series AA Preferred Stock to be quoted on the
NASDAQ OTC Bulletin Board, there can be no assurance that an active or liquid trading market will
develop for these securities. Until there is an established trading market, holders of our securities may find
it difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations for the price of our securities.

We do not anticipate paying dividends.

We do not anticipate making cash dividends or other distributions on our equity securities in the
foreseeable future and covenants in certain debt instruments to which we are a party may restrict or ability
to do so. As a result, the liquidity of our securities may be adversely affected.

Our common stock is subject to significant dilution.

If our Series AA Preferred Stock has not been redeemed or repurchased by the fifth anniversary of
the Effective Date of the Plan, the holders of at least 40% of the outstanding shares of Series AA
Preferred Stock will have the right to cause all of the outstanding Series AA Preferred Stock to be
converted into a number of shares of common stock that will dilute the ownership of the existing common
stock to .01% or less, thus rendering such existing commeon stock essentially worthless. The terms of our
debt instruments currently prohibit us from redeeming or repurchasing the Series AA Preferred Stock.

The interest of JP Moargan as a controlling stockholder may differ from the interests of other securities
holders.

As of March 13, 2007, JP Morgan owned approximately 12.48% of our Series AA Preferred Stock and
approximately 50.09% of our New Common Stock. Under the terms of our Stockholders’ Agreement
dated July 18, 2006 (the “Stockholders’ Agreement), those affiliates have the right to designate 5 out of the
7 members of our board of directors and thereby have effective control of us. As the holders of a
significant percentage of our equity securities, the interests of JP Morgan may not in all cases be aligned
with the other holders of our securities.
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Risks related to our business

Continued increases in resin prices or the loss of a key resin supplier could lead to increased costs and
lower profit margins.

Polyethylene, PVC, polypropylene and other resins and additives constitute the major raw materials
for our products. We purchase much of our resin from major oil companies and petrochemical companies
in North America. We also purchase a portion of our supply from manufacturers located outside North
America, as well as non-prime resins purchased from secondary market brokers in North America and we
are now one of the largest buyers of Middle Eastern film-grade resins. For the year ended December 31,
2006, raw material costs, which consist primarily of resin costs, comprised approximately 67% of our total
cost of goods sold. Significant increases in the price of resins increases our costs, reduces our operating
margins and impairs our ability to service debt unless we are able to pass all of these cost increases on to
our customers. The price of resin is a function of, among other things, manufacturing capacity, demand,
and the price of ethylene feed stocks. Resin shortages or significant increases in the price of resin could
have a significant adverse effect on our business. Since the middle of 2002, we have experienced a period of
significant uncertainty with respect to resin supplies and prices. High global energy prices have had
significant impact on the price and supply of resins in 2006.

Major suppliers of resin have implemented price increases to cover their increases in feedstock costs,
and to improve their operating margins as capacity utilization increases. Due in part to consolidation in the
resin supply industry, suppliers have resisted the customer’s efforts to limit or defer the effect of these
increases. Conversely, the prices of our products generally fluctuate with the price of resins. We estimate
that approximately half of our sales are made on a transactional basis, which allows us to pass through
resin price increases, although competitive market conditions in our industry from time to time limit our
ability to pass the full cost of higher resin pricing through to our customers immediately or completely. The
other approximately one half of our sales are made pursuant to customer contracts, most of which dictate
the timing in our ability to pass through the increase. A portion of these contracts have been renegotiated
1o allow resin cost changes to be passed along on a monthly basis, with some allowing cost changes to be
passed through quarierly and a small number requiring a longer delay. In combination, the cost to the
Company of the gap between the speed in which resin price changes are passed on to us and the time in
which we can pass these cost changes on to our customers has an impact on both our results of operations
and our working capital needs. This trend is industry wide and its impact has been significant in 2006.
Although we believe that the renegotiation of some customer contracts should reduce the impact of resin
price changes in the future, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in passing through such
costs to our customers. '

As one of the largest consumers of packaging resin in the United States, we are working with our
suppliers to minimize the effects and the timing of the pass through of increased resin costs and to
maximize the likelihood that resin supplies continue to be available to us in sufficient quantities and on
timetables necessary to meet the needs of our customers. We have an aggressive program using materials
engineering and substitution to maximize our operational flexibility, enabling increased purchases of non-
1J.S. sourced and nen-prime resins. We are becoming one of the largest buyers of off-spec resins and
secondary markets resins and we have installed extra silos, blending equipment and film quality inspection
equipment to precisely control the blended use of lower cost resins. We also regularly evaluate commodity
hedging, collar agreements, and other protective strategies and will implement them if and when
appropriate and cost effective.
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We operate in highly competitive markets and our customers may not continue to purchase our products,
which could lead to our having reduced revenues and loss of market share.

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive on the basis of service, product quality,
product innovation and price. Small and medium-sized manufacturers that compete primarily in regional
markets service a large portion of the film and flexible packaging market, and there are relatively few large
national manufacturers. In addition to competition from many smaller competitors, we face strong
competition from a number of large film and flexible packaging companies. Some of our competitors are
substantially larger, are more diversified, and have greater resources than we have, and, therefore, may
have certain competitive advantages.

If we lose one or more of our major customers, our results of operations and our ability to service our
indebtedness could be adversely affected.

Although no single customer accounted for more than 10% of our net sales for the year ended
December 31, 2006, we are dependent upon a limited number of large customers with substantial
purchasing power for a significant percentage of our sales. Our top ten customers accounted for
approximately 28.7% of our net sales in 2006. Several of our largest customers satisfy some of their film
requirements by manufacturing film themselves. The loss of one or more major customers, or a material
reduction in sales to these customers as a result of competition from other film manufacturers, insocurcing
of film requirements or other factors, would have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and
on our ability to service our indebtedness, See Item 7, “Management’s discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations” and Item 1, “Business—Products, markets and customers.”

Our ongoing efforts to achieve cost savings may not improve our operating results.

We regularly evaluate our operations in order to identify potential cost savings. From time to time, we
implement plant restructurings or other initiatives designed to improve the efficiency of our operations and
reduce our costs. These initiatives may not result in cost savings, however, particularly if our estimates and
assumptions relating to the anticipated cost savings prove to be incorrect. Further, even if a cost savings
initiative is successful, we may not be able to improve our operating results as a result of other factors
discussed in this report, many of which are beyond our control, such as a reduction in the demand for our
products or increases in raw material costs.

We may not be able to adequately protect our intellectual property, which could cause our revenues to
decrease.

We rely on patents, trademarks and licenses to protect our intellectual property, which is significant to
our business, We also rely on unpatented proprietary know-how, continuing technological innovation and
other trade secrets to develop and maintain our competitive position. We routinely seek to protect our
patents, trademarks and other intellectual property, but our precautions may not provide meaningful
protection against competitors or protect the value of our trademarks. In addition to our own patents,
trade secrets and proprietary know-how, we license from third parties the right to use some of their
intellectual property. We routinely enter into confidentiality agreements to protect our trade secrets and
proprietary know-how. However, these agreements may be breached, may not provide meaningful
protection or may not contain adequate remedies for us if they are breached.

Any future acquisitions may not be successfully integrated with our business and could cause our revenues
to decrease, operating costs to increase or reduce cash flows.

Our efforts to integrate any businesses acquired in the future may not result in increased profits.
Difficulties encountered in any transition and integration process for newly acquired companies could
cause revenues to decrease, operating costs to increase or reduce cash flows.
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Our operations outside of the United States are subject to additional currency exchange and other risks
that could adversely affect our results of operations.

We are subject to the risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates due to our global operations.
We manufacture and sell our products in North America, Latin America, Europe and Australia. As a
result, our financial results could be significantly affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency
exchange rates or weak economic conditions in foreign markets in which we manufacture and distribute
our products. Our operating results are primarily exposed to changes in exchange rates between the
U.S. dollar and Canadian currency.

If we do not maintain good relationships with our employees, our business could be adversely affected by a
loss of revenues, increased costs or reduced profitability.

As of March 1, 2007, we had approximately 3,073 employees, of which approximately 872 employees
were subject to a total of 8 collective bargaining agreements that expire on various dates between 2007 and
2010. The agreement covering our Chippewa Falls union facility was recently renewed and expires
March 2, 2008. We aiso entered into a new agreement with our Toronto union group which expires on
February 19, 2010. Our Calhoun, Kent, and Australia union facilities have agreements with expiration
dates in 2007. Also, it was announced in early 2007 that the Langley union facility will be closing
during 2007.

The cost of complying with federal and state environmental laws could be significant and increase our
operating costs.

Complying with existing and future environmental laws and regulations that affect our business could
impose material costs and liabilities on us. Our manufacturing operations are subject to certain federal,
state, local and foreign laws, regulations, rules and ordinances relating to pollution, the protection of the
environment and the generation, storage, handling, transportation, treatment, disposal and remediation of
hazardous substances and waste materials. In the ordinary course of business, we are subject to periodic
environmental inspections and monitoring by governmental enforcement authorities. We could incur
substantial costs, including fines and civil or criminal sanctions, as a result of actual or alleged violations of
environmental laws. In addition, our production facilities require environmental permits that are subject to
revocation, modification and renewal. Violations of environmental permits can also result in substantial
fines and civil or criminal sanctions. The ultimate costs under environmental laws and the timing of such
costs are difficult to predict and potentially significant expenditures could be required in order to comply
with environmental laws that may be adopted or imposed in the future.

Other Uncertainties

In addition to the factors described above, we face a number of uncertainties, including: (1) general
economic and business conditions, particularly a continuing economic downturn; (2) industry trends;
(3) changes in demand for our products; (4) potential legislation and regulatory changes; (5) new
technologies; (6) changes in distribution channels or competitive conditions in the markets or countries
where we operate; and (7} changes in our business strategy or development plans.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease our principal executive offices located at 1475 Woodfield Road, Suite 700, Schaumburg,
IL 60173. We own most of the improved real property and other assets used in our operations. We also
lease all or part of six of the sites at which we have manufacturing operations and warehouse and office
space at various locations. We consider the condition of our plants, warchouses and other properties and
the other assets owned or leased by us to be generally good.

Since 2001, we have undertaken an effort to maximize the efficiency of our facilities by closing and
disposing of a number of facilities. Production from these facilities was moved in large part to plants that
were not operating at capacity. In 2006, we sold the land and unused building in Merced, California. In
2005, we sold the intellectual property, working capital and equipment assets used in our Alliant
operations in Shelbyville, Indiana. During 2004, we closed our Harrisville, Rhode Island manufacturing
facility and transferred production to more efficient plants and we also acquired ownership of that portion
of our Macedon, New York facility that we previously leased from ExxonMobil Oil Corporation. Further,
in 2007, we also plan to consolidate our plants located in Langley, BC and Barrie, ON into other facilities
as part of a Canadian restructuring plan. Sce Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this report.

We have an annual film production capacity of approximately one billion pounds. Our principal
manufacturing plants are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, we own each of these properties.

PRODUCTS
Barrie, Canada *+............ PVC and polyethylene films
Bloomington, Indiana *........ Barrier and converter films
Calhoun, Georgia............. PVC films
Chippewa Falls, Wisconsin. . ... Converter, industrial and personal care films
Dalton, Georgia . ............. Converter, barrier, and medical films
Danville, Kentucky *.......... Converter, barrier, and custom films
Danville, Kentucky............ Stretch and custom films
Deerfield, Massachusetts . .. . .. Converter and industrial films
Harrington, Delaware . ... ... .. Personal care, medical, and custom films
Kent, Washington ............ Printed bags and rollstock
Langley, British Columbia *+ .. Printed bags and rollstock
Lewisburg, Tennessee ......... Stretch films
Macedon, New York .......... Printed bags and rollstock
McAlester, Oklahoma......... Personal care and medical films
Mexico City, Mexico *......... Personal care films, printed bags and rollstock
Newport News, Virginia ....... Research facility and pilot plant
Odon, Indiana................ Barrier films
Orillia, Canada (two plants) * .. Converter films
Phillipsburg, Germany. ........ PVC Films
Preston, Australia ¥ ... ... ... .. PVC films
Toronto, Canada ............. PVC and stretch films
Washington, Georgia.......... Personal care, medical, and agricultural films

*  Indicates a leased building. In the case of Orillia, Canada, one of the two plants is leased. In Danville,
Kentucky, one of three plants is leased.

+ The Company intends to close this plant in 2007,

17




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On January 3, 2006, Pliant and ten subsidiaries filed for bankruptcy under the Bankruptcy Code in the
Bankruptcy Court. The cases are being jointly administered under the caption “In re: Pliant Corporation,
et al., Case No. 06-10001”. Three of its subsidiaries with Canadian operations commenced ancillary
proceedings in a Canadian court to recognize the Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings as “foreign
proceedings” pursuant to Canada’s Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (“CCAA”). The Company’s
operations in Mexico, Germany, and Australia were not included in the Chapter 11 filing and are not
subject to the reorganization proceedings.

On June 19, 2006, the Company filed the Plan with the Bankruptcy Court, which was approved by the
Bankruptcy Court on June 23, 2006. On July 18, 2006 the Company consummated its reorganization
through a series of transactions contemplated in the Plan and it filed with the Bankruptcy Court a notice
announcing the effectiveness of the Plan,

As a consequence of the Company’s commencement of these bankruptcy proceedings, substantially all
pending claims and litigation against it in the United States and Canada were automatically stayed
pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code and CCAA. These stays were lifted upon the Company’s emergence
from bankruptcy.

The Company has worked diligently in an effort to analyze each of the claims filed in its Chapter 11
cases, and has already made significant progress in reconciling such claims with its books and records.
Moreover, the Company has been steadily making distributions to the holders of many such claims, as well
as to creditors appearing in its schedules, and has filed objections to certain claims as necessary. To date,
the Company has filed five omnibus objections to claims, resulting in a reduction to the claims register of
more than 80 claims totaling more than $86.5 million, which were primarily claims made by equity holders
who received distributions of new securities according to the Company’s Plan. In addition, the Company
has paid more than $47 million to satisfy contract cure amounts, vendor trade agreements, and other
unsecured claims. The Company estimates that there are approximately $2.5 million in non-litigation
claims remaining for processing. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis—Overview” for
additionat information.

The Company filed a patent infringement complaint against MSC Marketing & Technology, Inc.,
d/b/a Sigma Stretch Film and Atlantis Plastics, Inc. on May 19, 2004, Case No. 04-C-3509 (N.D. I11.). The
Company sells a patented plastic film that is used to wrap pallet loads. The patent infringement lawsuit was
filed to protect the Company’s exclusive right to this film’s patented features, which provide the Company’s
product with advantages in this industry. The Company has agreed to a settlement of the lawsuit with MSC
Marketing & Technology, Inc., in which MSC Marketing & Technology, Inc. will pay a fee to license the
patent from the Company. The Company has filed an appeal to the Federal Circuit regarding a claim
construction issue relating to Atlantis Plastics, Inc., which is pending.

In June 2005, the Company received an information request from the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency Region 4 (the “EPA™) relating to the Constitution Road Drum Site (the “Site”}. The EPA stated
that the Company may have arranged for disposal of non-hazardous waste at the former Southeastern
Research and Recovery (“SRR”) facility in Atlanta, Georgia. SRR operated the Site as a RCRA transfer
facility and apparently abandoned its operations, A group of potentially responsible parties are conducting
a removal action pursuant to an administrative order on consent {the “Consent Order”) with EPA that also
resolves EPA’s claims for past costs and future oversight costs in connection with the Site. The Company is
participating in the Consent Order. The Company estimates its share of the costs of the removal action and
EPA’s costs will be approximately $28,000.

On June 30, 2005, George Miller filed a complaint against the Company, Case No. 05-0580 (Ontario,
Canada Superior Court of Justice). In this lawsuit, Miller sought general damages of $200,000 and
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aggravated and punitive damages of $2 million plus costs for constructive discharge. This case settled in
December 2006 for $114,872.75.

On August 11, 2005, Montague Claybrook, Chapter 7 Trustee for BakeLine Industries, Inc. filed a
bankruptcy preference complaint against the Company, Adversary Proceeding 05-52265 - PBL
(Bankruptcy Court, District of Delaware). The complaint alleges preferential transfers of $274,500 to the
Company. The Company has responded to the complaint, raising new value and ordinary course defenses,
Discovery in this case has been concluded and the plaintiff has not resumed the proceeding after
confirmation of the Plan.

On August 30, 2005, Tredegar Film Products Corp. filed a complaint against the Company, Case
No. 05 CH 14715 (Cook County, Illinois Circuit Court, Chancery Division). In this lawsuit, Tredegar seeks
compensatory damages in excess of $30,000 and $2 million in punitive damages against the Company for
alleged misappropriation and misuse of alleged Tredegar trade secrets related to the hiring by the
Company of two former Tredegar employees. On May 2, 2006, Tredegar filed a First Amended Verified
Complaint, which added several allegations but did not make any additional claims against the Company.
The case is in the discovery stage.

The Company is involved in ongoing litigation matters from time to time in the ordinary course of its
business. In the Company’s opinion, none of such litigation is material to its financial condition or results
of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The Company did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of
2006.
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PART I1

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS

Market Information, Holders and Dividends

At March 13, 2007, we had 100,003 shares of New Common Stack outstanding and there were
309 holders of record of our New Common Stock. There is no established trading market for our New
Common Stock.

At March 13, 2007, we had 335,592 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock outstanding and there were
17 holders of record of our Series AA Preferred Stock. Although we are taking steps to permit our
Series AA Preferred Stock to be quoted for trading on the NASDAQ OTC Bulletin Board, there is
currently no established trading market for our Series AA Preferred Stock.

At March 13, 2007, we had 8,000 shares of our Series M Preferred Stock, par value $.01 per share
(“Series M Preferred Stock™) outstanding and there were 11 holders of record of our Series M Preferred
Stock.

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock or our preferred stock during
the last two years and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. The indentures
governing our ontstanding debt contain certain restrictions on the payment of cash dividends with respect
1o our common stock and preferred stock, and our credit facilities also restrict such payments. In addition,
the terms of our outstanding Series AA Preferred Stock restrict the payment of cash dividends with respect
to our New Common stock unless it has paid or declared and set aside for payment full cumulative
dividends on the shares of Series AA Preferred Stock. Dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock are paid
only under certain circumstances including redemption of the shares of Series AA Preferred Stock.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On July 18, 2006, pursuant to our Plan, we issued 100,003 shares of New Common Stock for holders of
our Old Common Stock and to other stakeholders. We also issued approximately 335,600 shares of
Series AA Preferred Stock to certain of our stakeholders which we registered on November 17, 2006 on
Form 8-A.

On February 20, 2007, we issued 8,000 shares of our Series M Preferred Stock to certain of our
employees pursuant to our 2006 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan. The shares were issued for an aggregate
purchase price of $160,000. The issuance of the shares was exempt from the registration requirements of
the Securities Act under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act and Rule 506 promulgated by the Commission
thereunder.

Prior to emerging from bankruptey, we had a 2004 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan pursuant to which
we sold 720 shares of Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock, no par value (“Series B Preferred Stock™) to
our Chief Executive Officer and certain other officers in private transactions at $162 per share, which was
determined to be the fair market value of those shares based on an independent appraisal received by the
Board. The issuance of these shares was exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act
pursuant to Section 4(2} thereof. These shares are no longer outstanding.

Equity Compensation Plans

As required by [tem 201(d) of SEC Regulation S-K, a table presenting securities authorized for
issuance under equity compensation plans is included in Item 12,
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data have been summarized from our consolidated financial
statements and are qualified in their entirety by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, such
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this report and in Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Years ended
December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Statement of operations data:(1)

Netsales ..o, $1,159.0 $1,072.8 $ 968.7 § 8945 §$850.9
Costofsales ......... ... ..o, 1,017.8 939.7 8268 7582 6937
Grossprofit.............cii i 141.2 133.1 141.9 1363 157.2
Total operating expenses(2)................... 2720 92.0 90.0 128.1 126.2
Operating income (loss) ......... ... .ovuinn. (130.8) 41.1 51.9 82 310
Interest expense(3)(4). .......... ...l (79.9)  (155.1) (145.7) (964} (75.3)
Other income (expense), net .................. 21 4.1 0.7) 0.5 23
Gain on extinguishment of debt ............... 393.7 — — — —
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income taxes. . ..........coiiiiiin, 185.1 (109.9) (94.6) (87.8) (42.0)
Income tax expense (benefit).................. — 2.0 1.6 52 (1.5)
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . .... 185.1 (111.9) (96.2) (93.0y  (40.5)
Loss from discontinued operations. ............ — (1.1) (17.7) (21.3) 29
Netincome (loss).......... ..., $ 185.1 $ (113.0) $(113.9) $(114.3) $(43.4)

Other financial data:

EBITDA from continuing operations(5)........ § 3056 $ 858 § 922 § 555 § 790
Net cash provided by (used in) operating

ACHIVILIES. ...t e 59.6 (57.1) (1.4) (142) 524
Net cash used in investing activities ............ (37.8) (283) (176) (170 (552)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities ........ ... ... iiiiii e, (27.9) 92,7 255 46.0 124
Depreciation and amortization ... ............. 40.6 40.5 41.1 46.9 45.7
Impairment of goodwill(2) .................... 110.0 — — 18.3 8.6
Impairment of fixed assets(2) ................. 03 — 0.4 4.8 -
Restructuring and other costs(2}............... (0.6) 2.4 2.1 12.6 30.1
Reorganization costs. . .............ovviann.n, 82.4 3.8 —_ — —
Capital expenditures . ............cooovvvenn.. 40.5 335 24.1 17.0 49.2

December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

Balance sheet data (at period end):

Cash and cash equivalents ................... $ 42 § 128 § S6 $ 33 % 16
Working capital{6).......................... 122.7 (833.4) 78.5 70.7 45.8
Totalassets ..........cooiviiniiiniinen.. 677.8 820.9 777.1 786.8 853.2
Totaldebt .......... ... . .. ... 737.6 981.7 842.3 783.7 736.4
Total liabilities(7). ..................oooll 9415  1,4558  1,291.3 992.4 960.1
Redeemable preferred stock(8). .............. 198.9 0.1 0.1 188.2 150.8
Redeemable common stock.................. 0.0 6.6 6.6 13.0 13.0
Stockholders’ equity (deficit}................. (263.8)  (641.7)  (521.0) (407.1) (270.9)

{1) On September 30, 2004, we sold substantizlly all of the assets of Pliant Solutions Corporation (“Pliant
Solutions™) which was previously reported as one of our operating segments. In accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Pliant Solutions is being accounted
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for as a discontinued operation and, accordingly, its assets are segregated from continuing operations,
and its operating results are segmented and reported as discontinued operations in all periods
presented. Net sales of Pliant Solutions for the nine months ended September 30, 2004 were

$22.5 million; net sales of Pliant Solutions for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 were
$34.9 million; and net sales of Pliant Solutions for the eight months ended December 31, 2002 were
$28.3 million. No tax benefits were recorded on the losses from discontinued operations or the loss on
sale of discontinued operations as realization of these tax benefits is not certain.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 include goodwill impairment of
$110.0 million in our Specialty Films and Printed Products segments and reorganization expenses of
$82.4 million. The reorganization costs include the write-off of $15.8 million of unamortized
capitalized financing fees associated with the issuance of our 2000/2002 Notes (defined below) and our
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (defined below), $5.8 million in unamortized original
issuance discount, net of premiums associated with the issuance of our 2000/2002 Notes and

$24.6 million associated with the issuance of our Series A Preferred Stock (defined below), $28.9 in
legal and financial advisory fees incurred in connection with the Company’s bankruptcy procecdings
and $4.0 miilion in fees paid to bondholders in consideration for their non-objection to the Company’s
Plan and resolution of disputes pertaining thereto, $1.5 million write-off of capitalized financing fees
on the DIP Credit Facility (defined below) and $1.8 million in Emergence Bonus Plan (defined below)

. payments.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2005 include $3.8 million of legal and
financial fees associated with reorganization and restructuring and other costs of $2.4 million,
including $2.1 million in lease termination costs associated with our Shelbyville, Indiana facility and
$0.3 million severance costs associated with the sale of our Alliant business.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2004, include restructuring and other costs
of $2.1 million consisting of fixed asset impairment charges of $1.4 million and restructuring and other
costs of $0.7 million related to closure of our Harrisville, Rhode Island facility. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, restructuring and other costs of $12.6 million were included which consisted of
$2.0 million for fixed asset impairment charges related to the closure of our facility in Shelbyville, IN,
$0.7 million related to the closure of our facility in Brazil consisting primarily of fixed asset
impairment charges, $2.6 million related to the closure and transfer of the production from our facility
in Fort Edward, NY to our facilities in Mexico and Danville, KY, $1.4 million related to the
consolidation of two plants in Mexico, $2.6 million related to the closure and transfer of production
from our Merced, CA facility, and other costs related to the closure of our Shelbyville, IN facility, our
Singapore office and a section of our Toronto facility. In addition, during 2003 we accrued the present
value of future lease payments on three buildings we do not currently occupy in an amount equal to
$3.3 million and a provision for litigation of $7.2 million.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003 also included $18.3 million for the
impairment of goodwill, consisting of $10 million in our Engineered Films segment for Canada,
$7.3 million in our Printed Products segment for Mexico and $1.0 million in our Industrial Films
segment for Germany and Australia, and $4.8 million for impairment of fixed assets, $2.4 million in
our Engineered Films segment and $1.2 million in both our Specialty Films and Industrial

Films segments.

Total operating expenses for 2002 include $30.1 million of restructuring and other costs, including
$14.8 million related to the closure of our plant in Merced, CA, a portion of our plant in

Shelbyville, IN, a part of our plant in Toronto, Canada, and one of our plants in Mexico. In addition,
these costs reflect $7.9 million for the costs of relocating several of our production lines related to
plant closures and costs associated with production rationalizations at several plants. Total operating
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expenses for 2002 also include $7.4 million related to severance costs, including benefits for several
companywide workforce reduction programs that were completed in 2002.

Total operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2002 also included $8.6 million for the
impairment of goodwill associated with Mexico in our Printed Products segment.

In May 2003, we prepaid a total of $75 million of revolving loans and $165 million of our term loans
with the net cash proceeds from the issuance of $250 million of senior secured notes. As a result,
interest expense for 2003 included a $5.3 million charge for expensing a portion of previously
capitalized financing fees incurred in connection with our credit facilities. In February 2004, we paid
off our then existing term loan facility of $219.6 million and revolving loan facility of $20 million with
proceeds from the issuance of $306 million senior secured discount notes. As a result, interest expense
in 2004 included a $7.9 million charge for expensing a portion of our previously capitalized financing
fees.

In 2006, 2005 and 2004, we recognized $0.3 million, $40.8 million and $35.3 million, respectively, of
dividends and accretion on redeemable preferred stock as interest expense in accordance with
SFAS 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.

EBITDA from continuing operations reflects income from continuing operations before interest
expense, income taxes, depreciation, and amortization. We believe that EBITDA information
enhances an investor’s understanding of our ability to satisfy principal and interest obligations with
respect to our indebtedness and to utilize cash for other purposes. EBITDA does not represent and
should not be considered as an alternative to net income or cash flows from operating activities as
determined by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies. In addition, there may be contractual, legal, economic or
other reasons which may prevent us from satisfying principal and interest obligations with respect to
our indebtedness and may require us to allocate funds for other purposes. A reconciliation of
EBITDA to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities as set forth in our consolidated
statements of cash flows is as follows:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollars in millions)

EBITDA from continuing operations ............ $3056 % 858 § 922 $555 § 790
Adjustments:

INtereSt eXpense . .. ..ccoovviiinine i aniaans (79.9) (155.1) (145.7) (%6.4) (75.3)
Income tax (expense) benefit ................. — (2.0) (1.6) (5.2) 15
Impairment of fixed assets. . .................. 0.3 — 0.4 4.8 —
Preferred dividends and aceretion on preferred

shares ... ... oo 0.3 40.8 353 — —
Amortization of deferred financing costs and

accretion of debt discount. ................. 226 15.2 351 9.9 3.7
Payment-in-kind intereston debt. . ............ 327 19.7 — —
Write-off of original issue discount and premium . 305 —_ — — —
Deferred income taxes. . ........cooinioan . 23 0.9 02y 15 (54)
Provision for loss on accounts receivable. .. ... .. 0.4 2.6 L6 1.7 2.6
Gain on extinguishmentofdebt .. ............. (393.7) —_ — — —
Non-cash plant closingcosts . ... .............. — — 14 3 9.7
Write-down of impaired goodwill and intangible

.12 1 110.0 — — 183 8.6
Curtailmentgain. ...................... ... 00 — —_ 1.6 — —_
(Gain) loss on disposal of assets............... (1.9 (4.5) 0.5 1.4 0.4
Minority interest. . ...... e — — 03 o1 (O
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of

effects of acquisitions ..................... 350 (605 (21.7y {(9.1) 277

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities.. 3 59.6 $ (57.1)§ (1.4) $(14.2) § 524
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(6) The working capital amount for 2005 includes $971.9 miilion of debt in defauit consisting of $130.9
million of revolving credit facility, $250 million in 11%% Senior Secured Notes, $269.8 million in
11%4% Senior Secured Notes, $7.0 million in 11% Senior Secured Discount Notes and $314.1 million
in Senior Subordinated debt.

(7) The Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 150 (“SFAS 150),
Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity, effective
January 1, 2004, As a result, our Series A Preferred Stock, which had an unconditional mandatory
redemption feature and certain Old Common Stock put for redemption, were recorded as liabilities
on the date of adoption. In addition, effective January 1, 2004, the dividends and accretion on the
Preferred Stock are included as a part of interest expense in the statement of operations. During 2006,
both the Series A Preferred Stock and Old Common Stock were exchanged for new equity securities,

(8) The amount presented includes proceeds of $141.0 million from the issuance of our Series A
Preferred Stock in 2000, 2001 and 2003, plus the accrued and unpaid dividends, less the unamortized
discount due to detachable warrants to purchase common stock issued in connection with our
preferred stock and unamortized issuance costs which were $76.3 million and $29.1 million,
respectively as of December 31, 2003. The amounts as of December 31, 2005 and 2004 includes
$0.1 million of proceeds from the sale of non-voting Series B Preferred Stock to selected officers of
the Company which were extinguished in 2006. The amount as of December 31, 2006 includes $178.8
million from the issuance of our Series AA Preferred Stock plus accrued and unpaid dividends of
$20.1 million.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The purpose of this section is to discuss and analyze our consolidated financial condition, liquidity and
capital resources and results of operations. This analysis should be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes included elsewhere in this report. This section contains certain
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of federal securities laws that involve risks and
uncertainties, including statements regarding our plans, objectives, goals, strategies and financial
performance. Our actual results could differ materially from the results anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a resuli of factors set forth under “Disclosure regarding forward-looking statements”
and Item 1A, “Risk factors™ and elsewhere in this report.

All references in this section to the consolidated financial statements or condensed consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report refer to those of Pliant and its
subsidiaries.

Company Profile

Pliant generates revenues, earnings and cash flows from the sale of film and flexible packaging
products throughout the world. We manufacture these products at 23 facilities located in the
United States, Australia, Canada, Germany and Mexico. Our sales have grown primarily as a result of
strategic acquisitions made over the past several years, increased levels of producticon at acquired facilities,
return on capital expenditures and the overall growth in the market for film and flexible packaging
products.

Overview
Reorganization

On January 3, 2006, Pliant and ten subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions in the Bankruptcy Court
seeking relief under the Bankruptcy Code. Three of our subsidiaries with Canadian operations commenced
ancillary proceedings in a Canadian court to recognize the Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings as “foreign
proceedings” pursuant to CCAA. Qur operations in Mexico, Germany, and Australia were not included in
the Chapter 11 filing.

On June 19, 2006, we filed with the Bankruptcy Court our Plan which was approved by the Bankrupicy
Court on June 23, 2006. On July 18, 2006, we consummated our reorganization through a series of
transactions contemplated in the Plan and we filed with the Bankruptcy Court a notice announcing the
effectiveness of the Plan.

Pursuant to the Plan, on July 13, 2006, we effected the following transactions:
« changed our state of incorporation from Utah to Delaware;
+ extinguished our Series B Preferred Stock;

» issued (i) an aggregate principal amount of $34,967,000 of 13% Senior Subordinated Notes due
2010 (the “New Subordinated Notes™), (ii) 335,592 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, and
(i) 100,003 shares of New Common Stock in exchange for (A} all of our 13% Senior Subordinated
Notes due 2010 (the “2000/2002 Notes™), (B) all of our Series A Cumulative Exchangeable
Redeemable Preferred Stock, no par value (the “Series A Preferred Stock™), (C) our Old Common
Stock and (D) warrants to purchase our Old Common Stock;

« made cash payments to the applicable trustee of (A) $3,200,000 for further distribution to the
holders of the 2000/2002 Notes and (B) $18,529,375.55 ($4 million of which was a consent fee and

25




the balance of which was the missed March 1, 2006 interest payment and the interest owed on that
interest payment) for further distribution to the holders of our 11% % Senior Secured Notes due
2009 (the “2003 Notes™”) and reinstated the 2003 Notes;

e reinstated our 11.35% (formerly 114%%) Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2009 (the “2004
Notes”) and our 11.85% (formerly 11% %) Senior Secured Notes due 2009 (the “Amended 2004
Notes”) and increased the interest rate on the 2004 Notes and the Amended 2004 Notes by .225%;

» entered into (i) a Working Capital Credit Agreement, among the Company, certain of its
subsidiaries, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA, as administrative agent, and
Merrill Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger and book manager (the “Working
Capital Credit Agreement™), and (ii) a Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, among Pliant Corporation
Pty Ltd., Pliant Corporation of Canada Ltd., Pliant Film Products GmbH and Aspen Industrial,
S.A. de C.V,, as borrowers, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA, as administrative
agent, and Merrill Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger and book manager (the
“Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, and together with the Working Capital Credit Agreement, the
“Exit Credit Facilities™) to replace the amended revolving credit facility dated November 21, 2005
(the “Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”) and the Senior Secured, Super Priority, Priming
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement dated as of January 4, 2006 (the “DIP Credit Facility™);
and

¢ entered into the Stockholders’ Agreement with respect to the New Common Stock and a
Registration Rights Agreement dated July 18, 2006 (the “Registration Rights Agreement”) with
respect to the Series AA Preferred Stock.

As a result, the prior credit facilities, the indenture dated May 31, 2000 governing the 2000 Notes (the
“2000 Indenture”) and the indénture dated April 10, 2002 governing the 2002 Notes (the “2002
Indenture™) were terminated, except, with respect to the indentures, to the extent necessary to permit the
trustee under such indentures to make distributions to the holders of the 2000/2002 Notes under the Plan.
In addition, on July 18, 2006, the Company’s Deferred Cash Incentive Plan and 2006 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan, became effective.

As a consequence of our commencement of bankruptcy proceedings, substantially all pending claims
and litigation against us in the United States were automatically stayed pursuant the Bankruptcy Code. In
addition, as a consequence of the commencement of the proceedings in Canada, substantially all pending
claims and litigation against our subsidiaries operating in Canada also were stayed by order of the
Canadian court. Upon our emergence from bankruptcy, these stays were lifted.

We have worked diligently in an effort to analyze each of the claims filed in our Chapter 11 cases, and
have already made significant progress in reconciling such claims with our books and records. Moreover,
we have been steadily making distributions to the holders of many such claims, as well as to creditors
appearing in our schedules, and have filed objections to certain claims as necessary. To date, we have filed
five omnibus objections to claims, resulting in a reduction to the claims register of more than 80 claims
totaling more than $86.5 million, which were primarily claims made by equity holders who received
distributions of new securities according to the Company’s Plan. In addition, we have paid more than $47
million to satisfy contract cure amounts, vendor trade agreements, and other unsecured claims. We
estimate that there are approximately $2.5 million in non-litigation claims remaining for processing.

We used the bankruptcy proceedings to complete our financial restructuring, resulting in a less
leveraged capital structure that is expected to facilitate greater capital investment in our business. See
Item 1A, “Risk Factors” for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties facing our business as a result of our
emergence from bankruptcy.
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Operating Performance

For 2006, the our net sales were $1,159.0 million, up $86.2 million or 8.0% over 2005. Overall, our
average selling price per pound increased by 7.8% primarily due to pass-through of resin cost increases
along with favorable product mix changes. Volumes increased by approximately 2% year-over-year with
slightly over 1.5% of this 2% increase in pounds sold offset by the impact at a mix shift toward down-
gauged products.

Segment profit, defined as net income adjusted for interest expense, income taxes, depreciation,
amortization, restructuring and other non-cash charges (principally the impairment of goodwill, intangible
assets and fixed assets), was $104.0 million in 2006, up $12.0 miltion or 13.0% from 2005. Sales volume and
mix contributed $8.1 million of additional profit while operational excellence programs, including
significant reductions in waste, improved by $2.0 million. Selling, general and administrative costs were
lower than the prior year by $5.7 million. Offsetting these improvements was a $2.1 million in additional
freight and utilities costs and $1.7 million of increased packaging costs.

Critical Accounting Policies

In the ordinary course of business, we make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reporting of results of operations and financial position in the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Actual results could differ significantly from
those estimates under different assumptions and conditions. We believe the following discussion addresses
our most critical accounting policies. These policies require management to exercise judgments that are
often difficult, subjective and complex due to the necessity of estimating the effect of matters that are
inherently uncertain.

Bankruptcy proceedings. The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, which contemplates continuity of operations and realization of assets and liquidation of
liabilities in the ordinary course of business. We and ten of our subsidiaries filed for protection under the
Bankruptcy Code in January 2006. On June 19, 2006, we filed with the Plan which was approved by the
Bankruptcy Court on June 23, 2006. On July 18, 2006, we consummated our reorganization through a
series of transactions contemplated in the Plan and emerged from bankruptey.

Revenue recognition.  Sales revenue is recognized when title transfers, the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer, the price is fixed and determinable and collection of the
related receivable is probable, which is generally at the time of shipment.

We have several rebate programs with certain of our customers. These costs are estimated at the time
of sale and are reported as a reduction to sales revenue. Periodic adjustments are made as a part of our
ongoing evaluation of all receivable related allowances.

Accounts receivable. 'We evaluate accounts receivable on a quarterly basis and review any significant
customers with delinquent balances to evaluate future collectibility. We base our evaluations on legal
issues (such as bankruptcy status), past history, current financial and credit agency reports, and the
experience of the credit representatives. We reserve accounts that we deem to be uncollectible in the
quarter in which we make the determination. We maintain additional reserves based on our historical bad
debt experience. We believe, based on past history and proven credit policies, that the net accounts
receivable as of December 31, 2006 are of good quality.

Goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets. Goodwill associated with the excess purchase price
over the fair value of assets acquired is currently not amortized. This is in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001.
Goodwill is currently tested annually for impairment or more frequently if circumstances indicate that they
may be impaired. Other identifiable intangible assets, such as customer lists, and other intangible assets are
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currently amortized on the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives. These assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may be less than the undiscounted future cash flows.

Retirement plans. The Company sponsors a salary deferral plan covering substantially all of its non-
union domestic employees. Plan participants may elect to make voluntary contributions to this plan up to
15% of their compensation. The Company matches employee contributions up to 3% of the participants’
compensation. The Company expensed approximately $2.4 million, $2.2 million and $1.7 million as its
contribution to this plan for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

We sponsor three noncontributory defined benefit pension plans covering domestic employees with
1,000 or more hours of service. We funds our plans in amouats to fulfill the minimum funding
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. Contributions are intended to not
only provide for benefits attributed to service to date but also for those expected to be earned in the future.
In the second quarter of 2004, we redesigned our retirement programs which led to the curtailment and
“freeze” of the pension plan for U.S. salaried employees effective June 30, 2004, We also sponsor a defined
benefit plan in Germany. The consolidated accrued net pension expense for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0.7 million, $0.4 Million and $2.0 million, respectively.

Employees in other foreign countries are covered by various post employment arrangements
consistent with local practices and regulations. Such obligations are not significant and are included in the
consolidated financial statements in other liabilities.

As part of the acquisition of Blessings Corporation in 1998, we assumed two supplemental retirement
pians covering certain former employees of Blessings Corporation. The liability was frozen at the time of
the acquisition and is included in other liabilities.

One element used in determining annual pension income and expense in according with accounting
rules is the expected rate of return on plan assets. The rate of investment return assumption was developed
through analysis of historical market returns, current market conditions, and the fund’s past experience.
Estimates of future market returns by asset category are lower than actual long-term historical returns in
order to generate a conservative forecast. Overall, it was projected that funds could achieve a 9.00% return
over time. This is consistent with the rates assumed in 2005 and 2004.

Qur investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of equity and debt securities. Furthermore,
equity investments are diversified across domestic and international stocks as well as large and small
capitalizations. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through quarterly
investment portfolio reviews. The target allocation of equity securities is 70 percent of the plan assets. The
target allocation of debt securities is 30 percent of the plan assets.

At the end of the year, we determine the discount rate to be used to calculate the present value of
pension plan liabilities. This discount rate is an estimate of the current interest rate at which the pension
liabilities could be effectively settled, In estimating this rate, we look to changes in the rates of return on
high quality, fixed investments that receive one of the highest ratings given by recognized rating agencies.
As of December 31st, these discount rates were 4.5% for 2006 and 2005 and 5.25% for 2004,

Insurance. Our insurance for workers’ compensation and employee-related health care benefits are
covered using high deductible insurance policies. A third-party administrator is used to process such
claims. We require all workers’ compensation claims to be reported within 24 hours. As a result, we accrue
our warkers’ compensation liability based upon the claim reserves established by the third-party
administrator each month. Our employee health insurance benefit liability is based on our historical claims
experience rate. Qur earnings would be impacted to the extent actual claims vary from historical
experience. We review our accruals associated with the exposure to these liabilities for adequacy at the end
of each reporting period.
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Inventory reserves.  Each quarter we review our inventory and identify slow moving and obsolete
items. Thereafter, we create allowances and reserves based on the realizable value of specific inventory
items.

Fixed asset impairments. We review our fixed assets at each manufacturing facility as a group of
assets with a combined cash flow. Any difference between the future cash flows and the carrying value of
the asset grouping is recorded as a fixed asset impairment. In addition, we periodically review any idle
production lines within a manufacturing facility to determine if the assets need to be disposed.

Deferred taxes. We record deferred tax assets and liabilities for the differences in the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets include
amounts for net operating loss, for¢ign tax credit and alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards.
Valuation allowances are recorded for amounts that management believes are not recoverable in future
periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

New accounting pronouncements In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R) (revised
December 2004) “SFAS 123(R)”), “Share-Based Payment”, which is a revision of SFAS 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes APB Opinicn No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” This statement requires that the fair value at the grant date resulting from all share-based
payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements. Further, SFAS 123(R) requires entities to
apply a fair-value based measurement method in accounting for these transactions. This value is recorded
over the vesting period. The Company adopted SFAS 123(R) effective January 1, 2006. No grants were
awarded or exercised in 2006 and all outstanding grants were forfeited in connection with our emergence
from bankruptcy. Had the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of the standard
would have been approximately the impact described in the disclosure of pro forma loss presented in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No. 48
(“FIN 48™), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The new FASB standard also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The
provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company
intends to adopt FIN 43 effective January 1, 2007 as required. The cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48
will be reported as an adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 (“SFAS 158”), “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88,
106, and 132(R).” SFAS 158 requires an employer to recognize a plan’s funded status in its statement of
financial position, measure a plan’s assets and obligations as of the end of the employer’s fiscal year and
recognize the changes in a defined benefit plan’s funded status in comprehensive income in the year in
which the changes occur. SFAS 158’s requirement to recognize the funded status of a benefit plan and new
disclosure requirements are effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. The
requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end
statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. The Company
adopted the balance sheet recognition provisions of SFAS No. 158 at December 31, 2006.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth the amount of certain statement of operations items and such amounts
as a percentage of net sales, for the periods indicated.

(Dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004
Netsales........oovviiiiinn it $1,159.0 100.0% $1,072.8 100.0% $968.7 100.0%
Costofsales ... 1,017.8 878% 9397 876% 8268 853%
Grossprofit..............ooooiiialt 1412 122% 133.1 124% 1419 147%
Selling, general and administrative and

research and developmentcosts ......... 80.0 6.9% 85.8 8.0% 815 9.0%
Restructuring and othercosts ............. (0.6) —% 24 02% 21 0.2%
Reorganization costs ..............ovuuins 82.3 7.1% 38 0.4% — —%
Impairment of goodwill. . ................. 110.0 9.5% — —% — —%
Impairment of fixed assets . ............... 0.3 —% — —% 04 0.1%
Total operating eXpenses ...........c...... 2720  23.5% 92.0 8.6% 90.0 9.3%
Operating (loss) income .................. $ (130.8) (11.3)%$ 411 3.8% § 519 5.4%

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Net sales. Net sales increased by $86.2 million, or 8.0%, to $1,159.0 miltion for the year ended
December 31, 2006 from $1,072.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase was
primarily due to a 7.8% increase in average selling price and a 0.3% increase in sales volumes. See
“Operating segment review” below for a detailed discussion of sales volumes and selling prices by segment
and division. ‘

Gross profit.  Gross profit increased by $8.1 million, or 6.1%, to $141.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, from $133.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase was
primarily due to $11.9 million from the successful pass through of resin price increases, volume increases
and improved mix toward value added products, offset by $2.1 million of incremental freight and utilities
costs and $1.7 million of incremental packaging costs.

Selling, general and administrative and research and development costs.  Selling, general and
administrative and research and development costs decreased by $5.8 million, or 6.8%, to $80.0 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 from $85.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This
decrease between years was primarily due to $1.3 million lower depreciation costs, $1.2 million less hiring
and relocation costs, $0.8 million less commissions and $1.7 million less legal and other costs.

Restructuring and other costs. Restructuring and other costs for the year ended December 31, 2006
were a net credit of $0.6 million, compared to a net charge of $2.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2005. During 2006, $0.7 million of the $1.0 million environmental reserves previously recorded in
connection with our Merced, California facilities shut down were reversed back to income because the
buyer of this real estate agreed to a $0.3 million purchase price adjustment to indemnify the Company
from future claims. Restructuring and other costs in 2005 included $2.1 million in lease termination costs
associated with equipment in our Shelbyville, Indiana facility and $0.3 million in severance costs associated
with our Alliant business which was sold in 2005.

Reorganization costs. Reorganization costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $82.3 million,
as compared to $3.8 million in 2005. Reorganization costs in 2006 include the write-off of $15.8 million of
unamortized capitalized financing fees associated with the issuance of our 2000/2002 Notes and our
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, $5.8 million in unamortized original issuance discount, net of
premiums associated with the issuance of our 2000/2002 Notes and $24.6 million associated with the
issuance of our Series A Preferred Stock, $28.9 in legal and financial advisory fees incurred in connection
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with our bankruptcy proceedings and $4.0 million in fees paid to bondholders in consideration for their
non-objection to the Plan and resolution of disputes pertaining thereto, $1.5 million write-off of capitalized
financing fees on the DIP Credit Facility and $1.8 million in Emergence Bonus Plan payments.

Operating income (loss). For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded an
opetrating loss of $130.8 million, primarily as a result of the writedown of $110.0 million of carrying vatue of
goodwill in our Specialty Films and Printed Products segments and reorganization and other costs of $82.4
million discussed above, compared to operating income of $41.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2005.

Interest expense.  Interest expense on current and long-term debt decreased by $34.6 million, or
30.3%, to $79.7 million for year ended December 31, 2006 from $114.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. This decrease was principally due to the discontinuance, effective January 3, 2006, of
$41.6 million of interest accrued in accordance with our 2000/2002 Notes which were impaired in
connection with our financial reorganization and to the recognition, in 2005, of charges of $2.6 million for
underwriting, legal and accounting fees associated with our consent solicitation from the holders of our
2004 Notes. Offsetting these declines between years, were approximately $4.2 million of incremental
interest incurred in connection with our 2004 Notes and Amended 2004 Notes and $6.0 million associated
with our revolving credit facilities. Interest expense associated with dividends and accretion of original
issue discounts on the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock pursuant to SFAS 150, was also discontinued
effective January 3, 2006, as these financial instruments were also deemed impaired in connection with the
Company’s financial reorganization. Interest expense associated with the Series A Preferred Stock for the
year ended December 31, 2005 was $40.8 million.

Gain on extinguishment of debr.  On July 18, 2006, in connection with the Plan, we completed a debt
for equity exchange whereby 100% of our outstanding $320 million of 2000/2002 Notes and $24.3 million in
accrued interest were exchanged for 265,123 shares or 79% of our new Series AA Preferred Stock,
approximately 30,000 shares or 30% of our New Common Stock, $3.2 million in cash consideration and
approximately $35 million in New Subordinated Notes. Pursuant to SFAS 15, Accounting by Debtors and
Creditors for Troubled Debt Restructuring, these $35 million of New Subordinated Notes were recorded at
aggregate principal plus interest to maturity of $20.1 million or a total of $55.1 million. In addition, 100%
of the § 298.0 million of shares subject to mandatory redemption, were exchanged for new Series AA
Preferred Stock and New Common Stock. The fair market value of equity received in connection with
these exchanges was approximately $182.3 million. Taking into account $3.2 million of cash consideration
bondholders received, $3.5 million paid to settle the claims of Richard Durham, a former executive officer,
and establishment of collectability reserves of $4.9 million in connection with outstanding stockholders’
notes receivable, a gain on extingnishment of debt of $393.7 million was recognized on a combined
exchange of $642.3 million of debt and accrued interest.

Other income (expense). Other income was $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as
compared to other income of $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The other income for the
year ended December 31, 2006 included a gain of $1.9 million on the sale of remaining real estate in our
Merced, California facility and $0.3 million of other less significant items. The other income for year ended
December 31, 2005 included a $4.1 million gain on sale of Alliant.

Income tax expense.  Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $0.0 million on
pretax income from continuing operattons of $185.1 million as compared to $2.0 million on pretax losses
from continuing operations of $109.9 million for the same period in 2005. Income tax benefits related to
net operating losses in the United States were offset by a valuation allowance as the realization of these tax
benefits is not certain. Therefore, the income tax expense in the statements of operations primarily reflects
foreign income taxes.
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Incomefloss from continuing operations. Income from continuing operations for the year ended
December 31, 2006 of $185.1 million includes a gain on extinguishment of debt of $393.7 million, offset by
reorganization costs of $82.4 million. Excluding the impact of the gain on extinguishment of debt and
write-off of impaired goodwill of $110.0 million in 2006 and reorganization costs in both 2005 and 2006,
loss from continuing operations decreased by $91.9 million to $16.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, from $108.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, due to reductions in
interest expense and other factors discussed above.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Net sales.  Net sales increased by $104.1 million, or 10.8%, to $1,072.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from $968.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, The increase was primarily
due to a 12.3% increase in average selling price offset by a 1.3% decline in sales volumes. See “Operating
segment review” below for a detailed discussion of sales volumes and selling prices by segment and
division.

Gross profit.  Gross profit decreased by $8.8 million, or 6.2%, to $133.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, from $141.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This decrease was
primarity due to $5.5 million of incremental freight and utilities costs and $3.3 million of incremental
packaging costs.

Selling, general and administrative and research and development costs.  Selling, general and
administrative and research and development costs decreased by $1.7 million, or 1.9%, to $85.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004 from $87.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This
decrease between years includes $4.0 million less selling, general and administrative expenses resulting
primarily from $1.2 million less depreciation, $2.3 million less payroll and payroll related expenses and $0.5
million less professional fees, offset by $2.3 million higher research and development costs.

Restructuring and other costs.  Restructuring and other costs were $2.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as compared to $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of
$0.3 million. These costs in 2005 include $2.1 million in lease termination costs associated with equipment
formerly in our Shelbyville, Indiana facility and $0.3 million in severance costs associated with our Alliant
business which was sold in 2005. These costs in 2004 include $1.4 million in fixed asset impairment charges
and severance and other costs of $0.2 million and $0.5 million, respectively, related to the closure of our
Harrisville, RI facility.

Operating income (loss). Operating income decreased by $10.8 million to $41.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003, from $51.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, due to the factors
discussed immediately above.,

Interest expense.  Interest expense increased $9.4 million, or 6.4%, to $155.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005 from $145.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Dividends and
accretion on the preferred shares was $40.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
$35.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, and account for $5.5 million of this $9.4 million
increase. Interest on long term debt was $114.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 compared to
$110.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 due to higher costs associated with our outstanding
senior secured notes.
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Other income (expense).  Other income was $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to other expense of $(0.7) million for the year ended December 31, 2004. Other income for the
year ended December 31, 2005 includes a $4.1 million gain on sale of our Alliant business. Other income
for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes $1.3 million loss on the sale of real property, $0.1 million
currency gain, and $0.5 million other less significant items.

Income tax expense (benefit). 1n 2005 our income tax expense was $2.0 million, compared to an
income tax expense of $1.6 million in 2004. These amounts represent effective tax rates of 1.8% and 1.7%
for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The fluctuation in the effective tax rate is
principally the result of foreign tax rate differences, the provision for valuation allowances, the write-off of
goodwill and the accrued dividends on preferred stock. As of December 31, 2005, our deferred tax assets
totaled approximately $149.7 million, of which $118.5 million related to net operating loss carry forwards.
Our deferred tax liabilities totaled approximately $84.9 million. Due to uncertainty regarding the timing of
the future reversals of existing deferred tax liabilities, the realization of our foreign tax credit carry
forwards, and the realization of other deferred tax assets and carry forwards, we have recorded valuation
allowances of approximately $85.0 million to offset the net operating loss carry forward and certain other
deferred tax assets and carry forwards, Net taxes of zero were provided for the losses from discontinued
operations due to any potential tax benefit being offset by the valuation allowance for net operating loss
carry forwards.

Operating Segment Review
General

Operating segments are components of our business for which separate financial information is
available that is evaluated regularly by our chief operating decision maker in deciding how to allocate
resources and in assessing performance. We evaluate the performance of our operating segments based on
net sales {excluding intercompany sales) and segment profit. The segment profit reflects income before
interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortization, restructuring and other costs and other non-
cash charges. For more information on our operating segments, including a reconciliation of segment
profit to income before taxes, see Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in
this report.

In 20086, we reorganized our Specialty Products Group and separated it into two operating segments,
Specialty Films and Printed Products. In addition, we combined our prior Performance Films segment with
our Engineered Films segment. These changes were in response to a re-evaluation of our aggregation
criteria. As a result, the segment information for previous years has been reclassified to reflect these
changes. We now have four operating segments: Specialty Films, Printed Products, Industrial Films, and
Engineered Films.
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Summary for years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

Specialty Printed  Industrial Engineered Corporate/
Films Products Films Films Other Total

Year ended December 31, 2006

Netsales........................ $2129 $230.9 $321.1 $385.7 $ 84 3$1,159.0
Segment profit (loss)(1) .......... 282 20.8 31.8 51.5 (28.3) 104.0
Year ended December 31, 2005

Netsales........................ $195.2 $2150 $307.0 $3479 $ 7.7 3$1,0728
Segment profit (loss){(1) .......... 27.6 24.1 26.6 429 (29.2) 92.0
Year ended December 31, 2004

Netsales........................ $183.8 $206.9 $254.1 $317.1 $ 68 3 9687
Segment profit (loss)(1) .......... 33.0 16.0 26.2 49.0 (29.6) 94.6

(1) See Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report for a
reconciliation of segment profit to income before taxes.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Specialty Films

Net sales. The net sales of our Specialty Films segment increased $17.7 million, or 9.1%, to
$212.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $195.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2005. This increase was primarily due to an increase in our average selling price of 10.5% offset by a
decline in sales volume of 1.3%. We saw continued growth in our personal care and medical products
markets offset by a decline in our agricultural products growth due to foreign import competition.

Segment profit.  The Specialty Films segment profit was $28.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, as compared to $27.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This $0.6 million
increase in segment profit was mainly due to $1.3 million improvement in our product mix, $0.6 million in
improved waste rates, and $0.4 million in improved quality performance, offset by the impact of decreased
volume of $1.7 million.

Printed Products

Net sales.  The net sales in our Printed Products segment increased $15.9 million, or 7.4%, to
$230.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $215.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2005. This increase was principally due to an increase in our average selling price of 5.9% and to an
increase in sales volume of 1.5% due to growth in the printed market sales offset by share loss with a
bakery customer.

Segment profit. The Printed Products segment profit was $20.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, as compared to $24.t million for the year ended December 31, 2005. This $3.3 million
decrease in segment profit was mainly due to recognition of a $4.1 million gain on sale of our Alliant assets
in 2005. Excluding this non-recurring gain, segment profit increased $0.8 million due to $2.0 million less
selling, general and administrative expenses, an $0.8 million improvement in waste, $1.1 million in profit
from additional sales volume offset by higher utility costs in the US and Mexico of $0.8 million, an
unfavorable product mix of $0.3 million, and higher costs being recognized from inventory reduction.

Industrial Films

Net sales. The net sales of our Industrial Films segment increased by $14.1 million, or 4.6%, to
$321.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $307.0 million for the year ended December 31,
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2005. This increase was duc to an increase in our average selling prices of 6.4%, primarily due to the pass
through of raw material price increases and increased sales of value added products, offset by a decline in
sales volume of 1.7% due to inventory de-stocking in the Industrial sales channel and continued mix shift
toward down gauged products.

Segment profit.  The Industrial Films segment profit was $31.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, as compared to $26.6 million for the same period in 2005. This $5.2 million increase
includes a $1.9 million gain on sale of our Merced, California remaining assets. In addition, segment profit
in 2006 was positively impacted by $4.1 million due to increased sales of value added product, a
$0.6 million reduction in SG&A costs between years and $1.4 million in waste improvements, offset by
$1.6 million due to volume and $1.2 million higher freight and utilities costs.

Engineered Films

Net Sales. Net sales in Engineered Films increased by $37.8 million, or 10.9%, to $385.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006 from $347.9 million for 2003. This increase was principally due to an
increase in our average selling prices of 8.3% principally due to the pass-through of raw material price
increases and improvements in our sales mix and an increase in sales volume of 2.3%. Increased sales
activity and focus on major customers resulted in incremental sales volume in our barrier, industrial and
medical sales markets, offset by lower volumes in agriculture and personal care sales markets.

Segment profit.  The Engineered Films segment profit was $51.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, as compared to $42.9 million for the same period in 2005, Segment profit in the
Engineered Films Segment was positively impacted in 2006 by $4.6 million due to increased volumes,

-$2.9 million resulting from our waste reduction initiatives, and $1.6 million expansion between our average
selling price and average raw material costs, offset by higher utility costs.

Corporate{Other

Corporate/Other includes our corporate headquarters in Schaumburg, Illinois and our research and
development facility in Newport News, Virginia. Unallocated corporate expenses decreased by $0.9 million
to $28.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, from $29.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. This decrease was principally due to lower personne! recruiting and trade show and
other promotional costs. Unallocated research and development costs increased by $0.5 million to
$4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Comnpared with the Year Ended December 31, 2004
Specialty Films

Net sales.  The net sales of our Specialty Films segment increased $11.4 million, or 6.2%, to
$195.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $183.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2004. This increase was primarily due to an increase in our average selling price of 11.5% offset by a
decline in sales volume of 4.7%. We saw continued growth at major personal care customers, while others
impacted us negatively due to their loss in market share. Agriculture volumes decreased as volume growth
from breakthrough products we not fully realized.

Segment profit. The Specialty Films segment profit was $27.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as compared to $33.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This $5.4 million
decrease in segment profit was mainly due to the loss in volume impact of $3.5 million, an unfavorable mix
change of $1.9 million and higher freight and packaging costs of $1.3 million offset by lower waste expense
of $1.0 million and $0.3 million of other cost improvements.
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Printed Products

Net sales.  The net sales in our Printed Products segment increased $8.1 million, or 3.9%, to
$215.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $206.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2004. This increase was principally due to an increase in our average selling price of 12.7%, offset by a
decline in sales volume of 7.8%, in part due to a financial and operational restructuring at one of our
printed products bakery customers, and the loss of sales from the Alliant business sold in early 2005.

Segment profit.  The Printed Products segment profit was $24.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as compared to $16.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This $8.1 million
increase in segment profit was mainly due to the sales of the Alliant business of $4.1 million, $3.2 million
less selling, general and administrative costs, improved sales mix of $10.2 million, waste improvement of
$1.7 million, other cost improvement of $0.3 million, offset by a loss in volume of $11.4 million.

Industrial Films

Net sales. The net sales of our Industrial Films segment increased by $52.9 million, or 20.8%, to
$307.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $254.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2004. This increase was due to an increase in our sales volumes of 4.0% and an increase in our average
selling prices of 16.2%, primarily due to the pass through of raw material price increases and increased
sales of value added products.

Segment profit.  The Industrial Films segment profit was $26.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as compared to $26.2 million for the same period in 2004. This increase in segment
profit was primarily due to an increased sales mix of value added products. Segment profit in 2005 was
positively impacted by $5.6 million due to higher volumes, an increase in average selling prices of
$1.4 million and waste reduction initiatives of $.8 million. These favorable impacts were nearly entirely
offset by higher freight and utilities costs of $2.6 million, higher packaging, labor, and outside services costs
of $4.3 million resulting from changes in product/customer mix, and other overhead costs of $0.5 million.

Engineered Films

Net Sales. Net sales in Engineered Films increased by $30.8 million, or 9.7%, to $347.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2005 from $317.1 million for 2004. This increase was principally due to an
increase in our average selling prices of 11.8% principally due to the pass-through of raw material price
increases and improvements in our sales mix, offset by a decline in sales volume of 1.8%. Increased sales
activity and focus on major customers resulted in incremental sales volume in our personal care and
medical sales markets, offset by a decline in sales volume in our converter, custom and industrial sales
markets.

Segment profit.  The Engineered Films segment profit was $42.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, as compared to $49.0 million for the same period in 2004, While segment profit in the
Engineered Films Segment was positively impacted in 2005 by $3.0 million resulting from our waste
reduction initiatives, it was negatively impacted by $2.7 million due to lower volume, $6.6 million due to
compression between our average selling price and average raw material costs, and $1.2 million due to
higher freight and utilities costs.

Corporate/Other

Corporate/Other includes our corporate headquarters in Schaumburg, lilinois and our research and
development facility in Newport News, Virginia. Unallocated corporate expenses decreased by $0.4 million
to $29.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, from $29.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. This decrease was principally due to the elimination of administrative costs associated
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with our former international segment and Singapore operations. Unallocated research and development
costs increased by $0.2 million to $4.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of capital

Our principal sources of funds have been cash genérated by our operations and borrowings under our
various revolving credit facilities. In addition, we have raised funds through the issuance of our 2000/2002
Notes, 2003 Notes, 2004 Notes, and the sale of shares of our preferred stock.

As of December 31, 2006, our outstanding long-term debt of $737.6 million consisted of
$113.6 million borrowing under our Exit Credit Facilities, $250.0 million of our 2003 Notes, $7.8 million of
our 2004 Notes, $302.4 million of our Amended 2004 Notes, $55.1 million of our New Subordinated Notes
and $8.7 million in capital leases.

Current Exit Credit Facilities

On July 18, 2006, we entered into the Exit Credit Facilities. The Exit Credit Facilities provide up to
$200 million of total commitments, subject to the borrowing base described below and a required
minimum availability amount of at least $10 million. The Working Capital Credit Agreement includes a
$20 million letter of credit sub-facility, with letters of credit reducing availability thereunder, and each of
the Exit Credit Facilities includes sub-limits for loans to certain of our foreign subsidiaries which are
borrowers under the Exit Credit Facilities. The Exit Credit Facilitics were funded on July 18, 2006, and
replace our prior credit facilities. They are secured by a first priority security interest in substantially ali of
the Company’s and certain of its subsidiaries’ assets, although the administrative agent has a second
priority security interest only in certain of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ assets consistent with the
terms of an intercreditor arrangement with certain bondholders of the Company, which intercreditor
arrangement is a carry-over from our prior credit arrangements.

The Exit Credit Facilities will mature on July 18, 2011. The interest rates for all loans other than those
made to our German subsidiary range from, in the case of alternate base rate loans, the alternate base rate
(either prime rate or .50% over the Federal Funds Rate) plus 1.75% to the alternate base rate plus 2.00%
and, in the case of curodollar loans, LIBOR plus 2.75% to LIBOR plus 3.00%, in each case depending on
the amount of available credit. The interest rates for loans made in connection with the loans to our
German subsidiary are, in the case of alternate base rate loans, the alternate base rate plus 5.00% and, in
the case of eurodollar loans, LIBOR plus 6.00%. The commitment fee for the unused portion of the Exit
Credit Facilities is 0.375% per annum,

The borrowing base under the Working Capital Credit Agreement is based on specified percentages
of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ party thereto eligible accounts receivable, finished goods inventory,
work in process and raw material inventory minus certain reserves. The borrowing base under the Fixed
Asset Credit Agreement is based on specified percentages of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ party
thereto eligible real estate valued at market value plus the net orderly liquidation value of eligible
machinery and equipment minus certain reserves.

The Exit Credit Facilities contain covenants that will limit our ability, subject to certain exceptions, to,
among other things, incur or guarantee additional indebtedness, issue preferred stock or become liable in
respect of any obligation to purchase or redeem stock, create liens, merge or consolidate with other
companies, change lines of business, make certain types of investments, sell assets, enter into certain sale
and lease-back and swap transactions, pay dividends on or repurchase stock, make distributions with
respect to certain debt obligations, enter into transactions with affiliates, restrict dividends or other
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payments from our subsidiaries, modify corporate and certain material debt documents, cancel certain
debt, or change its fiscal year or accounting policies.

The Exit Credit Facilities also require the Company to comply with a fixed charge coverage ratio of
1.00 to 1.00 for the first year of the facility and of 1.10 to 1.00 thereafter; provided, that such coverage ratio
shall only apply during periods in which the amount of availability is and remains less than $20,000,000 for
a specified number of days. Once the amount of availability increases and remains above $20,000,000 for a
specified number of days, such coverage ratio becomes inapplicable. In addition, the amount of availability
under the Exit Credit Facilities must not be less than $10,000,000 at any time. The loans will automatically
become immediately due and payable without notice upon the occurrence of an event of default involving
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. In addition, upon the occurrence and
during the continuation of any other event of default under the Exit Credit Facilities, by notice given to the
Company, the administrative agent may, and if directed by the Required Lenders (as defined in the Exit
Credit Facilities) must, terminate the commitments andfor declare all outstanding loans to be immediately
due and payable. ‘

The Working Capital Credit Agreement is secured by a first-priority security interest in substantially
all our inventory, receivables and deposit accounts, capital stock of, or other equity interests in, our existing
and future domestic subsidiaries and first-tier foreign subsidiaries, investment property and certain other
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and a second-priority security interest in fixed assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries party to the Working Capital Credit Agreement. The Fixed Asset Credit
Agreement is secured by a first-priority security interest in the fixed assets of certain foreign subsidiaries of
the Company and a second-priority security interest in capital stock of the fixed asset borrowers and their
subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2006, we had borrowings of $113.6 million and availability of $63.2 million under
the Exit Credit Facilities.

Prior DIP Credit Facility

On January 4, 2006, we entered into the DIP Credit Facility, among the Company and certain other
debtors, as joint and several borrowers, General Electric Capital Corporation, as administrative agent,
collateral agent and lender, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as syndication agent and lender, and the
lenders from time to time party thereto. The DIP Credit Facility provided for a $200 million commitment
of debtor-in-possession financing to fund our working capital requirements during the pendency of the
bankruptcy proceeding.

The DIP Credit Facility provided us with up to approximately $68.8 million of additional liquidity,
subject to the borrowing base described below. We made no borrowings under the DIP Credit Facility, The
DIP Credit Facility was terminated upon our emergence from bankruptcy and replaced with our Exit
Credit Facilities described above. In addition, approximately $1.5 million of capitalized financing fees
associated with the DIP Credit Facility were written off upon emergence.

Prior Revolving Credit Facilities

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement

On November 21, 2005, the Company entered into a new revolving credit facility providing up to
$140 million of total availability (the “Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”). The Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement included a $25 million letter of credit sub-facility, with letters of credit
reducing availability under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement. The Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement replaced the 2004 Credit Facility.
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The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was to mature on May 21, 2007. The interest rates
were (i) on $20 million outstanding under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, LIBOR plus
6.50% or Alternate Base Rate (either prime rate or .50% over the Federal Funds Rate, if higher) plus
5.25% and (i) on additional amounts outstanding, LIBOR plus 2.75% or Alternate Base Rate plus 1.50%.
The commitment fee for the unused portion of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement was 0.50%
per annum.

On December 31, 2005, an Event of Default occurred under the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement as a result of our failure to make the interest payments due on December 1, 2005 under the
2000/2002 Notes.

Upon the bankruptcy filing and execution of the DIP Credit Facility described above, the
commitments under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement were terminated. The $130.9 million of
borrowings as of December 31, 2005 remain outstanding and were refinanced upon emergence from
bankruptcy through the Exit Credit Facilities.

2004 Credit Facility

From February 17, 2004 through November 7, 2005, we utilized a revolving credit facility (the “2004
Credit Facility”) providing up to $100 million of availability subject to the borrowing base and other
limitations. On November 7, 2005, we entered into an amendment and waiver with respect to the 2004
Credit Facility that increased, for the period from November 4, 2005 to November 21, 2005, the aggregate
maximum commitments to make loans and provide letters of credit from $100 million to $105 million.

New Subordinated Notes

In connection with the issuance of the New Subordinated Notes, we entered into an Indenture, dated
as of July 18, 2006 (the “New Subordinated Notes Indenture”) among the Company, certain subsidiaries of
the Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A,, as trustee. The New Subordinated Notes
Indenture provides that interest will accrue on the New Subordinated Notes from the date of issuance at
the rate of 13% per annum until maturity on July 15, 2010 and will be payable semi-annually on the New
Subordinated Notes on each January 15 and July 15, commencing January 15, 2007, to holders of record on
the immediately preceding January 1 or July 1. The New Subordinated Notes accrue payment-in-kind
interest with respect to the first two interest payment dates and then accrue semi-annual cash pay interest
with respect to the interest payment dates thereafter. The New Subordinated Notes are subject to our
right, which will be assignable, to refinance the New Subordinated Notes during the first year after
issuance by tendering to the holders of all of the New Subordinated Notes cash in an amount equai to
(i) $20,000,000 plus (ii) interest accrued at a rate of 13% per annum from the date of issuance through the
date of payment on a principal amount of $20,000,000 minus (iii} any interest previously paid in cash on
the New Subordinated Notes. Commencing on July 19, 2007, we may redeem the New Subordinated Notes
in whole or in part at a redemption price equal to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of the New
Subordinated Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. The New Subordinated
Notes Indenture provides the holders of the New Subordinated Notes with the right to require us to
repurchase the New Subordinated Notes at a repurchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest upon a change of control of the Company (as defined in the New
Subordinated Notes Indenture). The New Subordinated Notes Indenture does not provide for a sinking
fund with respect to the New Subordinated Notes.

Amended 2004 Notes

On April 8, 2005, we commenced a consent solicitation relating to our 2004 Notes seeking consents,
among other things, to (i) eliminate the requirement to pay cash interest on the notes beginning in 2007
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and, in lieu thereof, pay non-cash interest in the form of additional notes through maturity; (ii} increase
the interest rate of the notes for which consents were received; (iii) increase the redemption prices of the
notes for which consents were received; and (iv) eliminate certain restrictive covenants as they apply to
notes for which consents were not received. On May 6, 2005, we consummated this solicitation as consents
to the proposed amendments were delivered with respect to $298.2 million aggregate principal amount at
maturity of the 2004 Notes, all of which were accepted by us. As a result, $250.6 million principal amount
of the Amended 2004 Notes were outstanding as of May 6, 2005.

In addition, $7.8 million aggregate principal amount at maturity of 2004 Notes with respect to which
consents were not delivered remain outstanding. We, certain of our subsidiaries and the trustee also
executed an Amended and Restated Indenture dated as of May 6, 2005 (the “Amended and Restated
Indenture”) governing the Amended 2004 Notes and the 2004 Notes for which consents were not
delivered. On June 15, 2005, we issued an additional $3.1 million principal amount of the Amended 2004
Notes as payment in kind interest pursuant to the Amended and Restated Indenture.

The transaction in which the terms of the 2004 Notes were amended to become the Amended 2004
Notes was not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state securities laws.
Pursuant to a registration rights agreement, we consummated an exchange offer for the Amended 2004
Notes in which the company exchanged the $253.8 million aggregate principal amount of the original
Amended 2004 Notes for essentially identical notes which are registered under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended.

The interest rate of the Amended 2004 Notes increased from 11'4% per annum to 11%% per annum.
The Amended 2004 Notes no longer require payment of cash interest beginning in 2007. Instead, they
require payment of non-cash interest in the form of additional notes through maturity. In addition, the
Amended and Restated Indenture eliminates substantially all the restrictive covenants contained in the
indenture, as they relate to holders of the 2004 Notes who did not deliver consents.

On or after June 15, 2007, we may redeem some or all of the Amended 2004 Notes at the following
redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the sum of the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid
interest); 111.625% if redeemed prior to June 15, 2007; 108.719% if redeemed prior to December 15, 2007;
105.813% if redeemed prior to June 15, 2008; 102.906% if redeemed prior to December 15, 2008; and
100.000% if redeemed on or before June 15, 2009,

The Amended 2004 Notes mature on June 15, 2009. Prior to June 15, 2007, we may redeem up to a
maximum of 35% of the principal amount of the Amended 2004 Notes with the net cash proceeds of
certain equity offerings by us at a redemption price equal to 111.625% of the sum of the principal amount
plus accrued and unpaid interest, provided that after giving effect to such redemption (i) at least 65% of
the principal amount of the notes remain outstanding and (ii) any such redemption by us is made within
120 days after such equity offering.

The Amended 2004 Notes are secured an a first-priority basis by a security interest in our real
property, fixtures, equipment, intellectual property and other assets other than the second priority
collateral and on a second-priority basis by a security interest in substantially all our inventory, receivables
and deposit accounts, 100% of the capital stock of, or other equity interests in existing and future domestic
subsidiaries and foreign subsidiaries that are note guarantors, 65% of the capital stock of, or other equity
interests in existing and future first-tier foreign subsidiaries, investment property and certain other assets
of the Company and the note guarantors,

The bankruptcy filing constituted an Event of Default under the Amended 2004 Notes, but the
holders of the notes and the trustee under the indenture were prohibited from exercising remedies
thereunder without prior approval by the Bankruptcy Court. As provided for in our Plan, the Amended
2004 Notes were reinstated in accordance with their terms.
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In connection with the Plan, the Company entered into the First Supplemental Indenture dated
July 18, 2006 amending the Amended and Restated Indenture to increase the interest rate by .225% per
annum with respect to the Amended 2004 Notes, which additional interest will accrue as payment-in-kind
interest. As a result, on July 18, 2006, the interest rate on the Amended 2004 Notes was increased to
11.85% per annum.

2004 Notes

On February 17, 2004 we completed the sale of $306 million ($225.3 million of proceeds) principal at
maturity of our 2004 Notes. The proceeds of the offering were used to repay and terminate the credit
facilities that existed at December 31, 2003. The 2004 Notes are guaranteed by the same domestic
subsidiaries that guarantee the 2000/2002 Notes and the 2003 Notes and certain of our foreign subsidiaries
that guarantee indebtedness of the Company. The 2004 Notes were issued under an indenture dated
February 17, 2004, among us, the subsidiary guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as
trustee.

The 2004 Notes are senior secured obligations of the Company and are secured by first-priority
security interests in the first-priority collateral, which consists of substantially all the real property, fixtures,
equipment, intellectual property and all other assets, other than second-priority collateral, of the Company
and the subsidiary guarantors, together with the proceeds therefrom and improvements, alterations and
repairs thereto, as well as any assets required to be added to the first-priority collateral pursuant to the
terms of the indenture or related security documents. The 2004 Notes are secured by a second-priority
interest in the second-priority collateral, rank equally in right of payment with all existing and any future
senior obligations of the Company and are effectively subordinated to all liabilities and preferred stock of
each subsidiary guarantor. The 2004 Notes will mature on June 15, 2009. On May 6, 2005 we completed
the consent solicitation relating to our 2004 Notes. Consents were delivered with respect to $298.2 million
aggregate principal amount at maturity of the 2004 Notes. As a result, $7.8 million aggregate principal
amount at maturity of 2004 Notes remain outstanding.

Unless we elect to pay cash interest as described below, and except under certain limited
circumstances, the 2004 Notes accreted from the date of issuance at the rate of 11%% until December 15,
2006, compounded semiannually on each June 15 and December 15 commencing June 15, 2004, to an
aggregate principal amount of $1,000 per note ($7.8 million in the aggregate assuming no redemption or
other repayments). Commencing on December 15, 2006, interest on the 2004 Notes will accrue at the rate
of 11%% per annum and will be payable in cash semiannually on June 15 and December 15, commencing
on June 15, 2007.

At any time prior to June 15, 2007, we may redeem up to 35% of the accreted value of the 2004 Notes
with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings by us at a redemption price equal to 111.125% of the
accreted value thereof plus accrued interest, so long as (i} at least 65% of the accreted value of the notes
remains outstanding after such redemption and (ii) any such redemption by us is made within 120 days
after such equity offering.

The bankruptcy filing constituted an Event of Default under the 2004 Notes, but the holders of the
notes and the trustee under the indenture were prohibited from exercising remedies thereunder without
prior approval by the Bankruptcy Court. As provided for in our Plan, the 2004 Notes were reinstated in
accordance with their terms.

In connection with our Plan, we entered into the First Supplemental Indenture amending the
Amended and Restated Indenture to increase the interest rate by .225% per annum with respect to the
2004 Notes, which additional interest will accrue as payment-in-kind interest. As a result, on July 18, 2006,
the interest rate on the 2004 Notes was increased to 11.35% per annum. Commencing on December 15,
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2006, only the incremental interest rate increase of .225% will accrue as payment-in-kind interest on the
2004 Notes and the remaining 11-1/8% interest rate will accrue as cash pay interest.

2003 Notes

On May 30, 2003, we completed the sale of $250 million aggregate principal amount of our 2003
Notes. The 2003 Notes mature on September 1, 2009, and interest is payable on March 1 and September 1
of each year. The net proceeds from the sale of the 2003 Notes were used to repay borrowings under our
then existing credit facilities in accordance with an amendment to our then existing credit facilities. The
2003 Notes rank equally with our existing and future senior debt and rank senior to our existing and future
subordinated indebtedness, including the New Subordinated Notes. The 2003 Notes are secured, on a
second-priority lien basis, by a substantial portion of our assets. Due to this second-priority status, the 2003
Notes effectively rank junior to our obligations secured by a first-priority lien on the collateral securing the
2003 Notes to the extent of the value of such collateral. These obligations secured by first-priority liens
consist of the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement with respect to second-priority collateral and the
2004 Notes and Amended 2004 Notes with respect to first-priority collateral. In addition, the 2003 Notes
effectively rank junior to any of our obligations that are secured by a lien on assets that are not part of the
collateral securing the 2003 Notes, to the extent of the value of such assets. The 2003 Notes are guaranteed
by some of our subsidiaries.

Prior to June 1, 2007, we may, on one or more occasions, redeem up to a maximum of 35% of the
original aggregate principal amount of the 2003 Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more equity
offerings by us at a redemption price equal to 111.125% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and
unpaid interest. Otherwise, we may not redeem the 2003 Notes prior to June 1, 2007. On or after that date,
we may redecm some or all of the 2003 Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a
percentage of principal amount), plus accrued and unpaid interest: 105.563% if redeemed prior to June 1,
2008; 102.781% if redeemed prior to June 1, 2009; and 100% if redeemed on or after June 1, 2009.

The bankruptcy filing constituted an Event of Default under the 2003 Notes, but the holders of the
notes and the trustee under the indenture were prohibited from exercising remedies thereunder without
prior approval by the Bankruptcy Court. As provided for in our Plan, the 2003 Notes were reinstated in
accordance with their terms.

We did not make the $13.9 million interest payment that was due under the 2003 Notes on March 1,
2006. However, we made such payment as part of our emergence from bankruptcy.

2000/2002 Notes

In 2000, we issued $220 million aggregate principal amount of 13% Senior Subordinated Notes due
2010. In 2002, we issued an additional $100 million of 13% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2010.

We did not make the $20.8 million interest payments that were due under the 2000/2002 Notes on
December 1, 2005. As a resuit of the failure to make those interest payments by December 31, 2005, an
Event of Default occurred under the 2000/2002 Notes on December 31, 2005, The holders of the notes and
the trustee under the indentures were prohibited from exercising remedies thereunder without prior
approval by the Bankruptcy Court. Under our Plan, the 2000/2002 Notes were exchanged for a
combination of new debt, new preferred stock, New Common Stock and cash.

Preferred stock

In connection with the Plan, on July 18, 2006, we issued approximately 335,600 shares of Series AA
Preferred Stock. The Series AA Preferred Stock is convertible into our other equity securities. If the
Series AA Preferred Stock has not been redeemed or repurchased by July 18, 2011, the holders of at least
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40% of the outstanding shares of Series AA Preferred Stock shall have the right to cause all of the
outstanding class of Series AA Preferred Stock to be converted into a number of shares of New Common
Stock equal to 99.9% of the number of fully diluted shares of New Common Stock after giving effect to
such conversion (excluding shares, if any, of New Common Stock issued to stockholders of the other party
to a merger qualifying for the “Merger Exception” as defined in our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation).

The 2006 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan which was adopted on July 18, 2006, provides each
participant with a share of an authorized pool of 8,000 shares of Series M Preferred Stock, which
participates in the enterprise value of our company upon a “liquidation event” or upon an 80%
“redemption” of the Series AA Preferred Stock or upon a public offering, to the extent the proceeds
exceed $224.8 million. A participant’s restricted Series M Preferred Stock vest monthly over a 36 month
period beginning with our July 18, 2006 emergence from bankruptcy, or upon a liquidation event,
redemption, or public offering; or upon certain terminations of employment within a limited period before
an accelerated vesting cvent.

Net cash provided by or used in operating activities from continuing operations

Net cash provided by operating activities was $59.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to net cash used in operations of $57.1 million for the same period in 2005, a difference of
$116.7 million between years. This difference was primarily associated with the increase in accounts
payable between years of $74.7 million due in large part to reinstatement of supplier credit terms. In
addition, our operations improvement programs and reduced resin prices resulted in decreased carrying
values of inventories and trade receivables of $19.4 million and $13.2 million, respectively.

Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations

Net cash used in investing activities was $37.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as
compared to $28.3 million for the same period in 2005. Capital expenditures in 2006 were $40.5 million
compared to $33.5 million in 2005. This increase in capital expenditures is largely attributed to greater
investments in new production capacity, upgrades to existing assets, cost reduction and efficiency
programs, and IT systems enhancements. In addition, during the third quarter of 2006, we sold our
remaining assets associated with our former Merced, California plant receiving $2.4 million in cash
proceeds.

Ner cash provided by or used in financing activities from continuing operations

Net cash used in financing activities was $27.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, as
compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $92.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2005.

Liquidity

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $123.7 million of working capital excluding current
maturities of long term debt and including approximately $4.2 million in cash and cash equivalents. A
portion of our cash and cash equivalents are held by our foreign subsidiaries. Repatriation tax rates may

limit our ability to access cash and cash equivalents generated by our foreign operations for use in our U.S.
operations, including to pay principal and interest on outstanding borrowings.

As of December 31, 2006 we had approximately $113.6 million of outstanding borrowings and
approximately $63.2 million of remaining availability under our Exit Credit Facilities. Daily borrowings
outstanding under our DIP Credit Facility and Exit Credit Facilities averaged $133.4 million during 2006.
Our outstanding borrowings under our revolving credit facilities fluctuate significantly as a result of the
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timing of payments for raw materials, capital and interest, as well as the timing of customer collections.
The average interest rate on borrowings outstanding under our DIP Credit Facility and Exit Credit
Facilities during 2006 was 8.98%.

Our total capital expeaditures were approximately $34 million in 2005, $41 million in 2006 and are
expected (o be approximately $60 million in 2007. These expenditures are focused on projects to lower
operating costs, add capacity for high value products, expand research and development programs, and
bring new innovative products to market.

A number of factors had significant favorable impacts on our liquidity position during 2006. Although
the Company is still in the process of reinstating credit terms, progress with key suppliers of our raw
material purchases has resulted in positive cash flow of $29.9 million through the end of 2006. In addition,
the amount of cash invested in our inventories and receivables as of December 31, 2006 decreased
$4.5 million from December 31, 2005.

On July 18, 2006, we entered into the Exit Credit Facilities, consisting of the Working Capital Credit
Agreement and the Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, The Exit Credit Facilities provide up to $200 million of
total commitments. The Working Capital Credit Agreement includes a $20 million letter of credit sub-
facility, with letters of credit reducing availability there under, and each of the Exit Credit Facilities
includes sub-limits for loans to certain of our foreign subsidiaries which are borrowers under the Exit
Credit Facilities.

In addition, the debt for equity exchange associated with our 13% Senior Subordinated Notes
decreased our annual cash interest expense by $41.6 million per year.

During 2006, Standard & Poors and Moody’s issued new credit ratings for us as a whole and for each
of the our individual debt issuances except for the New Subordinated Notes. These ratings were more
favorable than our most recent ratings prior to bankruptcy, and were accompanied by a stable outlook
from both agencies. We believe this further enhanced our credit terms with vendors.

As a result, we expect that cash flows from operating activities and available borrowings under our
Exit Credit Facilities of up to $200 million will provide sufficient cash flow to operate our business, to
make expected capital expenditures and to meet foresceable liquidity requirements. However, our ability
to borrow under our Exit Credit Facilities at any time may be subject to the borrowing base in effect at that
time. Our ability to make borrowings under our Exit Credit Facilities will also be conditioned upon our
compliance with other covenants in these agreements, including financial covenants that apply when our
borrowings exceed certain amounts. In addition, the terms of our indentures currently limit the amount we
may borrow under our Exit Credit Facilities.

Changes in raw material costs can significantly affect the amount of cash provided by our operating
activities, which can affect our liquidity. Over the past two years, we have experienced a period of extreme
uncertainty with respect to resin supplies and prices. High crude oil and natural gas pricing, have had a
significant impact on the price and supply of resins. During the same period, many major suppliers of resin
have announced price increases to cover their increases in feedstock costs. While the prices of our products
generally fluctuate with the prices of resins, certain of our customers have contracts that limit our ability to
pass the full cost of higher resin pricing through to our customers immediately. Further, competitive
conditions in our industry may make it difficult for us to sufficiently increase our selling prices for all
customners to reflect the full impact of increases in raw material costs. If this period of high resin pricing
continues, we may be unable to pass on the entire effect of the price increases to our customers, which
would adversely affect our profitability and working capital. In addition, further increases in crude oil and
natural gas prices could make it difficult for us to obtain an adequate supply of resin from manufacturers
affected by these factors.
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If (a) we are not able to increase prices to cover historical and future raw materials cost increases,
(b) we are unable to obtain adequate supply of resin, (c) volume growth does not continue as expected, or
(d) we experience any significani negative effects to our business, we may not have sufficient cash flow to
operate our business, make expected capital expenditures or meet foreseeable liquidity requirements. Any
such event would have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and financial condition.

The following table sets forth our total contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2006 (in
thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Less than Alter

Contractual Cash Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3.5 years 3 years
Long-term debt (including capital lease

obligations) .. ..... .o vt $737,631 § 975 $675795 $57416 § 3,445
Operatingleases. . .......c.oooiiiieniiaiann 35,300 7,316 10,616 7,345 10,023
Pension obligations ............... .. cooan. 7,475 7,475 — — —
Raw material and other purchase obligations. . . 41,426 41,426 — — —
Total contractual cash obligations. . ........... $821,832 $57,192 $686,411  $64,761  $13,468

Cash used in discontinued operations

No cash was used in discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to net
cash used of $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Not Applicable.

Other Developments

For a discussion of material litigation in which we are involved, see Item 3, “Legal Proceedings.”

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to various interest rate and resin price risks that arise in the normal course of
business. We regularly evaluate the advisability of entering into interest rate hedging agreements to
manage interest rate market risks and commodity hedging agreements to manage resin market risks.
However, significant increases in interest rates or the price of resins could adversely affect our operating
margins, results of operations and ability to service our indebtedness.

Since the repayment of $219.6 million of variable rate term debt with the proceeds of our 2004 Notes
and borrowings under our revolving credit facility on February 17, 2004, our interest rate risk has
decreased substantially.

Our revolving credit facility is at a variable rate of interest. An increase of 1% in interest rates would
result in an additional $1.1 million of annual interest expense based on our revolving credit facility balance
of $113.6 million as of December 31, 2006.

Our raw material costs are comprised primarily of resins and comprised approximately 67% of our
total manufacturing costs in 2006. Market risk arises from changes in resin costs. Although the average
selling prices of our products generalty increase or decrease as the cost of resins increases or decreases, the
impact of a change in resin prices is more immediately reflected in our raw material costs than in our
selling prices.
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Fluctuations in exchange rates may also adversely affect our financial results. The functional
currencies for our foreign subsidiaries are the local currency. As a result, certain of our assets and
liabilities, including certain bank accounts, accounts receivable and accounts payable, exist in non U.S.
dollar-denominated currencies, which are sensitive to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.

We enter into certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies but, because of the relatively
small size of each individual currency exposure, we do not currently enter into formal hedging agreements
for these transactions. Gains and losses from these transactions as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, have
been immaterial and are reflected in the results of operations.

We are exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the counterparty to a financial
instrument to which we are a party. We anticipate, however, that each of the counterparties to the financial
instruments to which we are a party will be able to fully satisfy its obligations under the contract.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Financial statements and supplementary data required by this Item 8 are set forth at the
pages indicated in Item 15(a) below.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required
to be disclosed in our filings under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and
Exchange Commission. This information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including
our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure. Qur management, including our principal executive officer and our principal
financial officer, recognizes that any set of controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and
operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on this evaluation, our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are
effective in alerting them on a timely basis to material information required to be disclosed in our
periodic filings.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no significant changes in our internal controls or in other factors that coutd significantly
affect these controls subsequent to the date of the evaluation referenced in the foregoing paragraph.
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PART 111
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The Company changed its state of incorporation from Utah to Delaware pursuant to the Plan. In
connection therewith, Albert MacMillan and Jeffrey C. Walker departed as directors of the Company and
were replaced by Eugene . Davis and David G. Elkins. Messrs. Davis and Elkins were selected to serve as
directors pursuant to the Plan by the holders of a majority in aggregate principal of the old subordinated
notes. Each will serve as a director until the next annual meeting of stockholders and the election and
qualification of his successor, or until his earlier death, resignation or removal.

Certain information about our executive officers and directors is presented below. Our Board of
Directors currently consists of seven members. Pursuant to the Stockholders’ Agreement, the holders of
our New Common Stock have the right to designate five directors, one of whom is our Chief Executive
Officer. Additionally, the holders of our Series AA Preferred have the right to elect two members of our
Board. Four of these seven members are independent directors.

Name _Age Position

Harold C. Bevis ......... 47 President and Chief Executive Officer and Director

JohnD. Bowlin.......... 56 Director and Non-Executive Chairman

Eugene L. Davis ......... 51 Director

David G. Elkins ......... 64 Director

Edward A. Lapekas . .. ... 63  Director

Stephen McKenna ....... 38 Director

Timothy J. Walsh . ....... 43 Director

Stephen T. Auburn ... ... 51 Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary

R. David Corey.......... 58  Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

GregE. Gard ........... 46  Senior Vice President, Technology & Innovation

James L. Kaboski . ....... 38 Vice President, Strategy & Business Development

James M. Kingsley ....... 44  Senior Vice President and General Manager of Engineered Films
Joseph J. Kwederis. ... ... 60  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Robert J. Maltarich ... ... 55 Vice President and General Manager—PVC Products

Andrew D. McLean(l1) ... 43 Senior Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Customer Services
Kenneth J. Swanson. ... .. 40 Senior Vice President, President Specialty Products Group

Fred D. Wampnar ....... 49  Vice President and General Manager—Stretch and Shrink Products

(1) Effective as of March 30, 2007, Mr. McLean resigned from his position

Harold C. Bevis was named President and Chief Executive Officer in October 2003. Mr. Bevis also
serves on our Board of Directors. He has over 20 years of global experience with multiple types of
technology-driven manufactured products sold across a full range of sales channels. Mr. Bevis joined Pliant
from Emerson Electric, where he served as President of Emerson Telecommunications Products, a group
of manufacturing companies, beginning in 1998, Mr. Bevis led the sale of this group to Emerson while he
was President and CEO of Jordan Telecommunication Products, Inc., a manufacturer of nonproprietary
communications products. Prior to that, Mr. Bevis served as Senior Vice President and General Manager
of General Cable Corporation, a large, vertically integrated domestic manufacturer of wire and cable
products sold through wholesale and retail channels to companies such as The Home Depot, True Value
Hardware, Rexel and Graybar. Mr. Bevis has also held positions of increasing responsibility with General
Electric, Booz, Allen & Hamilton, and General Dynamics, where he began his career as an engineer.

Mr. Bevis holds a B.S. in Industrial Engineering from lowa State University and an MBA in Marketing
from Columbia University in New York.

47




John D. Bowlin became one of our directors on January 31, 2005. Mr. Bowlin was President and Chief
Executive Officer of Miller Brewing Company from 1999 uatil 2003, leading its sale to South African
Breweries in 2002. From 1985 until 2002, Mr. Bowlin was employed by Philip Morris Companies, Inc., in
various leadership capacities, including President, Kraft International, Inc. (1996-1999), President and
Chief Operating Officer, Kraft Foods North America (1994-1996}, President and Chief Operating Officer,
Miller Brewing Company (1993-1994), and President, Oscar Mayer Food Corporation (1991-1993).

Mr. Bowlin holds an MBA from Columbia University and a BS from Georgetown University. He is also a
director of Generac Corporation, Generac Power Systems, Inc, Spectrum Brands and TLC Contact.

Eugene I. Davis became one of our directors on July 18, 2006. Mr. Davis is the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of PIRINATE Consulting Group, LLC, a privately-held consulting firm specializing in
turn-around management, merger and acquisition consulting, hostile and friendly takeovers, proxy contests
and strategic planning advisory services for domestic and international public and private business entities.
Since forming PIRINATE in 1997, Mr. Davis had advised, managed, sold, liquidated and/or acted as a
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Restructuring Officer, Director, Committee Chairman and/or Chairman of
the Board of a number of businesses, including companies operating in the telecommunications,
automotive, manufacturing, high-technology, medical technologies, metals, energy, financial services,
consumer products and services, import-export, mining and transportation and logistics sectors. As a
bankruptcy professional, many of the companies with which Mr. Davis has worked have been in
bankruptcy proceedings prior to and/or during his tenure. Prior to forming PIRINATE, Mr. Davis served
as President, Vice-Chairman and Director of Emerson Radio Corp., and CEQ and Vice-Chairman of
Sport Supply Group, Inc. Mr. Davis began his career as an attorney and international negotiator with
Exxon Corp. and Standard Qil Company (Indiana) and as a partner in two Texas-based law firms where he
specialized in corporate/securities law, international transactions and restructuring advisory. Mr. Davis
holds a BA from Columbia College, a Masters of International Affairs (MIA) in International Law and
Organization from the School of International Affairs of Columbia University and a JD from the
Columbia University School of Law.

David G. Elkins became one of our directors on July 18, 2006. Mr. Elkins retired as President and
Co-Chief Executive Officer of Sterling Chemicals, Inc. in January 2003. Prior to joining Sterling
Chemicals in 1998, Mr. Elkins was a senior partner in the law firm of Andrews Kurth LLP, where he
specialized in corporate and business law, including mergers and acquisitions, securities law matters and
corporate governance matters. Mr. Elkins currently serves as an independent director of several
organizations and corporations, including The Houston Exploration Company, a NYSE-listed natural gas
exploration/production company headquartered in Houston, Texas and ZiLOG, Inc., a NASDAQ:-listed
manufacturer of micrologic semiconductor devices headquartered in San Jose, California. Since 1996
Mr. Elkins has served as business representative and advisor for a large group of private investors in
connection with substantial real estate holdings in Nevada and California. Mr. Elkins holds a BBA degree
from the University of Texas, Arlington and a JD from Southern Methodist University.

Edward A. Lapekas became one of our directors on December 19, 2001 and served as cur Non-
Executive Chairman from Qctober 22, 2003 until June 2006. Mr. Lapekas served as our interim Chief
Executive Officer from August 24, 2003 until October 22, 2003. From November 2002 until March 2003,
Mr. Lapekas served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of NexPak Corporation, a media packaging
company. Prior to that, Mr. Lapekas was Executive Chairman of Packtion Corporation, an e-commerce
venture, from October 2000 until June 2001. From May 1996 until July 2000, Mr. Lapekas was employed
by American National Can Group, Inc., last serving as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Prior to
that, Mr. Lapekas served as Deputy Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Schmalbach-Lubeca AG.
From 1971 until 1991, Mr. Lapekas was employed by Continental Can Company, where he served in
various strategy, planning, operating and marketing capacities. Mr. Lapekas is also a director of Silgan
Corp. He received a B.A. degree from Albion College and an M.B.A. degree from Wayne State University.
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Stephen McKenna became one of our directors on June 23, 2005. Mr. McKenna is a managing director
of CCMP Capital Advisors, LLC (“CCMP”), a private equity firm formed in August 2006 by the former
buyout/growth equity professionals of J.P, Morgan Partners, LLC. CCMP serves as an investment adviser
to JP Morgan, our principal stockholder. Prior to joining CCMP, Mr. McKenna had been a principal of
J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC (formerly, Chase Capital Partners) since 2000 and prior to that was an
associate of that entity. Mr. McKenna has extensive experience managing J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC'’s
portfolio companies and is also on the Board of Directors of Generac Corporation and PQ Corporation.
Mr. McKenna holds a BA from Dartmouth College and an MBA from the GSB at the University of
Chicago.

Tirmnothy J. Walsh became one of our directors on May 31, 2000. He served as Non-Executive
Chairman from June 2002 until October 2003. Mr. Walsh is a managing director of CCMP. CCMP serves
as an investment adviser to JP Morgan, our principal stockholder. Prior to joining CCMP, Mr. Walsh was
an executive officer of JPMP Capital Corp. which is the general partner of JPMP Master Fund Manager,
L.P., which is the general partner of I.P. Morgan Partners (BHCA), L.P. Mr. Walsh had been a partner of
J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC from 1999 until joining CCMP. From 1993 to 1999, Mr. Walsh held various
positions with J.P. Morgan Partners in Europe and North America. Prior to 1993, he was a Vice President
of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. (formerly, The Chase Manhattan Corporation). Mr. Walsh is also a director
of Better Minerals & Aggregates Company, BMAC Corp., Generac Corporation, Kraton Polymers,
Metokote Corporation, Metokote Holdings, Inc. and PQ Corporation. Mr. Walsh received a B.S. degree
from Trinity College and an M.B.A. degree from the University of Chicago.

Stephen T. Aubumn, Vice President and General Counsel, joined Pliant in 2005 and has over 25 years
of broad, international legal experience. Prior to joining Pliant, Mr. Auburn worked at Pactiv Corporation
from 1995 to 2005 where he held legal positions of increasing responsibility, most recently as Assistant
General Counsel and Division Counsel for Pactiv’s Foodservice and Food Packaging Division. Prior to
Pactiv, he was Counsel to Mobil Chemical’s Consumer Products and Films Divisions from 1989 to 1995,
Mr. Auburn began his career in private practice. Mr. Auburn received his BA from the State University of
New York, Potsdam, and holds JD and MPA degrees from Syracuse University and an MBA from
Northwestern University’s Kellogg Graduate School of Management.

R. David Corey was named Chief Operating Officer in March 2004. He joined Pliant as Executive Vice
President for Global QOperations in November 2003. Mr. Corey has over 30 years of experience leading
extrusion-based manufacturing businesses. Mr. Corey was a senior executive at Emerson Electric where he
was President of Dura-Line, a manufacturing business that produced telecom, gas and water conduit
products. He supervised plants and sales forces in the US, Mexico, UK, Spain, Brazil, Czech Republic,
Malaysia, India and China. Previously, Mr. Corey was President of International Wire with operations in
the US and Asia. Prior to that, Mr. Corey was Senior Vice President and General Manager of Telecom
products for General Cable Corporation. He earned a B.S. in Business from Eastern Illinois University.

Greg E.Gard joined Pliant Corporation in 1989 and has held numerous technical positions supporting
the various market segments within Pliant Corporation. Today, he serves as Senior Vice President of
Technology and Innovation. His responsibilities in this regard include Product Development and Technical
Service for the Corporation, with particular focus on shortening product development cycles, improving
speed to market, and directing a team of packaging professionals in the development of packages that
protect and preserve while improving functionality and appearance. Before joining Pliant, Mr. Gard held
engineering and management positions with Cryovac Sealed Air Corporation. Prior to this he worked for
several years as an engineer with Dresser Atlas in oil and gas exploration. He holds a B.S. degree in
electrical and computer engineering from the University of Wisconsin Madison. Mr. Gard is actively
involved with Clemson University’s Packaging Science program, one of only four academic institutions in
the United States that offers a four-vear program leading to a B.S. degree in Packaging Science. Currently,
he serves on the Packaging Advisory Board at Clemson.
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James L. Kaboski, Vice President, Strategy and Business Development, joined Pliant in 2005 and leads
Pliant’s corporate-wide strategic planning and business development activities. Prior to joining Pliant,
Mr. Kaboski worked at Booz Allen Hamilton from 1996 to 2005 where he was a senior leader in the firm’s
Consumer Packaged Goods practice. Prior to his eight vears at Booz Allen, Mr. Kaboski was with Kraft
Foods where he had held Technical Brand Manager and packaging engineering positions. Prior to Kraft,
Mr. Kaboski was an engineer with Dow Chemical. Mr. Kaboski holds a BS in Chemical Engineering from
the University of Wisconsin and an MBA from Northwestern’s Kellogg Graduate School of Management.

James M. Kingsley, joined Pliant in 2006 and is the Senior Vice President and General Manager of
Engineered Films. Prior to joining Pliant, from 2000 to 2006, Mr. Kingsley was President of Emerson
Electric’s Optical Connectivity Division, a global supplier of critical-need data center and LAN
connectivity solutions with operations in the U.S., Mexico, Morocco and China. Prior to this role,

Mr. Kingsley was the Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Business Development for the Connectivity
division of Emerson. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Kingsley was the Director of Business Development for
Jordan Telecommunications Products, Inc. in charge of all acquisition and business development activity.
Prior to Jordan, Mr. Kingsley held a variety of management positions in Marketing and Sales at Lucent
Technologies and AT&T. Mr. Kingsley began his career in public accounting at Arthur Andersen & Co.
Mr. Kingsley holds a BS degree in Accounting from the University of Illinois and a MBA from
Northwestern University’s Kellogg School of Management.

Joseph J. Kwederis was named Chief Financial Officer on August 31, 2005, He joined Pliant
Corporation as Senior Vice President, Finance in February of 2005. Prior to joining Pliant
Corporation, Mr. Kwederis was Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer of Dura-Line Corporation
from 1999-2004, and Vice President of Finance for International Wire Group from 1996-199%. From 1974
until 1996 he held positions of increasing responsibility in Accounting and Finance at General Cable
Corporation. Mr. Kwederis holds a BS in Accounting from Rutgers University and an MBA from the
University of Connecticut.

Robert J. Maltarich, Vice President and General Manager- PVC Products, joined Pliant Corporation in
July of 1992 following the acquisition of Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company’s Films Division. Since that
time, he has held numerous positions within Pliant Corporation. From 1992-1993 he served as Marketing
Manager Film Products Worldwide, from 1994-1996 he was Director of National Accounts, and from
1997-1998 he was General Manager Custom Films Group. Other positions included Vice President and
General Manager Barrier and Custom Films and, most recently, Senior Vice President of Sales, Flexible
Packaging. Mr. Maltarich was promoted in October 2002 to Vice President and General Manager,
Industrial Films, where he was responsible for Pliant’s Stretch, Custom, and PVC film businesses. He
assumed his current role in 2006. Prior to joining Pliant Corporation, Mr, Maltarich held numerous
national and international positions in both sales and marketing with Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company.
During his 18-year carcer at Goodyear, he served as General Marketing Manager Film Products
Worldwide, General Manager European Film Products, Manager Film Products USA and District Sales
Manager. He holds a B.S. degree in Business Administration from the University of Akron.

Andrew D. McLean, Senior Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Customer Services, joined Pliant in
2006. Prior to joining Pliant Corporation, Mr. McLean served as Executive Vice President of Emerson
Electric Company, a global manufacturing conglomerate from 2003 to 2006. From 2000 to 2003,

Mr. McLean was an executive officer at US-based Tellabs, Inc. In this position he was responsible for
Strategic Planning, Global Account Management, Product Management and North American Sales. Prior
to joining Tellabs, Mr. McLean held a variety of corporate executive-level management positions at
Ameritech Corporation, including product management, marketing, sales management, and strategic
planning. In addition, Mr. McLean served as an executive for Ameritech International and was based in
Europe. Prior to working at Ameritech Corporation, McLean worked in the financial industry at Chicago
Title and Trust Company and the Chicago Mercantile Exchange. Mr. McLean received a bachelor’s degree
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in Public Administration and Management in 1986 from Northern Arizona University and a Master’s of
Business Administration from Loyola University of Chicago, with an emphasis in international marketing
and strategy in 1997.

Kenneth J. Swanson joined Pliant in 1997 following the acquisition of CT Films and is currently
President, Specialty Products. Prior to this position, Mr. Swanson was the Senior Vice President and
General Manager of the Specialty Films Division at Pliant. Since 1992, Mr. Swanson has had various
leadership positions with CT Films and Pliant. Mr. Swanson has over 18 years experience in the plastics
industry and supervises teams domestically and internationally. Prior to 1992, Mr. Swanson held multiple
sales and marketing management positions in the injection molding segment of the plastics industry.

Mr. Swanson holds a B.S. degree in Business Management from the University of Redlands.

Fred D. Wampnar, Vice President and General Manager- Stretch and Shrink Products, joined Pliant
Corporation in 1998 and has held numerous positions including Vice President of Marketing and Vice
President of Operations before assuming his current role. Prior to joining Pliant, Mr. Wampnar held
positions of Vice President of Operations and Vice President of Sales & Marketing with Paragon Films,
and as Director of Manufacturing with Linear Films. He holds a B.S. in Operations Management from
Oklahoma State University.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Under the Commission’s rules, the Company’s directors executive officers and beneficial owners of
more than 10% of the Company’s Series AA Preferred Stock are required to file reports if their ownership
and changes in ownership with the Commission. Based solely upon its review of copies of these reports and
representations of the reporting persons, the Company believes that during the year ended December 31,
2006, all reportable transactions were reported and timely filed with the Commission.

Code of Ethics for Officers

The Company has not adopted a formal written code of ethics that applies to its principal executive
officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar
functions. The Company has not adopted such a code of ethics to date due to the Company’s focus on
successfully emerging from bankruptcy and implementing its new capital structure. However, the Company
intends to adopt a written code of ethics in 2007.

Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee and
each committee operates under a charter approved by the Board of Directors. There is no nominating
committee of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has not established a nominating committee
primarily because it believes that the current composition and size of the Board permit candid and open
discussion regarding potential new candidates for director. The entire Board of Directors currently
operates as our nominating committee, and all directors participate in the consideration of director
nominees. There is no formal process or policy that governs the manner in which we identify potential
candidates for director and the Board of Directors has not adopted any specific, minimum qualifications
that must be met to be nominated to serve as a director. Historically, however, the Board of Directors has
considered several factors in evaluating candidates for nomination to the Board, including the candidate’s
knowledge of our business and the candidate’s business experience and credentials. We do not have a
formal policy with respect to our consideration of director nominees recommended by our stockholders
because the Board of Directors believes that it has been able to give appropriate consideration to
candidates recommended by stockholders in prior years on a case-by-case basis.
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Audit Committee. Our Board of Directors has an audit committce (the “Audit Committee”). The
Audit Committee maintains oversight respensibilities with respect to our accounting, auditing, financial
reporting and internal control processes generally. The members of the Audit Committee are Eugene 1.
Davis {Chair), Timothy J. Walsh and Edward A. Lapekas. Mr. Davis and Mr. Lapekas are considered
independent within the meaning of Section 10A(m)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Mr. Walsh may not be deemed independent in light of the numerous transactions between the
Company and JP Morgan (see Item 13, “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions”). The Board of
Directors has determined that Eugene 1. Davis is an “audit committee financial expert” for purposes of the
rules and regulations of the Commission adopted pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Compensation Committee. Qur Board of Directors has a compensation committee (the
“Compensation Committee™). The Compensation Committee maintains oversight responsibilities with
respect to the compensation of our officers and directors. The members of the Compensation Committee
are John D. Bowlin, David G. Elkins and Timothy J. Walsh.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Introduction, Policies and Procedures

Our Goals. Pliant believes the strength of its senior management team is crucial to achicving its
growth and success on behalf of all the stakeholders. Our executive compensation programs are intended
to support this goal by attracting and retaining executive talent, by motivating our employees, including our
executive officers, to achieve corporate goals, by aligning their interests with those of our stakeholders, and
by focusing their efforts on our long-term success.

Roles in Setting Compensation. The Compensation Committee of our Board has overall charge of our
executive compensation. The Compensation Committee reviews our policies with regard to executive
officer compensation, determines salaries and other compensation and benefits for our executive officers,
reviews the annual incentive plans for the officers, establishes targets and incentive awards under these
plans, and makes the requisite determinations under those plans. In making its decisions the
Compensation Committee receives and takes into account the recommendations of our Chief Executive
Officer (Mr. Bevis) for the compensation and bonuses of the employees who report to him. For 2006, we
retained Buck Consultants, a leading compensation consulting firm, to advise our management and the
Compensation Committee on executive compensation matters, including the reasonableness of our bonus
plans, plan metrics, and proposed awards.

Our Targets and Peer Group.  For our senior management, including our named executive officers, we
target base salaries slightly below the competitive median, target total cash compensation between the
median and the 75th percentile of competitive practice, and target long-term incentive opportunity and
total direct compensation at the upper quartile of competitive practice. For 2006, Buck Consultants
reported to us where these percentiles fall and where our compensation fits within those percentiles. In
setting specific compensation and bonus levels, we also consider corporate unit/division individual
performance, internal equity, competitive market conditions, and the experience of particular individuals
in their positions. We look at all components of competitive total direct compensation and their
relationship to the officer’s proposed or current pay. We build compensation from the bottom up, so that
total compensation and its allocation between short and long-term, fixed and contingent, and cash or non-
cash, compensation, results from our decisions on the individual components of compensation.

For major compensation decisions we compare our compensation levels and performance with a peer
group of companies. For 2006, Buck Consultants recommended revising our peer group of companies, 10
obtain current public information on the time frame required for our decisions. Our peer group for 2006
COmprises:

Griffon Corp. Quixote Corp.
Jacuzzi Brands, Inc. Rock-Tenn Co.
Kennametal Inc. Rotonics Mfg., Inc.
Pactiv Co. Spartech Corp.
PVC Container Corp. Summa Industries

Impact of Our Capital Structure.  Qur capital structure constrains our use of equity compensation.
Our New Common Stock is not publicly traded, and our Series AA Preferred Stock is currently only thinly
traded. These facts and other features of our capital structure impair our ability to use stock options and
related forms of equity compensation common among public companies. It also affects the metrics that we
can apply to determine performance in any performance-based plan.
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Impact of Our Reorganization. Our reorganization in 2006 particularly affected our compensation
decisions in that year. On January 3, 2006, we (and ten subsidiaries) filed a voluntary petition seeking relief
under the Bankruptcy Code with the Bankruptcy Court. We consummated our reorganization and
emerged from bankruptcy on July 18, 2006.

The reorganization forced a special emphasis on advancing the interests of Chapter 11 stakeholders by
providing performance-based incentives to senior management employees to enable us to emerge
successfully from Chapter 11, and to have a strongly-motivated management team in place upon
emergence. Our pre-reorganization stockholders and our pre-reorganization subordinated noteholders
collectively became our post-emergence common stockholders upon emergence. Our stakeholders,
including JP Morgan, our principal common stockholder, the unsecured creditors committee, and the ad
hoc committees of subordinated noteholders and second lien noteholders, among others, with their
respective attorneys and financial and other advisors, played an active role in the reorganization
proceedings and related negotiations, including compensation-related proceedings and negotiations. Thus
the reorganization gave our stakeholders a direct and immediate input into our compensation decisions.

Components of Compensation. The key components of compensation for our named executive
officers, reflecting in part the special needs imposed by our reorganization, are:

Base Compensation

Bonuses, which we provided:
Under our 2006 Management Incentive Compensation Plan
Under our 2004 MIP Long Term Incentive Plan, and
As an Emergence Bonus; and
Equity-related compensation, which we provide:
“Under our 2006 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan
Under our Deferred Cash Incentive Plan

Our executive officers also receive certain personal benefits; and like our salaried employees generally
are entitled to benefits under our broad-based plans. The fellowing sections describe these components

and our 2006 decisions respecting them.

Base Compensation

Base salary compensates our employees for their regular time and service on our behalf. As we said
above, our base compensation for senior management is intended to place us slightly below the median of
our peer companies. This leaves larger scope for contingent and performance-based compensation for
senior management. In setting base compensation we consider the individual’s position, the experience of
the individual for that position, individual performance, internal equity, competitive market conditions,
and the amounts paid for similar positions at our peer companies.

We review base salaries annually. In 2006, Buck Consultants identified some discrepancies in our
salary levels compared to our peer group and targets. Based on that information and the factors noted
above, Mr. Bevis recommended base salary increases for management employees, including the named
executive officers other than himself. After discussions with members of the Compensation Committee,
those increases went into effect with the first payroll period in April, 2006. Mr. Corey received a $36,750
increase to $367,500; Mr. Swanson received a $6,953 increase to $238,702; and Mr. Kwederis and
Mr. Auburn each received a $22,500 increase to $247,500. Mr. Bevis did not receive a salary increase in
April but did receive a $25,000 base salary increase effective December 21, 2006, in connection with his
new employment contract, discussed below. We show the base compensation for 2006 for our named
executive officers in column {c) of the Summary Compensation Table below.
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Bonus

2006 Management Incentive Compensation Plan.  Our 2006 Management Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “2006 MIP”) is the vehicle for annual bonuses for approximately 100 of our management
employees, including our named executive officers. It is intended to advance the interests of our
stakeholders by providing performance-based incentives to participants. The plan entitles each participant
to an award, stated as an “incentive percentage” of his base compensation earned-during the year. The
target incentive percentage for 2006 for Mr. Bevis was 100% of annual salary and for the other named
executive officers was 50% of annual salary. The Committee establishes the performance metrics. The
actual incentive percentage is determined by the achievement of an organizational goal and personal goals,
though the actual bonus paid may vary upwards or downwards from the formula bonus based on the
Compensation Commitiee’s discretion and the recommendations of Mr. Bevis. Participation in the 2006
MIP entails a noncompetition and nondisclosure commitment from the participants, and receipt of a bonus
requires (among other things) that the participant remain employed throughout the incentive period and
as of the payment date.

For 2006, the operational goal was the attainment of target earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation, amortization and restructuring (“EBITDAR”) on a corporate level (on a blend of corporate
and divisional EBITDAR for Mr. Swanson). The plan corporate EBITDAR target was $107 million, which
we believe was an aggressive target given our past EBITDAR and uncertainties created by our
reorganization, but which was achieved at the 97% level. Mr. Bevis submitted recommended bonus
payments to the Committee and discussed with the Compensation Committee the bonuses for his direct
reports (including the named executive officers other than himself). The Compensation Committee also
authorized an additional $100,000 to be allocated among all participants as additional bonus amounts in
Mr. Bevis’ discretion. We show the resulting bonuses paid to named executive officers in column (d) of the
Summary Compensation Table below.

2004 MIP Long Term Incentive Plan. The 2004 MIP Long Term Incentive (the “LT1 Plan”) Plan
supplements the annual Management Incentive Compensation plan. The LTI Plan covers the same
approximately 100 management employees as the 2006 MIP, including the named exccutive officers,
except that Mr. Bevis does not participate in the LTI Plan. The LTI Plan provides that an amount equal to
50% of the annual bonus determined under the annual MIP Plans for each of the years in the four-year
performance period 2004-2007 (inclusive) is paid to the participant following the end of that period, if the
participant is then employed and fulfills the other conditions of the LTI Plan. Thus, no long-term bonus
under the LTI Plan will be paid until 2008. We show the deferred LTI Plan bonus amount for 2006, that
will become part of the 2008 LTI Plan payment (if the participant is still employed), in the Grants of Plan-
Based Awards Table and in column (e) of the Summary Compensation Table below.
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Emergence Bonus. The demands of the bankruptcy reorganization substantially increased the duties
of key management personnel, without reduction of their day-to-day responsibilities. In order to focus the
attention of key employees on goals specific to the reorganization, the Compensation Committee at its
meeting of March 16, 2006, authorized a contingent bonus (the “Emergence Bonus™) for seven selected
senior corporate management individuals, including the named executive officers other than Mr. Swanson.
In this connection the Compensation Committee received advice from Buck Consultants who performed a
statistical sampling of companies in Chapter 11 proceedings and assisted in developing the proposed plan’s
target parameters, their relative weighting, and threshold, target and maximum awards, as described below.
Buck Consultants also reported to the Compensation Committee on the competitiveness and
reasonableness of the Emergence Bonus, taking into account the practices of a “bankruptcy peer group” of
companies. This group was designed to include companies that had authorized or paid bonuses in
bankruptcy reorganization other than the key employee retention bonuses that were now restricted under
the Bankruptcy Abuse Prevention and Consumer Protection Act of 2005, and for which information was
available. The group comprised:

K-Mart Owens Corning
Dairy Mart Allied Holdings
NationsRent Comdisco

Solutia XO Communications
Geneva Steel Burlington

Fruit of the Loom Leap Wireless

National Steel

As approved by the Compensation Committee and ultimately approved by the Bankruptcy Court, the
arrangement provided for payment of an Emergence Bonus under the following metrics:

Threshold Tarpet Maximum

Goal Weighting Metric Award Metric Award Metric Award
Emergence 50% of  December, 100% of 150% of

Date......... 33-%5%  July 3,2007 Target 2006 Target July 31,2006 Target
Recovery to 160% Payment

Trade or Consensual  100% of

Creditors .. ... 33-15% — — Terms Target — —
Capital Acceptable  50% of Target 100% of Maximized 150% of

Structure .. ... 33-1%  Structure  Target Structure Target Structure Target

Following emergence, the Compensation Committee determined that two objectives—timing of
emergence and recovery to trade creditors—had been met at maximum payment levels, and that the
capital structure goal had been met at least at target levels, and authorized a preliminary payment of the
Emergence Bonus at the resulting payout levels. The Compensation Committee reserved consideration of
the ultimate achievement of the capital structure goal pending the opportunity to review our post-
emergence capital structure, credit statistics and debt-rating in light of post-emergence operations. After
making that review in light of post-emergence experience, the Compensation Committee at its meeting of
October 26, 2006, approved tull payment of the remaining portion of the Emergence Bonus at the
maximum level for the capital structure goal. We show the amount of the Emergence Bonus in the Grants
of Plan-Based Awards Table and in column (e) of the Summary Compensation Table below.

Eguity-Related Compensation

Overview. As part of the Plan, on emergence from bankruptcy, we created the 2006 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan (the “Stock Plan”} and the Deferred Cash Incentive Plan (the “Cash Plan” and together
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with the Stock Plan, the “2006 Plans”) to give our core executive team an incentive to grow the enterprise
value of our company. The 2006 Plans operate in tandem and basically reserve for the participants 8% of
the value of the company realized by our common and preferred stockholders upon a major corporate
transaction. The Cash Plan provides a benefit of 8% of the value up to $224.8 million. ($224.8 million is the
hurdle amount based on an estimate of the enterprise value of our company on emergence from
bankruptcy, as made by our restructuring financial advisor.) The Stock Plan grants shares of Series M
Preferred Stock which have no value unless the proceeds of the transaction exceed $224.8 million. The
Stock Plan authorizes for grant shares of Series M Preferred Stock equal to 8% of the outstanding equity
above the hurdle amount on a fully diluted basis.

The 2006 Plans are intended to provide an incentive to the participants to increase the enterprise
value of our company and secure their continued commitment and dedication to the company by
identifying their interests with those of the common and preferred stockholders.

The 8% size of the bonus pool and the other material terms of the 2006 Plans were determined by
negotiations among our management, JP Morgan, and the ad hoc committee of subordinated noteholders
(who became common stockholders upon our emergence), all represented by legal counsel and with the
participation of financial, restructuring and other advisors, before and during the bankruptcy proceedings.
The 2006 Plans were approved by the Bankruptcy Court as part of its approval of our Plan on June 23,
2006, and became effective upon our emergence on July 18, 2006.

No awards under the Plans had been made as of December 31, 2006. However, on February 20, 2007
we made awards allocating the full bonus pool among 11 individuals as determined by Mr. Bevis with the
approval of the Committee pursuant to the Plans. Among other things the awards entitled the participants
to purchase Series M Preferred Stock, for $20 per share, as described below. These allocations for the
participating named executive officers were as follows:

Number of
Series M Percent of 8% Percent of Company
Preferred Shares Pool Equity
Mr.Bevis..................... 5,000 63% 5.00%
Mr.Corey.....oovviiieinnnnnn 765 10% 0.77%
Mr. Swanson. ....oooveeeennn-. 440 6% 0.44%
Mr. Kwederis ........oocvunns. 310 4% 031%
Mr. Auvburn................... 220 3% 0.22%

Deferred Cash Incentive Plan. 'The Cash Plan provides each participant with a percentage share of a
bonus pool (not in excess of 8% of $224.8 million) payable upon a “liquidation event” or upon a
“redemption” of the Series AA preferred stock. A “liquidation event” includes a sale of substantially all of
our assets, the sale or transfer of a majority of our outstanding common stock (assuming conversion of all
convertible preferred stock into commeon stock), a merger, or a true liquidation (in each case excluding
certain related party transactions and subject to certain technical adjustments). A “redemption” is a
redemption of our Series AA preferred stock with aggregate redemption proceeds of $50 million or more
(with an adjustment to redemption proceeds if there have been prior redemptions of Series AA preferred
with proceeds of less than $50 million}). These transactions are the events (other than an initial public
offering) upon which our common and Series AA preferred stockholders are expected to realize liquidity
from their investment in the company.
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Upon the occurrence of any one of those events, the company will pay each participant in the Cash
Plan his or her percentage share of the bonus pool, in cash, except that up to 60% may be paid in the form
of the securities received in the liquidation event that triggers payment. However, a participant (other than
Mr. Bevis) must be employed on the date the liquidation event or redemption occurs, or have terminated
his employment within 90 days before that date because of death, disability, discharge by the company
without “cause,” or resignation by the participant with “good reason.” A participant whose employment
terminates in other circumstances forfeits his interest in the Cash Plan. For these purposes “cause” is the
comunission of a crime involving fraud, theft, dishonesty; engaging in willful or wrongful activities that are
materially detrimental to the company; uncured material and willful breach of responsibilities as an
employee or failure to comply with company directives; or impairment by alcohol or drugs. “Good reason”
is an uncured and unconsensual assignment of the participant to duties inconsistent with his position, any
reduction in base salary or bonus opportunity, or relocation of his business office more than 40 miles away.

In the case of Mr. Bevis, “cause” and “good reason” are defined by reference to his employment
agreement (described below). In addition, Mr. Bevis is entitled to benefits if his employment terminates
for one of the above accepiable reasons within one year (rather than 90 days) before the liquidation event
or redemption. Also, his benefits are subject to monthly vesting over a 36 month period beginning with our
July 18, 2006 emergence from bankruptcy, entitling him to vested benefits after termination regardless of
the reason for termination, if a triggering transaction occurs.

2006 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan. The Stock Plan provides each participant with a share of an
authorized pool of 8,000 shares of Series M Preferred Stock, which participates in the enterprise value of
our company upon a “liquidation event” or upon an 80% “redemption” of the shares of Series AA
Preferred Stock (substantially the same events as described for the Cash Plan above} or upon a public
offering, to the extent the proceeds exceed $224.8 million. A participant’s restricted Series M Preferred
Stock vest monthly over a 36 month period beginning with our July 18, 2006 emergence from bankruptcy,
or upon a liquidation event, redemption, or public offering; or upon certain terminations of employment
within a limited period before an accelerated vesting event.

Upon receiving their awards in February 2007, participants purchased their shares of Series M
Preferred Stock for $20 per share. At that time, the fair market value of the shares of Series M Preferred
Stock (as determined by an appraisal by an independent appraisal firm), was $103 per share. Each
participant made an election under Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code to pay tax at that time on
the $83 difference between those amounts; and we paid a bonus of $138 per share (the tax-grossed-up
amount of the $83 difference) to each participant to enable the participant to pay such taxes. (Because this
bonus was not authorized, earned or paid untif 2007, we do not show it in the Summary Compensation
Table.) If a participant’s employment terminates, his restricted shares that are not vested are forfeited
(that is, repurchased by the company for the $20 per share that the participant paid for it). The company
may repurchase (other than from Mr. Bevis) restricted shares that were vested upon termination.
Repurchase is at fair market value as of the date of termination if the repurchase occurs within 180 days of
the termination of employment, otherwise at fair market value as of the date of the repurchase. Fifty
percent of the repurchase price may be paid on a deferred basis in certain circumstances.

Otherwise, upon a liquidation event or redemption of shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, the
Series M Preferred Stock is redeemed for an amount equivalent to the participants’.share of the Stock
Plan’s 8% share of the proceeds in excess of the $224.8 hurdle amount (subject to certain adjustments).
Upon a public offering the Series M Preferred Stock is converted to common stock.

Pre-Reorganization Equity Plans. Prior to our reorganization we had a 2004 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan covering certain officers and based on our former Series B Preferred Stock. The Series B
Preferred Stock was cancelled pursuant to our Plan. As a condition to participating in the Stock Plan and
the Cash Plan, participants were required to relinquish their rights under the 2004 Restricted Stock Plan.
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In addition, we formerly had a 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and a 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, both
providing for the grant of awards which included restricted stock and stock options. Subject to a limited
period to exercise options (which were not exercised by any named executive officer), all outstanding
options under those plans were cancelled pursuant to our plan of reorganization in the bankruptcy
proceeding.

Other Compensation

Broad-Based Plans. 'We maintain a Salary Deferral Plan under Section 401(k) of the Internal
Revenue Code, in which our executive officers, like most of our other employees, may participate. Each
participant may contribute up to 50% of his or her eligible compensation (up to statutory limits) and we
match those contributions at 1009 up to the first 3% of compensation. We have not made additional
profit sharing contributions under that plan.

We also maintain a Defined Benefit Pension Plan. Participation (entry of new participants) into this
plan was “frozen” as of January 1, 2003, and further accrual of benefits was “frozen” as of June 30, 2004
(except for certain union employees). Only one of our named executive officers (Mr. Swanson) has a
benefit under the Pension Plan. We show the present value of this “frozen” accrued benefit is shown in
column (d) of the Pension Benefits Table below. We do not have any other pension plans or supplemental
executive retirement plans covering management employees.

In addition to those plans, our named executive officers participate in our broad-based group life,
health and hospitalization plans that do not discriminate in favor of executive officers and that are
available generally to all salaried and hourly employees.

Personal Benefits. 'We provide relocation assistance for key employees that we have hired and
required to move to the area of our corporate headquarters. This includes relocation assistance for
Mr. Kwederis which is included in column (h) of the Summary Compensation Table below. In addition,
pursuant to his employment contract described below, we provided Mr. Bevis in 2006 with an automobile
allowance to facilitate his travel, reimbursed him for country club dues and expenses to enable him to
network with prospective customers, suppliers and other business executives, and reimbursed him for tax
and financial planning expenses incurred to get the most after-tax value from his compensation. We also
provide indoor parking near our headquarters for our Schaumburg-based executive officers (all our named
executive officers other than Mr. Swanson.) We show these personal benefit costs to us in column (h) of
the Summary Compensation Table.

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with Mr. Bevis, our President and Chief Executive Officer, and with
Mr. Corey, our Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer.

Mr. Bevis.  Effective December 21, 2006, after negotiations with Mr. Bevis and approval of the
Compensation Committee, we amended and restated his employment agreement to extend the term from
a term expiring January 1, 2008 to a term expiring July 31, 2010, to increase his base compensation from
$650,000 per year ta $675,000 per year (subject to discretionary increases), to provide that his bonus will be
determined under the Management Incentive Plan for 2006 and later years, to update references to our
other plans, and to make changes required by Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code. The base salary
adjustment went into effect for Mr. Bevis December 21, 2006, based on the process and factors described
above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

As amended, Mr. Bevis’ employment agreement calls for the adjusted base salary and MIP bonus as
just described. The employment agreement also provides that Mr. Bevis will participate in bonus and
incentive plans or arrangements which may be provided by the company from time to time to its senior
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executives, with award opportunities commensurate with this position, duties and responsibilities. The
employment agreement expressly includes the Stock Plan and Cash Plan. However, as noted above,
Mr. Bevis does not participate in the LTI Plan. The employment agreement also provides for an
automobile allowance of $27,600 per year, and for our reimbursement of his country club dues and
expenses up to $14,000 per year, tax and financial planning services up to $10,500 per year, and the cost
and expenses of an annual physical examination up to $7,000 per vear, all subject to appropriate
documentation. Mr. Bevis is also entitled to at least four weeks paid vacation per year. Mr. Bevis also is
eligible for other employee and fringe benefits made generally available to senior executives.

If Mr. Bevis’ employment is terminated without cause or he resigns for good reason, he will be entitled
to receive salary continuation severance payments and continue to participate in our medical and dental
plans for two years. We discuss these benefits in more detail under “Payments on Termination and Change
of Control”, below. Mr. Bevis also is eligible for certain severance amounts if his employment is terminated
due to his death or disability. For these purposes “cause” is the commission of a crime involving fraud,
theft, dishonesty; engaging in willful or wrongful activities that are materially detrimental to the company;
uncured material and willful breach of responsibilities as an employee or faiture to comply with company
directives; or impairment by alcohol or drugs. However “cause” does not include bad management
decision-making or acts or omissions taken in good faith in the best interests of the company and
reasonably believed not to have been improper or illegal. Mr. Bevis has the right to appear before the
Board in connection with any termination for cause, and any such determination by the Board is subject to
de novo review in any forum in which the issue is disputed. “Good reason” is an uncured and unconsensual
assignment to Mr. Bevis of duties inconsistent with his position, the company’s material breach of the
employment agreement (including faiture to elect Mr. Bevis to the board or to reappoint him as President
and Chief Executive Officer), any reduction in base salary or bonus opportunity, relocation of his business
office more than 40 miles away, or a termination of employment by Mr. Bevis for any reason or no reason
within the six months following a “liquidation event” (which has substantially the meaning described above
in connection with the Cash Plan).

The employment agreement also provides for non-disclosure of confidential information and non-
competition for one year following termination of employment with us. Mr. Bevis has agreed in his
employment agreement that any inventions, improvements, technical or software developments,
trademarks, patents and similar information relating to us or our business, products or services conceived,
developed or made by him while employed by us belong to us.

Mr. Corey. We have a four-year employment agreement with Mr. Corey, our Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer, effective June 10, 2005, The employment agreement provides for
the payment of a base salary of $367,500, subject to discretionary increases. The employment agreement
also provides that Mr, Corey will participate in all bonus and incentive plans or arrangements which may
be provided by the company from time to time to its senior executives, with award opportunities
commensurate with his position, duties and responsibilities. The employment agreement expressly
excluded from these benefits the Pliant 2000 Stock Incentive Plan, the Pliant 2002 Stock Incentive Plan and
any other equity based incentive or compensation plans, but included the Pliant 2004 Restricted Stock
Incentive Plan. The agreement also provides for at least four weeks paid vacation per year, and includes
non-disclosure of confidential information provisions and a non-compete provision for one year following
termination of employment with us. Mr. Corey also is eligible for other employee and fringe benefits made
generally available to senior executives.

If Mr. Corey's employment is terminated without cause or he resigns for good reason, he will be
entitled to receive severance payments and continue to participate in our medical and dental plans for two
years, among other benefits, We discuss these benefits in more detail under “Payments on Termination
and Change of Control”, below. Mr. Corey also is eligible for certain severance amounts if his employment
is terminated due to his death or disability. For these purposes “cause” has the same definition as for
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Mr, Bevis, including the right to appear before the Board of Directors in connection with any termination
for cause. “Good reason” is an uncured and unconsensual assignment to Mr, Corey of duties inconsistent
with his position, the company’s material breach of the employment agreement, any reduction in base
salary, relocation of his business office more than 40 miles away, or a termination of employment by

Mr. Corey for any reason or no reason within the six months following a “liquidation event” (as described
above).

The employment agreement also provides for non-disclosure of confidential information. Mr. Corey
has agreed in his employment agreement that any inventions, improvements, technical or software
developments, trademarks, patents and similar information relating to us or our business, products or
services conceived, developed or made by him while employed by us belong to us.

Mr. Kwederis.  Although we do not have formal employment contracts with other officers, our letter
of February 2, 2005 confirming our employment offer to Joseph J. Kwederis, currently our Chief Financial
Officer, outlines certain terms and conditions of his employment. The letter provides for the payment of a
base annua! salary of $200,000 and for three weeks annual vacation. It also provides that Mr. Kwederis will
participate in the annual Management Incentive Plan and the 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan, as well as
the salaried employees’ health and welfare benefit plans. The letter states that if Mr. Kwederis’
employment is involuntarily terminated without cause (as determined by our Board), he will be eligible for
one year of severance pay in a lump sum and outplacement support. By letter dated August 26, 2005, the
company confirmed Mr. Kwederis’ promotion to Chief Financial Officer and increased his base annual
salary to $225,000.

Mr. Aubumm. Qur correspondence of July 19, 2005, with Stephen T. Auburn, containing our offer and
his acceptance of the position of our General Counsel, provides that if Mr. Auburn’s employment is
involuntarily terminated without cause, or as a result of a change of control, he will be eligible for not less
than 52 weeks of base salary continuation, subject to delivery of a release of employment-related claims
and custonmary covenants.

Mr.Swanson.  Qur letter of August 17, 2004 to Mr, Swanson confirms his participation in the LTI
Plan and other plans and provides that if Mr. Swanson’s employment is involuntarily terminated without
cause (as determined by our Board) he will be eligible for one year of base salary continuation and
outplacement service.

Other Matters

Timing of Awards.  As discussed above, we currently have no stock option plan and granted no equity
awards at all in 2006. The Series M Preferred Stock underlying the awards granted in 2007 under the Stock
Plan is not publicly traded; and the value of the award and its accounting treatment are not particularly
sensitive to the timing of the award.

Impact of Tax and Accounting Rules.  As discussed above, the forms of our executive compensation
are largely dictated by our capital structure and have not been designed to achieve any particular
accounting treatment. We do take tax considerations into account, both to avoid tax disadvantages, and
obtain tax advantages where reasonably possible consistent with our compensation goals. (Tax advantages
for our executives benefit us by reducing the overall compensation we must pay to provide the same after-
tax income to our executives.) Thus our plans are designed or are being reviewed to take account of
“parachute” excise taxes under Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code and to avoid deferred
compensation plan failures under Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code; and our Stock Plan
provides compensation in the form of stock in part to permit potential capital gain treatment pursuant to
Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for its participants (in the same manner as our actual common
and Series AA preferred stockholders would receive on a liquidity transaction), as well as to solidify our
executive’s interest with those of the stakeholders. Since we currently have no publicly traded common
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stock, we are not currently subject to the $1,000,000 limitation on deductions for certain compensation,
though that rule will be considered if our common stock becomes publicly traded.

Recovery of Certain Awards. We do not have a formal policy for recovery of bonuses paid on the basis
of financial results which are subsequently restated. Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer must forfeit bonuses and incentive compensation paid on the basis of
financial statements for which they were responsible and which have to be restated. In that event we would
expect to recover such bonuses and incentive compensation. If and when the situation arises in other
events we would consider our course of action in light of the particular facts and circumstances, including
the culpability of the individuals involved.

Share Ownership Guidelines. In view of our capital structure, share ownership guidelines for
executive officers are not feasible. We provide for key management to have an equity-equivalent interest in
our total enterprise value through the 2006 Plans discussed above,

REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis and discussed it with management, and based on such review and discussions recommends to
the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included in the Form 10-K.

Timothy J. Walsh (Chair)

John D. Bowlin
David G. Elkins
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The table below summarizes the compensation of our named executive officers for 2006. As discussed

above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, we did not grant stock options or other equity awards
in 2006, so this table does not contain any columnns for those types of awards.

Change in
Pension Valoe
Non-equity and

Incentive Nongualified
Name and Plan Deferred All Other
Principal Bonus(2) Compensation Compensation Compensation
Position Year  Salary(l) (§) (%) 3 ® Earnings ($) @ ® Total ($)

a (b) (c) (d) (e) (11] (g} ()

Harold C. Bevis. ... ... 2006 625,673(5) 667,920(6) 866,450 — 93,669 2,253,712

President and Chief
Executive Officer
Joseph J. Kwederis . . . . . 2006 241,442 123,750 226,834 — 46,664 638,690
Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial
Officer
R. David Corey........ 2006 380,221(5) 202,125 370,495 — 14,345 967,186
Executive Vice
President and Chief
Operating Officer
Stephen T. Auburn. . . .. 2006 241,442 123,750 226,834 — 11,225 603,251
Vice President and
General Counsel

Kenneth J. Swanson . . . . 2006 236,831 122,335(6) 61,167 ) 7,775 428,108
Senior Vice President
and President Specialty
Products

(1) This column includes the earnings of the final pay period of 2006 that were paid in 2007.

2

3

4)

)

(6)

™

This column shows the annual bonus under our MIP, as discussed above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, earned
for 2006 and actually paid in 2007.

This column shows the sum of the Emergence Bonus earned and paid in 2006 plus the deferred bonus under our LTI Plan
earned in 2006 but scheduled for payment in 2008. The Emergence Bonus and the LTI Plan are discussed above in the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis and amounts for these plans are shown in more detail in the Grants of Plan-Based
Awards Table below.

This column reports matching contributions to our tax-qualified Section 401(k) plan on behalf of our named executive officers
(which were $6,600 for each named executive officer), plus other compensation and personal benefits. Other compensation for
Mr. Bevis includes $26,000 for services as a member of our Board of Directors. Personal benefits for all of our Schaumburg-
based named executive officers (Messrs. Bevis, Kwederis, Corey, and Auburn) included indoor parking at our headquarters
with an annual cost to us of §1500 for each individual. Tn addition, personal benefits for Mr. Bevis included a car allowance of
$27,600, country club dues reimbursement of $14,000, tax and financial planning reimbursement of $10,500, and event tickets,
spouse travel expenses, airline lounge membership and gifts totaling $7,169. Personal benefits for Mr. Kwederis included
reimbursed moving expenses of $36,464 and event tickets, spouse travel expenses and gifts totaling $2,100. Personal benefits for
Mr, Corey included event tickets, airline lounge membership and gifts totaling $6,245. Personal benefits for Mr. Auburn
included event tickets, airline lounge membership and gifts totaling $2,900. Personal benefits for Mr. Swanson included spouse
travel expenses and airline lounge meinberships totaling $1,175.

This does not include $25,000 for Mr. Bevis and $14,135 for Mr. Corey in salary for 2006 actually paid in 2005 which were
included in our report of Mr. Bevis® and Mr. Corey’s annual salary in our 2005 Form 10-K filed March 31, 2006.

This does not include $30,300 for Mr. Bevis and $70,200 for Mr. Swanson in 2005 MIP Bonus paid in 2006 after the 2005
Form 10-K was filed.

Mr. Swanson is the only named executive officer to have a pension benefit, which is described in connection with the “Pension
Benefits” table below.
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GRANTS OF PLAN BASED AWARDS

This table shows the deferred bonus of our named executive officers under the 2004 MIP Long-Term
Incentive Plan, which will be paid in 2008 (if the executive is still employed on the payment date) and the
threshold, target and maximum awards for the Emergence Bonus which was paid at the maximum
achievement level in 2006. We describe those plans above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.
As also discussed there, we did not grant stock options or other equity awards in 2006, so the table does
not contain any columns for those kinds of awards. For that reason, and because no named executive
officer exercised equity awards during 2006 or had equity awards outstanding at year end, we do not
include any table of outstanding equity awards at fiscal year-end or of option exercises and stock vesting.

Estimated Future Or Actual Payouts Under
Non-Equity Incentive Plan Awards

Name Grant Date(1)(2) Threshold ($) Target (§) Maximum (3)
@ (b) {c) (d) {e)
HaroldC.Bevis .......................... 3/16/06 216,667 650,000 866,450
President and Chief Executive Officer
JosephJ. Kwederis. ....................... 1/1/06 — 61,875 —
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial 3/16/06 41, 250 123,750 164,959
Officer
R. David Corey.......... e saaeeas 1/1/06 — 101,062 —
Executive Vice President and Chief 3/16/06 67,375 202,125 269,432
Operating Officer
Stephen T. Auburn ....................... 1/1/06 — 61,875 —
Vice President and General Counsel 3/16/06 41,250 123,750 164,959
KennethJ. Swanson..........covevvennn... 1/1/06 — 61,167 —
Senior Vice President and President
Specialty Products

(1) Awards granted January 1, 2006 represent benefits under our LTI Plan. The amount of the award was
fixed by performance as of December 31, 2006 as 50% of the annual bonus earned under the 2006
MIP. The award is scheduled for payment in 2008 without further adjustment to the amount for
earnings or other contingencies, other than the executive’s service to the payment date. These plans
are described in more detail in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, above. Under governing
regulations, this deferred award is reported for 2006 and will not be reported again when paid (if the
executive is employed on the payment date) in 2008,

(2) Awards granted March 16, 2006 represent the Emergence bonus, described above in the
Compensation Discussion and Analysis. This award was earned and paid at maximum in 2006.
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Pension Benefits

We do not have any supplemental executive retirement plans and none of our named executive
officers are entitled to any defined benefit pensions at all, other than Mr. Swanson, His pension benefit
comes from our Defined Benefit Pension Plan. That plan provides a benefit (normally in the form of a life
annuity beginning at age 65) of (i) 1.6% of final average compensation times years of credited services,
minus (ii} 1.5% of the participant’s primary social security benefit times years of credited service (subject
to a maximum offset). As discussed above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, that plan was
amended to cease the entry of new participants effective January 1, 2003; and further accrual of accrued
benefits was “frozen” for all non-union participants, including Mr. Swanson, effective June 30, 2004, The
following table shows Mr. Swanson’s frozen accrued benefit.

Number of Years Present Value of Payments During Last
Name Plan Name Credited Service (#) Accumulated Benefit (§) Fiscal Year ($)
(2 {b) (c) (d) {e)

Harold C. Bevis ......... — — — —
President and Chief
Executive Officer
Joseph J. Kwederis. ... ... — — — —
Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial
Officer
R. David Corey.......... — — — —
Executive Vice
President and Chief
Operating Officer
Stephen T. Auburn ...... — — — —
Vice President and
General Counsel
Kenneth J. Swanson(1) ... Defined Benefit 11.4 $68,743 $0
Pension Plan
Senior Vice President and
President Specialty
Products

(1) Mr. Swanson’s frozen accrued benefit is $1,909.21 per month. This column would report increases in the
present value of that frozen accrued benefit. However, in 2006, the present value actually decreased
from $69,870 at December 31, 2005 to $68,743 at December 31, 2006, due to changes in the discount rate
from 5.75% as of December 31, 2005 to 6.00% as of December 31, 2006. Under governing regulations a
negative amount for this item is reported as $0. The calculation of present value is based on assumptions
of: discount rate, 6.00%, pre-retirement mortality, none; post-retirement mortality, 1994 GAM; and
retirement age, 62. In accordance with governing regulations the discount rate and mortality table are
consistent with those used for the financial statement disclosures, and the assumed retirement age is the
earliest age at which unreduced benefits are available.
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PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION AND CHANGE OF CONTROL

The employment agreements for Messrs. Bevis and Corey, described above in the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis, include provisions for benefits upon certain terminations of employment.

Mr. Bevis.  Upon any termination of employment (including voluntary resignation and termination
for cause), Mr. Bevis is entitled to payment of accrued but unpaid base salary through the date of
termination plus incurred but unreimbursed business expenses, and entitled to vested benefits under
applicable plans, accrued vacation pay, and statutory benefits. Upon termination of employment for
disability, Mr. Bevis is additionally entitled to payment of base salary until such time as disability benefits
become payable under the company’s generally applicable long-term disability plan (a period of six months
under our disability plan currently in place).

In addition, upon a termination without cause or for “good reason,” Mr. Bevis is entitled to:
e salary continuation for a period of 24 months, payable monthly,

¢ an amount equal to the bonus compensation for the calendar year before the year of termination,
pro-rated according to the number of days he was an employee in the year of termination, and

¢ continued participation in the company’s medical and dental plan for a period beginning on the
termination date and lasting two years or until he becomes covered under a successor employer’s
plan (or the company’s payment of the premium for a comparable policy if he cannot be covered
under the company’s plans).

Although the employment agreement itself does not provide special or different benefits contingent
upon termination in connection with a change of control, it provides that if Mr. Bevis incurs an excise tax
under Section 280G of the Code by reason of “excess parachute payments,” the company will pay those
excise taxes plus an additional tax gross-up amount such that after payment of all taxes on such additional
amount Mr. Bevis retains a balance sufficient to pay such excise taxes.

The definitions of “cause” and “good reason” for purposes of these termination benefits are described
above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in connection with Mr. Bevis’ employment agreement.
As also noted there, the employment agreement provides for non-disclosure of confidential information
and non-competition for one year following termination of employment with us. Mr. Bevis has agreed in
his employment agreement that any inventions, improvements, technical or software developments,
trademarks, patents and similar information relating to us or our business, products or services conceived,
developed or made by him while employed by us belong to us.

Mr. Corey.  As with Mr. Bevis, upon any termination of employment (including voluntary resignation
and termination for cause), Mr. Corey is entitled to payment of accrued but unpaid base salary through the
date of termination plus incurred but unreimbursed business expenses, and entitled to vested benefits
under applicable plans, accrued vacation pay, and statutory benefits. Upon termination of employment for
disability, Mr. Corey is additionally entitled to payment of base salary until such time as disability benefits
become payable.

In addition, upon a termination without cause or for “good reason,” Mr. Corey is entitled to:
e salary continuation for a period of 24 months, payable monthly,

» an amount equal to the incentive plan award under the applicable management incentive plan for
the calendar year before the year of termination, pro-rated according to the number of days he was
an employee in the year of termination,

o a lump sum payment equal to two times the incentive plan award under the applicable management
incentive plan for the calendar year before the year of termination, and

e continued participation in the company’s medical and dental plan for a period beginning on the
termination date and lasting two years or until he becomes covered under a successor employer’s
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plan (or the company’s payment of the premium for a comparable policy if he cannot be covered
under the company’s plans).

As with Mr. Bevis, the emplovment agreement for Mr. Corey does not itself provide special or
different benefits upon termination in connection with a change of control, but it provides that if
Mr. Corey incurs an excise tax under Section 280G of the Code by reason of “excess parachute payments,”
the company will pay those excise taxes plus an additional tax gross-up amount such that after payment of
all taxes on such additional amount Mr. Bevis retains a balance sufficient to pay such excise taxes.

The definitions of “cause” and “good reason” for purposes of these termination benefits are described
above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis in connection with Mr. Corey’s employment
agreement. As also noted there, the employment agreement provides for non-disclosure of confidential
information and non-competition for one year following termination of employment with us. Mr. Corey
has agreed in his employment agreement that any inventions, improvements, technical or software
developments, trademarks, patents and similar information relating to us or our business, products or
services conceived, developed or made by him while employed by us belong to us.

Mr. Kwederis.  As discussed above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the employment
correspondence with Mr. Kwederis entitles him to one year of severance pay in a lump sum and
outplacement support in the event of his involuntary termination of employment without cause.

Mr. Aubum.  As discussed above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the employment
correspondence with Mr. Auburn entitles him to 52 weeks of base salary continuation if his employment is
involuntarily terminated without cause or terminates as a result of a change of control.

Mr. Swanson.  As discussed above in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the benefit plan
correspondence with Mr. Swanson entitles him to one year of base salary continuation and outplacement
support in the event of his involuntary termination of employment without cause.

The following table shows the amounts to which Mr. Bevis, Mr. Corey, Mr. Kwederis, Mr. Auburn and
Mr. Swanson would be entitled to in respect of those benefit items if a termination of employment entitling
the executive to maximum benefits (whether or not accompanied by a change of control) occurred on
December 31, 2006. The amounts below assume that the company’s costs of medical and dental plan would
remain constant over the two-year continuation period for Messrs. Bevis and Corey and in view of the
maximum two-year benefit period the table does not reduce periodic payments to present value. The value
of outplacement is assumed to be 20% of the executive’s base compensation. We assume the parachute
gross-up would not be triggered for either Mr. Bevis or Corey (because, among other things, their potential
parachute payments are less than three times their respective base amounts).

Lump Sum
Of Two
Salary Prior Year Times Benefit Plan Parachute
Continuation Bonus Bonas Continoation Outplacement Gross-Up  TOTAL
Harold C. Bevis. .. ....... 1,350,000{1) 455,000 —_ 20,831 — 0 1,825,831

President and Chief
Executive Officer
Joseph J. Kwederis ... .... 247,500(2) — — — 24,750 0 272,250
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

R. David Corey.......... 735,000(1) 128,625 257,250 20,831 — 0 1,141,706
Executive Vice President '
and Chief Operating
Officer
Stephen T. Auburn....... 247,500(2) — — — — 0 247,500

Vice President and
General Counsel
Kenneth J, Swanson . .. ... 238,702(3) — — — 23,870 0 262,572
Senior Vice President and
President Specialty
Products

(1) Paid as salary continuation for two years.
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(2) Paidin a lump sum.

(3) Paid as salary continuation for one year.

Director Compensation

We have standard compensation arrangements for our Board of Directors. Effective upon our
emergence from bankruptcy reorganization on July 18, 2006, each member of the Board earns a base fee of
$50,000 annually. Additionally, our non-executive chairman (Mr. Bowlin) earns a supplement of $50,000
annually, the chair of our audit committee (Mr. Davis) earns a supplement of $20,000 annually, each
member of our audit committee earns a supplement of $10,000 annually, each member of each other
committee earns a supplement of $10,000 annually, and the chair of each other committee earns a
supplement of $5,000 annuvally. We do not provide equity or incentive compensation, deferred
compensation, or pension arrangements for service as a director. The following table shows the
compensation of directors for the last completed fiscal year. The amounts are less than full payment under
the above fee schedule because a different schedule was in effect before and during our reorganization and
not all of our directors served for the entire 2006 year.

Name Fees Earned or Paid in Cash ($) Total ($)
a (b) {h)

Harold C. Bevis . ... i e et iaaes $26,000 $26,000
David G.EIKINS . ..ottt et e e it 31,000 31,000
Eugene LDavis . ... 42,000 42,000
Edward A. Lapekas . ... ... 32,000 32,000
John D, Bowlin. . ..o i e e e e e e 71,000 71,000
Timothy J. Walsh(1) ........... ... o 39,500 39,500
Steven MEKEnna(1). . ... ... oe et e e 26,000 26,000
Albert MacMillan. ... ... ... e 15,000 15,000

(1) Messrs. Walsh and McKenna are managing directors of CCMF and are sitting on the Board of
Directors at the request of J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC or its affiliates. Directors’ fees earned by them
are paid to J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC.

68




ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table contains information with respect to the ownership of our New Common Stock
and Series AA Preferred Stock as of March 13, 2007 by:

» cach person known to own beneficially more than 5% of our New Common Stock,
» cach of our directors,

# each of our Named Executive Officers, and

all of our executive officers and directors as a group.

Pursuant to the Stockholders’ Agreement, the parties to that agreement have committed to vote their
shares of common stock in the election of directors in the manner described in “Transactions between
Pliant and Stockholders—The Stockholders Agreement.”

The amounts and percentages of shares beneficially owned are reported on the basis of Commission
regulations governing the determination of beneficial ownership of securities. Under Commission rules, a
person is deemed to be a “beneficial owner” of a security if that person has or shares voting power or
investment power, which includes the power to dispose of or to direct the disposition of such security.

A person i§ also deemed to be a beneficial owner of any securities of which that person has a right to
acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days. Securities that can be so acquired are deemed to be
outstanding for purposes of computing such person’s ownership percentage, but not for purposes of
computing any other person’s percentage. Under these rules, more than one person may be deemed to be
a beneficial owner of the same securities and a person may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of
securities as to which such person has no economic interest.
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Except as otherwise indicated in these footnotes, each of the beneficial owners listed has, to our
knowledge, sole voting and investment power with respect to the indicated shares of common stock.

JP Morgan/Southwest Industrial Films
LLC/Southwest Industrial
Films Il LLC/Flexible Films

LLC/Flexible Films 1T LLC(1)(2) ... ..
Harbinger Capital Partners(3)..........

King Street Capital L.P./King
Street Capital Ltd./King Street
Institutional Ltd./King
Street Advisers, L.L.C./King Street
Capital Management, L.L.C./O.
Francis Biandi, Jr.

and Brian J. Higgins(4){(5) ...........
New York Life Capital Partners L.P(5)..

Bond Street Capital, L.L.C./Sam
S. Kirn/UUBS Willow
Management, L.L.C./UBS Fund
Advisor, LL.C./PW Alternative
Asset Management, Inc./UBS

Willow Fund, LLC(6) ...............
HaroldC. Bevis ..........covvivnae,
JohnD.Bowlin.......................
Eugenel.Davis ......................
David G.Elkins ......................
Edward A. Lapekas...................
Stephen V. McKenna .................
Timothy J. Walsh .....................
Stephen T. Auburn ...................
R. DavidCorey.......................
GregE. Gard .......... ...l
James M. Kingsley ... .................
James | Kaboski......................
Joseph J. Kwederis....................
RobertJ. Maltarich . ..................
Andrew D. McLean...................
Kenneth I. Swanson. ..................
Fred D. Wampnar ....................

All directors and executive officers as

agroup (12 persons) ............ e

*  Less than 1%.

Number of Share of
New Common Stock
Beneficially Owned

Percent of Class

Number of Shares of
Series AA Preferred Stock
Beneficially Owned

Percent of Class

50,087
6,966

45

50.09%
6.97%

6.88%
6.38%

3.98%
“%
“%
*%
“%
*%

*%

*%
*%
*%
*%o
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%o
*%
*%

0.04%

41,894

60,776

12.48%
Y%

18.11%
*%

10.49%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%
*%%
*%

*%

(1) Includes (i) 9,422 shares of New Common Stock held by JP Morgan, (ii) 22,697 shares of New
Common Stock held by Southwest Industrial Films, LLC and 1,324 shares of New Common Stock
held by Southwest Industrial Films II, LLC, (iii) 14,699 shares of New Common Stock and 36,998
shares of Series AA Preferred Stock held by Flexible Films LLC, and (iv) 1,945 shares of New
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@)

)

*)

()

Common Stock and 4,896 of Series AA Preferred Stock held by Flexible Films II LLC. The managing
member of each of Southwest Industrial Films, LL.C, Southwest Industrial Films II, LLC, Flexible
Films, LLC and Flexible Films 1I, LLC is J.P. Morgan Partners (BHCA), L.P. J.P. Morgan Partners
(BHCA), L.P. is controlled by JPMP MasterFund Manager, L.P., its general partner which is
controlled by J.P. Morgan Capital Corp. as its general partner, J.P. Morgan Capital Corp. is a wholly
owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co., a publicly traded company (NYSE: JPM). J.P. Morgan
Partners (BHCA), L.P. owns 99.999% of Southwest Industrial Films, LLC, 100% of Southwest
Industrial Films II, LLC, 99.9998% of Flexible Films LLC and 100% of Flexible Films II, LL.C.
Voting and disposition decisions at JPMP Capital Corp. are made by three or more of its officers, and
therefore no individual officer of JPMP Capital Corp. is the beneficial owner of the securities. J.P.
Morgan Partners (BHCA), L.P., Southwest Industrial Films, LLC, Southwest Industrial Films II, LLC,
Flexible Films LLC and Flexible Films II, LLC each have an address of 270 Park Avenue 3%th Floor,
New York, New York 10017.

CCMP, a private equity firm formed in August 2006 by the former buyout/growth equity professionals
of J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC, serves as investment advisor to JP Morgan. Mr. McKenna and
Mr. Walsh are managing directors of CCMP.

The address of Harbinger Capital Partners is 555 Madison Avenue, 16™ Floor, New York,
New York 10022.

Includes (i) 2,253 shares of New Common Stock held by King Street Capital L.P., (ii) 4,184 shares of
New Common Stock held by King Street Capital Ltd. and (iii} 446 shares of New Common Stock held
by King Street Institutional Ltd. reflected on the accounts maintained by Bank of New York as the
Company’s transfer agent. The address of King Street Capital L.P. and King Street institutional Ltd. is
65 East 55" Street, 30" Floor, New York, New York 10020. The mailing address of King Street
Capital Ltd. is P.O. Box 92, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands. As disclosed in the

Schedule 13G, described below in footnote (5), King Street Institutional Ltd. merged into King Street
Capital Ltd.

As disclosed on Schedule 13G filed jointly by King Street Capital, L.P., King Street Capital, Ltd., King
Street Advisers, L.L.C., King Street Capital Management, L.L.C., O. Francis Biondi, Jr. and Brian J.
Higgins on December 31, 2006, because of relationships described therein, (i) King Street Capital,
L.P. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 19,889 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock,

(i) King Street Capital, Ltd. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 40,887 shares of Series AA
Preferred Stock, (iii) King Street Advisers, L.L.C. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 19,889
shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, consisting of the shares of Serics AA Preferred Stock owned by
King Street Capital, L.P., (iv) King Street Capital Management, L.L.C. may be deemed to be the
beneficial owner of 60,776 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, consisting of the shares of Sertes AA
Preferred Stock which are beneficially owned by King Street Capital, L.P., King Street Capital, Ltd.,
(v) O. Francis Biondi, Jr. may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of 60,776 shares of Series AA
Preferred Stock, consisting of the shares of Series AA Preferred Stock which are beneficially owned by
King Street Capital, L.P. and King Street Capital, Ltd. and (vi) Brian J. Higgins may be deemed to be
the beneficial owner of 60,776 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, consisting of the shares of

Series AA Preferred Stock which are beneficially owned by King Street Capital, L.P. and, King Street
Capital, Ltd. The mailing address of King Street Capital, Ltd is P.O. Box 92, Road Town, Tortola,
British Virgin Islands. The mailing address of New York Life Capital Partners LP is 51 Madison
Avenue, Suite 3009, New York, New York 10020. The address of King Street Capital, L.P, King Street
Advisers, LL.C., and King Street Capital Management, L.L.C. is 65 East 55" Street, 30® Floor,

New York, New York 10020-1080.
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(6) As disclosed on Schedule 13G filed jointly by Bond Street Capital, L.L.C.,, Sam S. Kim, UBS Willow
Management, L.L.C., UBS Fund Adviser, L.L.C., PW Alternative Asset Management, Inc. and UBS
Willow Fund, L.L.C. on December 31, 2006, because of relationships described therein, the reporting
parties may be deemed to be the beneficial owners of 35,212 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock. The
address of Bond Street Capital, L.L.C. and Sam S. Kim is 700 Palisade Avenue, Englewood Cliffs,
New Jersey 07632, The address of UBS Willow Management, L.I..C., UBS Fund Adviser, L.L.C., PW
Alternative Asset Management, Inc. and UBS Willow Fund, L.L.C. is 1285 Avenue of the Americas,
New York, New York, 10016.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth information relating to our equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2006. Our Series M Preferred Stock is closely held and not publicly traded. Therefore, our
Board of Directors approves our equity compensation plan without obtaining approval directly from our
sharcholders.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available
to be issued Weighted-average for Future issnance under
upon exercise exercise price equity compensation plans
of outstanding options, of outstanding options, {excluding secorities
Plan catepory warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column(a)){1)
(a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plan approved
by security holders............... — — —
Equity compensation plan not
approved by security holders . .. . .. — — 8,000
Total.........cooviiiiiiit, — — 8,000

(1) As of December 31, 2006, no securities had been issued pursuant to our Stock Plan. On February 20,
2007, we issued 8,000 shares of our Series M Preferred Stock, to certain of our employees pursuant to
our Stock Plan, The shares were issued for an aggregate purchase price of $160,000.

Our Stock Plan was not approved by security holders. The material features of this plan are described
under Item 11, “Compensation Discussion and Analysis—Equity-related Compensation,” Item 13 “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions,” and in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Transactions with Management
Agreements with Executive Officers and Directors

Mr. Bevis. On December 21, 2006, the Company entered into an amended Employment Agreement
with its President and Chief Executive Officer, Harold C. Bevis. The agreement amended certain
provisions of his current employment agreement to comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In addition, the amendment (1) increases Mr. Bevis’ annual
base salary to $675,000, (2} extends Mr. Bevis’ employment term through July 31, 2010, (3) provides for
Mr. Bevis’ eligibility to participate in (i} the Pliant Management Incentive Plan for each calendar year
beginning in 2006, (ii) the Stock Plan and (iii} the Cash Plan, and (4} provides for certain additional
perquisites in an amount not to exceed $60,000 per annum.

In addition, Mr. Bevis is entitled to receive an annual fee of $50,000 for serving on the board of
directors, plus $1,000 for each special meeting of the board.
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Mr. Corey. We have a four-year employment agreement with Mr. Corey, our Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer, effective June 10, 2005. The employment agreement provides for
the payment of a base salary of $367,500, subject to discretionary increases. The employment agreement
also provides that Mr, Corey will participate in all bonus and incentive plans or arrangements which may
be provided by the company from time to time to its senior executives, with award opportunities
commensurate with his position, duties and responsibilities.

Mr. Kwederis.  Although we do not have formal employment contracts with other officers, our letter
of February 2, 2005 confirming our employment offer to Joseph J. Kwederis, currently our Chief Financial
Officer, outlines certain terms and conditions of his employment. The letter provides for the payment of a
base annual salary of $200,000 and for three weeks annual vacation. It also provides that Mr. Kwederis will
participate in the annual Management Incentive Plan and the 2004 Long Term Incentive Plan, as well as
the salaried employees’ health and welfare benefit plans. The letter states that if Mr, Kwederis’
employment is involuntarily terminated without cause (as determined by our Board), he will be eligible for
one year of severance pay in a lump sum and outplacement support. By letter dated August 26, 2005, the
company confirmed Mr. Kwederis’ promotion to Chief Financial Officer and increased his base annual
salary to $225,000.

Mr. Aubum. Our correspondence of July 19, 2005, with Stephen T. Auburn, containing our offer and
his acceptance of the position of our General Counsel, provides that if Mr. Auburn’s employment is
involuntarily terminated without cause, or as a result of a change of control, he will be eligible for not less
than 52 weeks of base salary continuation, subject to delivery of a release of employment-related claims
and customary covenants.

Mr. Swanson.  Our letter of August 17, 2004 to Mr. Swanson confirms his participation in the LTI
Plan and other plans and provides that if Mr. Swanson’s employment is involuntarily terminated without
cause (as determined by our Board) he will be cligible for one year of base salary continuation and
outplacement service.

Stock Plan and Cash Plan

The Stock Plan provides for the issuance to the Chief Executive Officer and other officers of the
Company of Series M Preferred Stock that, when combined with awards under the Cash Plan, entitle such
officers to a maximum of 8% of the equity value of the Company, in the aggregate. Participants in the
Stock Plan and Cash Plan will only receive distributions upon the occurrence of certain extraordinary
corporate transactions, such as a sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets or a change in
control of the Company. The Stock Plan and Cash Plan are administered by the Board of Directors or a
committee composed of non-employee directors.

On February 20, 2007, we issued 8,000 shares of our Series M Preferred Stock, to certain of our
employees pursuant to our Stock Plan. The shares were issued for an aggregate purchase price of $160,000.

Each grant of the Series M Preferred Stock is governed by a Restricted Stock Agreement, dated as of
February 20, 2007. The parties to each Restricted Stock Agreement agreed that, as of the date thereof, the
fair market value of each share of Series M Preferred Stock was $103.

Because the Series M Preferred Stock has a fair market value in excess of the purchase price paid by
the recipients of the Series M Preferred Stock, and it is contemplated that the holders of Series M
Preferred Stock will file election under Section 83(b) under the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the
shares of Series M Preferred Stock purchased, each purchaser of Series M Preferred Stock will recognize
income of $83 per share in connection with their purchase of Series M Preferred Stock. In order to
alleviate such tax consequences, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors approved the
payment of cash bonuses to each of the purchasers of Series M Preferred, which were approximated to
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equal the income tax payable (on a grossed-up basis) by such grantees on account of the issuance of the
Series M Preferred Stock. See Item 11, “Executive Compensation—Compensation Discussion and
Analysis—Equity-Related Compensation.”

2004 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan

Pursuant to our reorganization, all former officers and directors who were holders of the Series B
Preferred Stock issued under the 2004 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan received an amount equal to $5,258
per share in cash on account of each vested share, or portion thereof, of Series B Preferred Stock hetd by
such holder. Holders of Series B Preferred Stock who are current directors or officers agreed to forego any
distribution in consideration for their eligibility to participate in our new incentive programs. All unvested
Series B Preferred Stock interests were cancelled, annulled and extinguished, and the holders thereof were
not entitled to any distribution on account of such unvested shares.

Transactions Between Pliant and Stockholders
Registration Rights Agreement

On July 18, 2006, we entered into a Registration Rights Agreement that is binding on all parties
receiving shares of our Series AA Preferred Stock, pursuant to the terms of our reorganization. The
Registration Rights Agreement requires us to take all actions reasonably required to permit the Series AA
Preferred Stock to be quoted on the NASDAQ OTC Bulletin Board as soon as practicable following
July 18, 2006. The Registration Rights Agreement also provides that, at any time after the nine month and
prior to the second anniversary of the effective date of the reorganization plan, certain holders of the
Series AA Preferred Stock can require Pliant to register an underwritten public offering of the Series AA
Preferred Stock.

The Stockholders’ Agreement

On July 18, 2006, we entered into the Stockholders’ Agreement that is binding on all parties receiving
shares of our New Common Stock. The Stockholders’ Agreement provides for certain restrictions on
transfer of the Common Stock and requires that all transferees of Common Stock become a party to the
Stockholders’ Agreement. The Stockholders’ Agreement also grants to certain holders of New Common
Stock the right to purchase their pro rata share of any new equity securities issued, subject to exceptions
for acquisitions, management equity and certain other transactions. The Stockholders’ Agreement also
contains “drag-along rights” that require all holders of New Common Stock to participate in and vote in
favor of certain sales of the Company approved by the Board of Directors and certain holders of New
Common Stock. The Stockholders’ Agreement also provides that the 5 (out of a total 7) members of the
Board of Directors elected by the holders of a majority of the New Common Stock will consist of the chief
executive officer of the Company and 4 members appointed by the holders of a majority of the New
Common Stock held by persons defined as “permitted holders” under the indentures for our first and
second lien notes. The Stockholders’ Agreement also provides that certain holders of New Common Stock
will have demand registration rights following July 18, 2009 and additional demand and piggyback
registration rights following an initial public offering of the New Common Stock.

Other Relationships

As of March 13, 2007, JP Morgan owned approximately 50.09% of our outstanding common stock,
and 12.48% of our outstanding Series AA Preferred Stock. CCMP, a private equity firm formed in
August 2006 by the former buyout/growth equity professionals of J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC, serves as an
investment adviser to JP Morgan as to their investment in the Company.
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Mr. Walsh and Mr. McKenna are managing directors of CCMP and in addition are limited partners of
JPMP Master Fund Manager, L.P. (“Master Fund”), the indirect general partner of JP Morgan. Mr.
McKenna and Mr. Walsh each disclaim any beneficial ownership of any shares beneficially owned by
Master Fund or its affiliates (including affiliates of JP Morgan), except to the extent of their respective
pecuniary interest therein, if any.

Transactions Between Pliant and Other Related Persons

Consulting Agreement with NB Consulting Group, LLC. We entered into a Consulting Agreement with
NB Consulting Group, LLC for a term of one year, effective as of March 1, 2006, during which the
NB Consulting Group will provide certain consulting services to us, as described in that agreement.
Nathalie Bevis, Principal and Chief Executive Officer of NB Consulting Group, is the spouse of Harold C.
Bevis, our President and Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the Agreement, NB Consulting Group will
be paid $86.54/hour for performance of such services, and will not receive more than $180,000 on an
annual basis. As Principal and Chief Executive Officer of NB Consulting Group, Mrs. Bevis derives benefit
from this Agreement.

The Consulting Agreement was approved by the Compensation Committee on October 26, 2006 using
the criteria set forth in the Company’s subsequently adopted Related Person Transaction Policy.

Related Person Transaction Policy

Policy and Procedures with Respect to Related Persons Transactions. 'The Pliant Corporation Related
Person Transaction Policy (the “Policy”), adopted on March 2, 2007, is a written policy governing the
procedures for review, approval and ratification of certain Related Persons Transactions. Any transaction
fitting the definition of Related Parly Transaction, regardless of the amount in question, must be reviewed,
and approved or ratified under the Policy. Only those Related Person Transactions that are found to be in,
or not inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company and its stockholders will be approved. Pursuant
to the Policy, the law department shall receive notice of any proposed Related Party Transaction. The
General Counsel will assess any proposed transaction that involves an amount of $50,000 or less. The law
department will submit to the Compensation Committee any transaction that involves an amount in excess
of $50,000 and the Compensation Committee must consider all relevant facts and circumstances in its
review.

The Policy also requires the Compensation Committee to review any pending, ongoing or completed
Related Party Transactions that have not been previously approved or previously ratified under the Policy
and to evaluate all options including ratification, amendment, termination or rescission. The
Compensation Commiltee must review certain ongoing transactions at its first meeting of each fiscal year.

The Policy has adopted the definition of Related Person Transaction from Item 404, of the
Regulation $-K rules, and covers transactions, arrangements or relationships between the Company,
including any of its subsidiaries and: (i) any director, executive officer or nominee to one of these
positions; (ii) any beneficial owner of more than 5% of any class of voting securities; (iii} any immediate
family member of or person in the household of any director, executive officer, nominee, or more than 5%
beneficial owner; (iv) any entity in which a director, executive officer, nominee or more than 5% beneficial
owner is employed, is a general partner, principal or similar position, or more than 5% beneficial owner.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Fees for professional services provided by our independent auditors in each of the last two fiscal years,
in each of the following categories are:

2006 2005
T L =)< AP $1,331,975 $1,456,724
Audit-related fees ... .. e _— —
. O = S 233,423 145,500
AllOther f8eS ... . i et i et e e e e

$1,565,398 $1,602,224

Fees for audit services include fees associated with the annual audit, the reviews of the Company’s
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, statutory audit requirements internationally, comfort letters and
responses to Commission comments regarding Form S-1 and Form S-4 filings. Tax fees included tax
planning and restructuring matters. Audit related fees included due diligence fees for acquisitions and
advisory services related to Sarbanes-Oxley matters.

All audit and other fees paid to our independent auditor are pre-approved by the Audit Committee.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a)(1) Pliant Corporation and Subsidiaries Financial Statements:
Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedule:
Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

The remaining schedules set forth in Regulation 8-X have not been included because they are not
applicable to our business.
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number

2.1

22

23

24

31

32

33

4.1

42

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

Debtors’ Joint Plan of Reorganization (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant Corporation on March 20, 2006).

Debtors’ Second Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization, dated as of April 18, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant
Corporation on April 21, 2006).

Debtors’ Third Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization, dated as of June 5, 2006 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant Corporation on
June 7, 2006).

Debtors’ Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization, dated as of June 19, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant
Corporation on June 19, 2006).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Pliant Corporation, effective as of
July 18, 2006 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed by Pliant Corporation on July 24, 2006).

Amended and Restated By-laws of Pliant Corporation, effective July 18, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant Corporation on
July 24, 2006).

Form of Stock Certificate evidencing the Series AA Preferred Stock (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-A filed by Pliant Corporation on November 17,
2006).

Indenture, dated as of May 30, 2003, among Pliant Corporation, the Note Guarantors party
thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to
Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-106432)).

Form of First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 30, 2004, among Pliant Corporation,
the New Note Guarantor party thereto, the existing Note Guarantors party thereto and
Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to Pliant
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-115114)).

Form of Indenture, dated as of February 17, 2004, among Pliant Corporation, the Note
Guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee (incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

Form of Senior Secured Discount Note (incorporated by reference to Exhibit B to Exhibit 4.8
to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003
filed on March 26, 2004).

Second Priority Security Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2003, among Pliant Corporation, the
subsidiary guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-106432)).

Form of Supplement No. 1 to Second Priority Security Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004,
among Uniplast Industries Co. and Wilmington Trust Company, as collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-115114)).
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47 Form of Security Agreement dated as of February 17, 2004, among Pliant Corporation, the
subsidiary guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

4.8 Form of Canadian Security Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2004, among Uniplast
Industries Co., the guarantors party thereto, and Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

4.9 Second Priority Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2003, among Pliant Corporation, the
subsidiary guarantors party thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-106432)).

4.10 Form of Supplement No. 1 to Second Priority Pledge Agreement, dated as of April 30, 2004,
among Uniplast Industries Co. and Wilmington Trust Company, as collateral agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-115114)).

4.11 Form of Pledge Agreement dated as of February 17, 2004, among Pliant Corporation, the
subsidiary pledgors party thereto and Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral Agent
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

4.12 Form of Canadian Pledge Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2004, among Uniplast
Industries Co., the pledgors party thereto, and Wilmington Trust Company, as Collateral Agent
{incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

413 Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2000, among Pliant
Corporation, the Note Guarantors party thereto, and Chase Securities, Inc. and Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc., as Initial Purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Pliant
Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-42008)}).

4.14 Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of April 10, 2002, amang Pliant
Corporation, the Note Guarantors party thereto, and J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc. and
Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as Initial Purchasers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to
Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-86532)).

4.15 Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 30, 2003, among Pliant
Corporation, the Note Guarantors party thereto, and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Deutsche
Bank Securities, Inc. and Credit Suisse First Boston LLC, as Initial Purchasers (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No, 333-106432)).

4.16 Form of Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2004, among
Pliant Corporation, the Note Guarantors party thereto, and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., Credit
Suisse First Boston LLC and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc., as Initial Purchasers (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

417 Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of February 17, 2004 (as amended and restated as
of May 6, 2005) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.26 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2
to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-114608)).
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4.18

4.19

4.20

421

422

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Exchange and Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 6, 2005 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.26 to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to Pliant Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-114608)).

Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Pliant Corporation, certain subsidiaries of Pliant
Corporation, and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant Corporation on
July 24, 2006).

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2006, with respect to the Amended and
Restated Indenture, dated as of May 6, 2005, among Pliani Corporation, certain subsidiaries of
Pliant Corporation, and Wilmington Trust Company, N.A,, as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Report on Form §-K filed by Pliant Corporation on
July 24, 2006).

Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Pliant Corporation and holders of
Pliant Corporation’s Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant Corporation on July 24, 2006).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Pliant Corporation and
holders of Pliant Corporation’s Series AA Redeemable Preferred Stock (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed by Pliant Corporation on
July 24, 2006).

Form of Amended and Restated Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2004,
among Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as Credit Agent, Wilmington Trust
Company, as Second Priority Noteholder Agent and as 2004 Notcholder Agent, and Pliant
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2000, between Pliant Corporation and
Jack E. Knott (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-42008)).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2000, in favor of Pliant Corporation made by Jack E.
Knott (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-42008)).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of April 1, 2001, to the Pledge Agreement dated as of May 31,
2000, among Pliant Corporation and Jack E. Knott (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36
to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on

Form $-4 (File No. 333-42008)).

Release Agreement, dated December 31, 2004, between Pliant Corporation and Brian Johnson
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.62 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Letter Agreement, dated January 26, 2005, between Pliant Corporation and James Ide
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.63 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Severance and Release Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2005, between Pliant Corporation
and Lori Roberts (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Pliant Corporation 2004 Management Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.65 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).
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10.9
10.10

10.11

10.12

10.1t3
10.14
10.15
10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19
10.20

10.21

Pliant Corporation 2004 MIP Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.66 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Fourth Amendment to the Pliant Corporation Defined Benefit Pension Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.69 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Buy Out Agreement, dated January 5, 2005, among Pliant Corporation, Pliant Investment, Inc.
and Supreme Plastics Group PLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.70 to Pliant
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on
March 31, 2005).

Assignment of Limited Liability Company Interests, dated January 5, 2005, between Pliant
Investment, Inc. and Supreme Plastics Group PLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.71
to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004
filed on March 31, 2005).

Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets, dated July 12, 2004, among Pliant Corporation,
Pliant Solutions Corporation and Kittrich Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Pliant Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 6, 2004).

Management Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2005, between Pliant
Corporation and certain eligible officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pliant
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2005).

Severance and Release Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2005, between Pliant Corporation
and Lort Roberts (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Employment Agreement, dated June 10, 2005, between Pliant Corporation and R. David Corey
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Pliant Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed by on June 9, 2005).

Working Capital Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Pliant Corporation,
certain subsidiaries of Pliant Corporation, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA,
as administrative agent, and Merrill Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger
and book manager (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly
Report on 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2006, among PliantCorporation Pty Ltd.,
Pliant Corporation of Canada Ltd., Pliant Film Products GmbH, Aspen Industrial, S.A.

de C.V., the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA, as administrative agent, and
Merrill Lynch Commercial FinanceCorp., as sole lead arranger and book manager
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly Report on 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Pliant Corporation 2006 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan, dated as of July 18, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly Report on 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Pliant Corporation Deferred Cash Incentive Plan adopted as of July 18, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly Report on 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Employment Agreement, dated December 21, 2006, by and between Pliant Corporation and
Harold C. Bevis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed by Pliant Corporation on December 22, 2006).
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21.1*
31.1*
31.2*
32.1*

322"

Subsidiaries of Pliant Corporation.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

*

Filed with this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized on March 30, 2006.

PLIANT CORPORATION

By

/s HAROLD C. BEVIS

Harold C. Bevis, Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below on March 30, 2006 by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the

capacities indicated.

By

By

By

By

By

By

By

By
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Pliant Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Pliant Corporation and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 20053, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
cash flows and changes in stockholders’ deficit for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at
Item 15(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were
not engaged to perform an audit of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Pliant Corporation and Subsidiaries at December 31, 2006
and 2005 and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, effective for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2006, the Company adopted certain provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158,
“Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans™.

s/ ERNST & YOUNG, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 23, 2007
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PLIANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (Dollars in Thousands, Except per Share Data)

2006 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS :
Cash and cash eqUIVAlEILS. . ... ... . i i i i e e e e e $ 4,199 § 12802
Receivables:
Trade accounts, net of allowances of $3,751 and $5,672, respectively .. ...................... 137,042 133,268
140 1417 o S 3,435 4,416
Byt 114 o = 100,103 106,826
Prepaidexpensesandother. ........ ... ... i 7.279 1,222
Income taxes receivable . .. .. . . e e 998 1,074
Deferred INCOME taXes . . ...ttt ittt et et et e e e e e 13,754 11,424
Total CUMTENLASSELS . . . ..o e e e 266,810 277,032
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net . . ..ottt ettt e i, 304,443 294,993
GOODWILL .. e e e e e 72,257 182,245
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS, DNet. . .. oottt it et ettt e e, 12,389 14,719
OTHER ASSE T S . . i et e e et e e e e e et 21,858 51,916
OBl A88EES . . . . i e e e e e e e $ 677,757 § 820,905
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of long-term debtand debtindefault .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... $ 975  § 973,244
Trade accounts payable. . ... ... .. e 81,231 52,000
Accrued liabilities:
Interest payable. .. ... .. i e e e s 10,055 34,359
LOITE3T0) 1 1o g () o) - J U 7,403 9,538
L8 11T 44,463 41,307
Total current Habilities, . . ... . it i i i i e et e e e e 144,127 1,110,448
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current POrtOn ... ...t e et e e e e e e e eeaaaan 736,656 8,451
OTHER LIABILITIES ... .. e et e eaaas 29,446 34,677
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES . . ..ttt et 31,287 31,575
SHARES SUBJECT TO MANDATORY REDEMPTION ... ... ... . i it — 270,689
Total liabilities. . .. ... o e i 941,516 1,455,840
REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK:
Series B—720 shares authorized, no par value, 628 shares outstanding at December 31, 2005....... — 102
REDEEMABLE COMMON STOCK—no par value; 60,000 shares authorized; 10,873 shares
outstanding as of December 31, 2003, net of related stockholders’ notes receivable of $1,827.... ... — 6,645
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT:
Redeemable Preferred Stock—Series AA—335,650 shares authorized, par value $.01 per share,
with a redemption and liquidation value of $1,000 per share plus accumulated dividends, 335,592
shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and no shares outstanding at December 31,2005 ...... 198,899 —
Redeemable Preferred Stock—Series M—38,000 shares authorized, par value $.01 per share, no
shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and December 31,2005 . . ........................ — —
Common stock—par value $.01 per share; 100,050,000 shares authorized, 100,003 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2006 and no shares outstanding at December 31,2005............ 1 —
Common stock—no par value; 10,000,000 shares previously authorized, no shares outstanding at
December 31, 2006 and 542,618 share outstanding at December 31,2005 ... ................. — 103,376
Paidincapital . . ... e 154,521 —
Warrants to purchase common stock ... ... .. L — 39,133
Accumulated deficit ... ... ... (598.934) (763,940)
Stockholders’ notes receivable, net of reserves of $2,487and $0. ... ... . ... .. Ll — (660)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . ... ... e {18,246) (19,591)
Total stockholders'deficit . .. ... ... i, (263,759) (641,682)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' DEFICIT .. .. ... ... i iennnns $ 677,757 3 820,905

See notes to consolidated financial statements,
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PLIANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (Dollars in Thousands)

NET SALES . ... i
COSTOFSALES ...ttt i e
Grossprofit. . ..o e
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Selling, general and administrative . ...................
Research and development ...l
Impairmentof goodwill. ............. ..ol
Impairment of fixed assets . ...l
Restructuring and othercosts ...................o.0nt
Reorganization CostS. .. ...vevrv v canriieannrness
Total operating eXpenses .. ....oovvevenreernerneans
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)......cooooiiiiie et
INTEREST EXPENSE—Current and Long Term debt . ..
INTEREST EXPENSE—Dividends and accretion on
Redeemable Preferred Stock..................oo 0
GAIN ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT ............
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE), net ...................
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
BEFORE INCOMETAXES ...................... .
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT):
CUITENL . ..ot et e e e
Deferred ... ... e
Total inCOME taX EXPENSE . .. ..o vitvrvrrrneoeennans
INCOME (LOSS) FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Loss from discontinued operations. . ..................
Loss on sale of discontinued operations. . ..............
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS ........
NETINCOME(LOSS) ......ooiiiiiiiiaaees

2006 2005 2004
$1,158,995 $1,072,840 § 968,680
1,017,771 939,709 826,819

141,224 133,131 141,861

71,318 77,051 81,058
8,707 8,705 6,489
109,984 — —
280 - 359
(641) 2,436 2,108
82,369 3,802 —
272,017 91,994 950,014

(130,793) 41,137 51,847
(79,657)  (114,294)  (110,353)

(271)  (40,778)  (35,325)
393,665 — —
2,142 4,082 (737)

185,086  (109,853) _ (94,568)

2,352 1,112 1,794
(2,343) 905 (205)
9 2,017 1,589

185077 _ (111,870) _ (96,157)

— (1,09)  (7,395)
— —  (10,370)

— (1,096) _ (17,765)

§ 185077 § (112,966) $(113,922)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PLIANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (Dollars in Thousands)

Cash flows from operaling activities:
Net ineome (J08S8). . ..ot v i it i i e e
Adjustments to reconcile net income {loss) to net cash provided by (used in) continuing
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . .ooov i i i e i e e e
Impairment of fixed A8SET5. . . ... . e
Amortization and write-off of deferred financing costs and accretion of debt discount . . . ..
Payment-in-kind interestondebt. . . ... ... o
Deferred dividends and accretion on preferredshares. ...... ... ... ...
Write off of original issue debt discountand premium. .. ... .. ... oo
Deferred iNCOME 1AXES . .. . ... oit ittt iar s srsam e ae et assans
Provision for losses on accounts receivable ... ... oo i
Loss from discontinued operations ... ... ..o e e
Write down of impaired assets of discontinued operations. ... ... ......Lono
Non-cash plant cloSINECOSES . .. 4. v it vt i i e e
Write down of impaired goodwill. .. ..o o o oo
{Gain) or losson disposalof assets ... ... .. oo e
Gainon extinguishment ofdebt. . .. ... ... ... L
Curtailment Bain. . ..o v et i i e e e
Minomty INTerest. . . . ..o i e e e
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable. ... oo oo s
Otherreceivables . .. ... . i e e i
BT 1T L= O P
Prepaid expenses andother ... ... .o i e
Intangible assets and Other assets . .. .. ... oot i e
Trade accoums payable .. ... .. ... .
Accrued Habilities, .. . ..o e
Income taxes payablefreceivable. ... ... ... . i
Otherliabilities . .. ... .o i i i e
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operating activities .. ................
Cash flows from continuing investing activities:
Capital expenditures for plant and equipment .. ... i
Proceeds fromsale of assets. ... .. .. . e

Cash flows from continuing financing activities:
Paymentof financing fees .. .. ... ..o s
Net proceeds (et of repurchases) from issuance of common stock, preferred stock and warrants .
Proceeds from issuance of senior discount notes and subordinateddebt ... ...............
Borrowings under FeVOIVET. . ...t s e
Repayments of revolver and term debt due to refinancing . ...
Payments of capital lease obligations . . ... ... .o o il e
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing financing activities . . . ... ............ ...
Discontinued Operations:
Cashused in operations. . ... ... oottt i e i i i s
Cash used in investing activities—<apital expenditures . ... ... o i
Total cash used in discontinued operations. .. ... oo e et
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents . . ... ... ... ... ... ...
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. ... ... .. ... i
Cash and cash equivalents, beginningoftheyear. . .......... ... . oo
Cash and cash equivalents, end of theyear .. ... ... ... i, S

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
=3 =
IR COME LS . . ot i e e i
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:
Plant and equipment acquired under capital leases. . .. ........ ..o .o i e

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2006 2008 2004
$ 185077  $(112,966) $(113922)
40,630 40,538 41,051
280 — 359
22,632 15,244 35072
32,635 19,678 —
2 40,778 35,325
30,458 — -
(2,343) 905 (205)
404 2,608 1,600

- 1,096 13,770

- — 3,995

- — 1,443
109,984 — —
(1,870) (4,452) 546
(393,665) — -
— — 1,562
— (33) (258)
(3.550)  (19391) {22,110
1,033 3,658 3957
6,997 (12,406) (9,059)
(523) (3,173) (202)
7,444 {5.683) 2,443
20,874 (44,776) 6,408
(2,750) 19,993 1,137
472 (1,376) 1,258
(3,923) 2,688 (5.614)
50,567 {(57,070) (1,444)
(40521)  (33,502)  (24,090)
2677 5,190 6,450
(37,844) _(38,312) __(17,640)
(8799)  (12,130) (9,864)
(76) (12) 117

— — 225299
113579 106,924 24,000
(130,924) —  (214,085)
(1,638) (2,048) —
(27,858) 92734 25,467
— (195) (4,495)
— — (348)
— (195) {3,843)

§ (2468) $§ 65 §__ 133
(8,603) 7222 7,272
12,802 5,580 3,308
§ 4199 § 12802 § 5580
$ 41,748 § 60,890 § 80411
$ 2185 § 2507 § 1647
$ 7401 § 4392 § 5058




PLIANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of operations  Pliant Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively “Pliant” or the “Company”)
produce polymer-based {plastic), value-added films for flexible packaging, personal care, medical,
agricultural and industrial applications, QOur manufacturing facilities are located in the United States,
Canada, Mexico, Germany and Australia.

Principles of Consolidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Pliant
Corporation and its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Bankruptcy Filing  On January 3, 2006, Pliant and ten subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions in the
United States Bankruptcy Court for the District of Delaware (the “Bankruptcy Court”) seeking relief
under the provisions of Chapter 11 of title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code™). The
cases are being jeintly administered under the caption “In re: Pliant Corporation, et al., Case
No. 06-10001”, Three of Pliant’s subsidiaries with Canadian operations commenced ancillary proceedings
in a Canadian court to recognize the bankruptcy proceedings as “foreign proceedings” pursuant to
Canada’s Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act (“CCAA”}. Pliant’s subsidiaries in Australia, Germany
and Mexico were not included in the filings.

In connection with the bankruptcy proceedings, the Company entered into a post-petition debtor-in-
possession financing facility with certain lenders led by General Electric Capital Corporation that provided
for a maximum of approximately $68.8 million of additional post-petition financing, subject to borrowing
base availability. The Company continued to operate in the normal course of business during the
reorganization process and all of its 23 manufacturing and research and development facilities around the
world remained open and continued to serve customers.

On June 19, 2006, the Company filed with the Bankruptcy Court its Fourth Amended Joint Plan of
Reorganization (the “Plan”) which was approved by the Bankruptcy Court on June 23, 2006. On July 18,
2006, the Company consummated its reorganization through a series of transactions contemplated in the
Plan. See Note 2—Reorganization for further details. On July 18, 2006, the Company filed with the
Bankruptcy Court a notice announcing the effectiveness of the Plan and the Company emerged from
bankruptcy.

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statement of Position 90-7, “Financial Reporting
by Entities in Reorganization under the Bankruptcy Code” (“SOP 90-7"), applies to the Company’s
financial statements while the Company operates under the provisions of Chapter 11. SOP 90-7 generally
does not change the manner in which financial statements are prepared. However, it does require that the
financial statements for periods subsequent to the filing of the Chapter 11 petition distinguish transactions
and events that are directly associated with the reorganization from the ongoing operations of the business.
Expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisions for losses that can be directly associated with the
reorganization of the business are reported separately as reorganization costs in the statements of
operations. Liabilities affected by implementation of a plan of reorganization are reported at amounts
expected to be allowed, even if they may be settled for lesser amounts. In addition, reorganization related
items that significantly impact cash provided by continuing operations are disclosed separately in the
statement of cash flows.

Use of Estimates  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
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reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition  Sales revenue is recognized when title transfers, the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer, the price is fixed and determinable and collection of the
related receivable is probable, which is generally at the time of shipment. Revenue is reduced by rebates
made to customers based on an estimate of the amount of the rebate at the time the sale is recorded.

Accounts Receivable Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due to the Company from its
normal business activities. Accounts receivable amounts are determined to be past due when the amount is
overdue based on contractual terms. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reflect
the expected uncollectibility of accounts receivable based on past collection history and specific risks
identified among uncollected amounts. Accounts receivable are charged off against the allowance for
doubtful accounts when we have determined that the receivable will not be collected. Collateral is
generally not required for accounts receivable. Two customers represented approximately 13% of
consolidated receivables at December 31, 2006 and two customers represented approximately 14% of
consolidated receivables at December 31, 2005.

Inventories Inventories consist principally of finished film and packaging products and the raw
materials necessary to produce them. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost (on a first-in, first-out
basis} or market value. Resin costs comprise the majority of our total manufacturing costs. Resin shortages
or significant increases in the price of resin could have a significant adverse effect on the Company’s
business.

Plant and Equipment  Plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated economic useful lives of the assets as follows:

Land improvements. ... ... in e iiiiii i 20 years
Buildings and improvements . .. ..o e 20 years
Computer Equipment and Software. ... 3-7 years
Machinery and equipment ... ... ... . i 7-15 years
Furniture, fixtures and vehicles. ..........o oo 3-7 years
Leasehold improvements .. ......... it it Lower of useful life

(10-20 years or
term of lease
agreement)

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred and costs of improvements and
betterments are capitalized. Upon disposal, related costs and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the accounts and resulting gains or losses are reflected in operations.

Costs incurred in connection with the construction or major rebuild of equipment are capitalized as
construction in progress. No depreciation is recognized on these assets until placed in service.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives
are no longer amortized, but are subject to an annual impairment test based on the fair value of the assets.
Amortization of other intangible asscts is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated
economic useful lives of 5-15 years. The Company evaluates the carrying value of goodwill during the
fourth quarter of each year and between annual evaluations if events occur or circumstances change that
would more likely than not reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying amount. When
evaluating whether goodwill is impaired, the Company compares the fair value of the reporting unit to
which the goodwill is assigned to the reporting unit’s carrying amount, including goodwill. The fair value of
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the reporting unit is estimated using a combination of the discounted cash flow method, a variation of the
income approach, and the guideline company approach, a variation of the market approach. If the carrying
amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then the amount of the impairment loss must be
measured. The impairment loss would be calculated by comparing the implied fair value of reporting unit
goodwill to its carrying amount. In calculating the implied fair value of reporting unit goodwill, the fair
value of the reporting unit is allocated to all of the other assets and liabilities of that unit based on their
fair values. The excess of the fair value of a reporting unit over the amount assigned to its other assets and
liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwill. An impairment loss would be recognized when the carrying
amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. (See Note 6)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets When events or conditions indicate a potential impairment, the
Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets, including amortizable intangible assets, based
upon current and expected undiscounted cash flows, and recognizes an impairment when the estimated
undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the asset. Measurement of the amount of
impairment, if any, is based upon the difference between the asset’s carrying value and fair value.

Other Assets  Other assets consist primarily of deferred debt issuance costs, deposits, and spare parts.
Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using a straight line method which approximates the effective
yield method.

Cash and Cash Equivalents For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, we
consider short-term highly liquid investments with maturity when purchased of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash generated outside of the United States is generally subject to taxation if repatriated.

Income Taxes Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial and tax reporting purposes. The Company, like other
multi-national companies, is regularly audited by federal, state and foreign tax authorities, and tax
assessments may arise several years after tax returns have been filed. Accordingly, tax reserves have been
recorded when, in management’s judgment, it is not probable that the Company’s tax position will
ultimately be sustained. While predicting the outcome of the audits involves uncertainty and requires
estimates and informed judgments, the Company believes that the recorded tax liabilities are adequate and
appropriate. The judgments and estimates made at a point in time may change based on the outcome of
tax audits, as well as changes to or further interpretation of regulations. Income tax expense is adjusted in
the period in which these events occur or when the statute of limitations for a specific exposure item
has expired.

Derivative Financial Instruments 'The Company's borrowings under the credit facilities are at variable
rates of interest and expose us to interest rate risk. The Company periodically utilizes interest rate
derivative contracts to reduce the effect of interest rate increases. (See Note 7).

Foreign Currency Translation The accounts of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into
U.S. dollars using the exchange rate at cach balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and an average
exchange rate for each month for revenues, expenses, gains and losses. Transactions are translated using
the exchange rate at each transaction date. Where the local currency is the functional currency, translation
adjustments are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity (deficit). Where the U.S. dollar
is the functional currency, translation adjustments are recorded in other income within current operations.

Shipping and Handling Costs.  Shipping and handling costs are included in cost of sales.

Accounting For Stock-Based Compensation Flans  As of December 31, 2006, the Company had no
stock based compensation plans for which grants were issued. For 2005 and 2004, the Company applied
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for stock-based
compensation plans as they relate to employees and directors. Had compensation cost for all the
outstanding options been determined in accordance with SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
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Compensation,” our net loss for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 would have been the
following pro forma amounts (in thousands):

2005 2004
ASTEPOTtEd . . . oottt et e $(112,966) $(113,922)
Pro forma stock compensation EXpense. . .. ........ovviiviviiranns (CH)] (289)
ProfOIMa ..ottt ittt e $(113,013) $(114,211)

The fair market value of each option was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option valuation model based on the following assumptions for 2005 and 2004 grants, respectively: risk free
rate of return of 4.0% in 2005 and 2004; expected life of 4 years to 9 years; dividend yield of 0%; and
volatility of 40%, The weighted average fair value of the options as determined by the minimum vatue
option-pricing model was $146 per share for 2005 and 2004.

Reclassifications  Certain reclassifications have been made to the consolidated financial statements
for comparative purposes. In 2005, the Company began separately disclosing the operating, investing and
financing portions of the cash flows attributable to its discontinued operations, which in prior periods were
reported on a combined basis as a single amount.

New Accounting Pronouncements In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123(R) (revised
December 2004), “Shar¢-Based Payment”, which is a revision of SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” This
statement requires that the fair value at the grant date resulting from all share-based payment transactions
be recognized in the financial statements. Further, SFAS 123(R) requires entities to apply a fair-value
based measurement method in accounting for these transactions. This value is recorded over the vesting
period. The Company adopted SFAS 123(R) effective January 1, 2006. No grants were awarded or
exercised in 2006 and all outstanding grants were forfeited in connection with our emergence from
bankruptcy. Had the Company adopted SFAS 123(R) in prior periods, the impact of the standard would
have been approximately the impact described in the disclosure of pro forma loss presented above in this
note to the consolidated financial statements.

In July 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Interpretation No. 48
(“FIN 48"}, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for
uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with
SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. The new FASB standard also provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. The
provisions of FIN 48 are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company
intends to adopt FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007 as required. The cumulative affect of adopting FIN 48
will be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158 (“SFAS 158”), “Employers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans—an amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R).” SFAS 158 requires an employer to recognize a plan’s funded status in its
statement of financial position, measure a plan’s assets and obligations as of the end of the employer’s
fiscal year and recognize the changes in a defined benefit postretirement plan’s funded status in
comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. SFAS 158’s requirement to recognize the
funded status of a benefit plan and new disclosure requirements are effective as of the end of the fiscal
year ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of
the date of the employer's fiscal year-end statement of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending
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after December 15, 2008. The Company adopted the measurement, recognition and disclosure provisions
of SFAS No. 158 at December 31, 2006.

2. Reorganization

On January 3, 2006, Pliant and ten subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions in the Bankruptcy Court
seeking relief under the Bankruptcy Code. Three of the Company’s subsidiaries with Canadian operations
commenced ancillary proceedings in a Canadian court to recognize the Chapter 11 bankruptcy proceedings
as “foreign proceedings.” The Company’s operations in Mexico, Germany, and Australia were not
included in the Chapter 11 filing.

On June 19, 2006, the Company filed with the Bankruptcy Court the Plan which was approved by the
Bankruptcy Court on June 23, 2006. On July 18, 2006, the Company consummated its reorganization
through a series of transactions contemplated in the Plan and filed with the Bankruptcy Court a notice
announcing the effectiveness of the Plan.

On July 18, 2006, pursuant to the Plan, the Company also effected the following transactions:

changed its state of incorporation from Utah to Delaware;
extinguished its Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock, no par value (“Series B Preferred Stock™);

issued (i) an aggregate principal amount of $34,967,000 of 13% Senior Subordinated Notes due
2010 (the “New Subordinated Notes™), (ii) 335,592 shares of Series AA Redeemable Preferred
Stock, par value $.01 per share (“Series AA Preferred Stock™), and (iii) 100,003 shares of new
common stock, par value $.01 per share (“New Common Stock) in exchange for (A) all of its 13%
Senior Subordinated Notes due 2010 (the “2000/2002 Notes™), (B) all of its Series A Cumulative
Exchangeable Redeemable Preferred Stock, no par value (the “Series A Preferred Stock™), (C) its
existing common stock (“Old Common Stock™) and (D) warrants to purchase its Old Common
Stock;

made cash payments to the applicable trustee of (A) $3,200,000 for further distribution to the
holders of the 2000/2002 Notes and (B) $18,529,375.55 ($4 million of which was a consent fee and
the balance of which was the missed March 1, 2006 interest payment and the interest owed on that
interest payment) for further distribution to the holders of its 11% % Senior Secured Notes due
2009 {the “2003 Notes”) and reinstated the 2003 Notes;

reinstated its 11.35% (formerly 11%4%) Senior Secured Discount Notes due 2009 (the “2004
Notes”) and its 11.85% (formerly 11% %) Senior Secured Notes due 2009 (the “Amended 2004
Notes™) and increased the interest rate on the 2004 Notes and the Amended 2004 Notes by .225%;

entered into (i) a Working Capital Credit Agreement, among the Company, certain of its
subsidiaries, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA, as administrative agent, and
Merrill Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger and book manager (the “Working
Capital Credit Agreement”), and (ii) a Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, among Pliant Corporation
Pty Ltd., Pliant Corporation of Canada Ltd., Pliant Film Products GmbH and Aspen Industrial,
S.A. de C.V,, as borrowers, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA, as administrative
agent, and Merrill Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger and book manager (the
“Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, and together with the Working Capital Credit Agreement, the
“Exit Credit Facilities”) to replace the amended revolving credit facility dated November 21, 2005
(the “Amended and Restated Credit Agreement”) and the Senior Secured, Super Priority, Priming
Debtor-in-Possession Credit Agreement dated as of January 4, 2006 (the “DIP Credit Facility”);
and
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¢ cntered into the Stockholders’ Agreement with respect to the New Common Stock and a
Registration Rights Agreement dated July 18, 2006 (the “Registration Rights Agreement”) with
respect to the Series AA Preferred Stock.

As a result, the prior credit facilities, the indenture dated May 31, 2000 governing the 2000 Notes (the
%2000 Indenture”)} and the indenture dated April 10, 2002 governing the 2002 Notes (the “2002
Indenture”) were terminated, except, with respect to the indentures, to the extent necessary to permit the
trustee under such indentures to make distributions to the holders of the 2000/2002 Notes under the Plan.
In addition, on July 18, 2006, the Company’s Deferred Cash Incentive Plan (the “Cash Plan”) and 2006
Restricted Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Plan™), became effective.

As a consequence of the Company’s commencement of bankruptcy proceedings, substantially all
pending claims and litigation against it in the United States were automatically stayed pursuant to the
Bankruptcy Code. In addition, as a consequence of the commencement of the proceedings in Canada,
substantially all pending claims and litigation against its subsidiarics operating in Canada also were stayed
by order of the Canadian court. Upon the Company’s emergence from bankruptcy, these stays were lifted.

The Company has worked diligently in an effort to analyze each of the claims filed in its Chapter 11
cases, and has already made significant progress in reconciling such claims with its books and records.
Moreover, the Company has been steadily making distributions to the holders of many such claims, as well
as to creditors appearing in its schedules, and has filed objections to certain claims as necessary. To date,
the Company has filed five omnibus objections to claims, resulting in a reduction to the claims register of
more than 80 claims totaling more than $86.5 million, which were primarily claims made by equity holders
who received distributions of new securities according to the Company’s Plan. In addition, the Company
has paid more than $47 million to satisfy contract cure amounts, vendor trade agreements, and other
unsecured claims. The Company estimates that there are approximately $2.5 million in non-litigation
claims remaining for processing.

As referenced above, the Company completed a debt for equity exchange whereby 100% of its
outstanding $320 million of 2000/2002 Notes and $24.3 million in accrued interest were exchanged for
265,123 shares or 79% of its new Series AA Preferred Stock, approximately 30,000 shares or 30% of its
New Common Stock, $3.2 million in cash consideration and approximately $35 million in New
Subordinated Notes. Pursuant to SFAS 15, Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for Troubled Debt
Restructuring, these §35 million of Wew Subordinated Notes were recorded at aggregate principal plus
interest to maturity of $20.1 million or a total of $55.1 million. In addition, 100% of the $ 298.0 million of
shares subject to mandatory redemption, including the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock were also
exchanged for shares of its new Series AA Preferred Stock and shares of its New Common Stock. The fair
market value of equity received in connection with these exchanges was approximately $182.3 million.
Taking into account the $3.2 million of cash consideration bondholders received and collectability reserves
of $4.9 million established in connection with outstanding stockholders’ notes receivable, this resulted in a
gain on extinguishment of debt of $393.7 million on a combined exchange of $642.3 million of debt and
accrued interest. See Note 7 for additional information regarding the Exit Credit Facilities, the New
Subordinated Notes, the 2004 Notes and the Amended 2004 Notes.

On July 18, 2006, the Company entered into a Stockholders Agreement (the “Stockholders
Agreement”) that is binding on all parties receiving shares of New Common Stock, pursuant to the terms
of the Plan. The Stockholders’ Agreement provides for certain restrictions on transfer of the New
Common Stock and requires that all transferees of New Common Stock become a party to the
Stockholders’ Agreement. The Stockholders’ Agreement also grants to certain holders of New Common
Stock the right to purchase their pro rata share of any new equity securities issued by the Company, subject
to exceptions for acquisitions, management equity and certain other transactions. The Stockholders’
Agreement contains “drag-along rights” that require all holders of New Common Stock to participate in
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and vote in favor of certain sales of the Company approved by the Board of Directors and certain holders
of New Common Stock. It further provides that the 5 (out of a total of 7) members of the Board of
Directors to be etected by the holders of New Common Stock will consist of the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and 4 members appointed by the holders of a majority of the New Common Stock held by
persons defined as “permitted holders” under the indentures for the 2003 Notes, 2004 Notes and
Amended 2004 Notes. Finally, the Stockholders’ Agreement provides that certain holders of New
Common Stock will have demand registration rights after July 18, 2009 and additional demand and
piggyback registration rights following an initial public offering of the New Common Stock.

On July 18, 2006, the Company alsc entered into a Registration Rights Agreement (the “Registration
Rights Agreement™) that is binding on all parties receiving shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, pursuant
to the terms of the Plan. The Registration Rights Agreement requires the Company to take all actions
reasonably required to permit the Series AA Preferred Stock to be quoted on the NASDAQ OTC Bulletin
Board as soon as practicable. The Registration Rights Agreement also provides that, at any time after the
ninth month and prior to the second anniversary of the effective date of the Fourth Amend Plan, certain
holders of the Series AA Preferred Stock can require Pliant to register an underwritten public offering of
the Series AA Preferred Stock.

The Company adopted the Stock Plan on July 18, 2006, which provides for the issuance to the Chief
Executive Officer and other officers of the Company of Series M Preferred Stock that, when combined
with awards under the Cash Plan, will entitle such officers to a maximum of 8% of the equity value of the
Company, in the aggregate. Participants in the Stock Plan and Cash Plan will only receive distributions
upon the occurrence of certain extraordinary corporate transactions, such as a sale of all or substantially all
of the Company’s assets or a change in control of the Company. The Stock Plan and Cash Plan will be
administered by the Company’s Board or a committee composed of non-employee directors. On
February 20, 2007, the Company issued 8,000 shares of its Series M Preferred Stock, to certain of its
employees pursuant to its Stock Plan. The shares were issued for an aggregate purchase price of $160,000.

The Company incurred professional fees and other expenses directly associated with the bankruptcy
proceedings. In addition, the Company has made certain adjustments to the carrying values of certain pre-
petition assets and liabilities. Such costs and adjustments are classified as reorganization costs in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and consist of the following (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Debt subject to compromise;
Write-off of unamortized original issuance, discount,net ...  $ 5862 § — $—
Write-off of unamortized capitalized financing fees........ 15,777 — =
21,639 — —
Mandatorily Redeemable Preferred Stock
Write-off of unamortized original issuance discount. .. . ..... 24,597 — —
Write-off of capitalized financing fees on the DIP Credit
Facility. ... . e 1,475 —_ —
Bondholders’ consentfee ............. ... ... i, 4,000 —_ —_—
Emergence BonusPlan................................... 1,782 — —
Professional fees .............. ... ... . i i i, 28,876 3,802 -
Reorganization costs.................ccoiniineinniannan., $82,369  $3,802 $—
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3. Inventories

Inventories consisted of the following at December 31 (in dollars in thousands):

2006 2005

Finished goods . ... i e e $ 45564 § 46,179
Raw materials andother. . ......... ... ... .. i i 44,656 50,560
WOTK-I-PrOCESS . . ettt it e e e e 9,883 10,087
Total. . e e $100,103 $106,826

4. . Restructuring and Other Costs

Restructuring and other costs include plant closing costs (including costs related to relocation of
manufacturing equipment), charges for impairment of fixed assets related to plant closures, office closing
costs and other costs related to workforce reductions. The following table summarizes restructuring and
other costs for the three years ended December 31 (in dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Plant Closing Costs:

SEVEIANCE - - vttt e e e e $ — $ 415 § 206

Relocation of production lines ..................coiiiiina.... — — 36

I T 705 1,869 —

Otherplantclosing costs ... iriiii ... (967) 363 437
Office closing and workforce reduction costs

SEeVErance ....... .. .. —_— {84) —

Leases ... (379) — —

Other office closure costs. ... .. vt i e — {127) —
Total Plant/Office ............ ..o i, (641) 2,436 679

Fixed assel impairments related to plant closures............... —_ — 1,429
Total Restructuring and othercosts .......................oun. $(641) $2,436 $2,108

Restructuring and other costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes $0.7 million additional
charges for the buyout of equipment leases deferred as a result of the bankruptcy proceedings, offset by
reversal of $0.7 million of a $1.0 million environmental reserves previously recorded in connection with our
Merced, California facilities shut down because the buyer of this real estate agreed to a $0.3 million
purchase price adjustment to indemnify the Company from future claims and reversal of $0.4 million of
excess reserves established in 2003 for buildings no longer occupied.

Restructuring and other costs for the year ended December 31, 2005 included $1.9 million in lease
termination costs associated with our Shelbyville, Indiana facility, $0.3 million in severance costs associated
with the sale of our Alliant business and $0.2 million in severance and other current costs associated with
the Company’s 2004 plant shutdown in Harrisville, Rhode Island.

Restructuring and other costs for the year ended December 31, 2004 included $1.4 million for fixed
asset impairment charges, $0.2 million in severance and $0.5 million in other costs related to the closure of
the Company’s facility in Harrisville, Rhode Island.
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The following table summarizes the roll-forward of the reserve from December 31, 2005 to
December 31, 2006 (dollars in thousands):

Accruals for ihe Year Ended December 31, 2006

J2/31/2008 Other 12/31/06
[ Relocated Piant #
Employees  Accrunl  Additional Production Closare Payments/ Employees  Accrual
Terminated _Balonce  Employees  Severance Lines Leases Costs Total Charges  Termi d Bal
Plant Closing Costs;
Merced . ................ 54 $1.000 - 5— $— 5 — o0 s 5 (300) — 5 -
Rhode Island. .. ........... 49 5 — —_ — — 3 3 # — —
Leases .. ... - 2,845 — — — 705 (206) 499 (914) — 2,430
Alliant . . ... s 2 = = = — & (6 62 = —
iz 33,852 = = = $705 5 (9%67) $(z62) S(LI60 = 52,430
Office Closing and Workforce
Reduction Costs:
Leases oo oo e 5 Im = — = $ S (319 3319 8 — = 5 —
= $ 379 e — $— s — S 3 3379 8 — = 5 —
TOTAL ................. 1z $4231 = — 3 5705 S(LME S(64l)  $(1,160) - $2.430
The following table summarizes the roll-forward of the reserve from December 31, 2004 to
December 31, 2005 (dollars in thousands):
Accruals for the Year Ended December 31, 2005
12/3172004 Other 12/31/05
Relocated Plant #
Employees  Accrual  Additionnl Production Closure Payments/ Employees  Accrual
Terminated _Balance Employees Severance Lines Leases Costs  Total Charges  Terminated _Balance
Plant Closing Costs:
Merced .. .o 54 §1,000 5 — 5— 5 — 5§ — 5 - 5 - 54 $1.000
Rhodelsland. . ... ... .... 49 14 - 139 -— — 120 259 {268) 49 5
Leases . ...oovvnininnnan, - 2,701 —_ — — 1,869 243 2,112 (1,968) — 2,845
Alfiant . ... e — 19 2% = - — 276 (274} 1 2
103 $3715 18 3415 = $186% $363 32647 $(2510) 1z $3.852
Office Closing and Workforce
Reduction Costs:
LEBSES ..o vvvmeent s — $ 610 - s — $— $ — § — 5§ — 5 (3) — 3 379
Severamce. . ........uvavn. 114 84 — {89) — — - (B4) — — —
SINgapore . o v e 127 = - — — 127 127 — - —
114 $ 821 = 58 = 3 —  12m Sy § (3% — $ 3m
TOTAL ................. 2 54536 13 $331 $ 51863 § 236 52436  $5(2836) 122 $4.231
Plant Closing Costs:

2006—During 2006, the Company sold its remaining real estate in Merced, California within its
Industrial segment and reversed into income $0.7 million of the previously provided $1.0 million
environmental reserve in accordance with the terms of the sales agreement.

2005—During 2005, the Company accrued $1.9 million for the net costs to terminate the remaining
equipment lease agreements associated with its Shelbyville, Indiana facility, incurred $0.2 million of
security, severance and other plant closure costs associated with its Harrisville, Rhode Island facility and
incurred $0.3 million in severance costs associated with the sale of its Alliant business in the second
quarter. The Shelbyville, Indiana and Alliant related restructuring costs are attributable to its Printed
Products segment and the Harrisville, Rhode Island costs are attributable to its Engineered Films segment.

2004—During the third quarter of 2004, the Company closed its Harrisville, Rhode Island facility and
moved its production to more modern and efficient facilities. This restructuring plan resulted in a
workforce reduction of 49 positions, all of which were effective by December 31, 2004. All restructuring
plan costs are attributable to the Engineered Films segment and total $2.7 million, consisting primarily of
fixed asset impairment charges of $1.4 million, equipment relocation costs of $0.4 million, severance and
other personnel related costs of $0.3 million and other costs of $0.6 million.

2003—During 2003, the Company accrued the present value of future lease payments on three
buildings it no longer occupied in an amount equal to $3.3 million. As of December 31, 2006 $1.0 million
of these accruals are remaining.
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5. Plant and Equipment

The cost and the related accumulated depreciation at December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Land and improvements. . .. ... ...couii ittt i $ 6838 § 7470
Buildings and improvements .. ........oviiiri i 73,517 73,134
Machinery and equipment .. ........ it 482,312 447,410
Computer equipment and software . ... 36,889 36,424
Furniture, fixturesand vehicles. ....... ... ... ... oL 5,888 5,878
Leaschold improvements .. ..........cciiv i i ennns 5,250 5,226
Construction in ProOgress. . ..o\ e et eerrra e rrernnaeaarrnan. 17,505 6,754

628,199 582,296
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .................. (323,756)  (287,303)
Plant and equipment, NEL. . . ... vvte ittt it it iieaeneinenaans $ 304,443 § 294,993

The depreciation expense for the years ended December 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $38.1 million,
$38.0 million and $38.1 million, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded impairment changes of $0.3
million to scrap a minor piece of equipment in its Industrial Films segment. During the year ended
December 31, 2004, we recorded impairment charges of $0.4 million to scrap fixed assets in the
Engineered Films and Industrial Films segments.

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB} issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS 1427) No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. SFAS 142, effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, requires that ratable amortization of goodwill be
replaced with periodic tests of goodwill impairment and that intangible assets, other than goodwill, which
have determinable useful lives, be amortized over their useful lives. As required by SFAS 142, the
Company stopped amortizing goodwill effective January 1, 2002 and evaluates goodwill for impairment
under SFAS 142 guidelines. The Company’s annual impairment test is conducted on October 1 of each
year based on a methodology including prices of comparable businesses and discounted cash flows
discussed in greater detail in Note 1. Based on the 2004 and 2005 annual impairment tests, no impairments
were recorded. Based upon the 2006 annual impairment test, the Company determined that goodwili was
impaired in our Specialty Films and Printed Products segments and recorded goodwill write downs totally
$110.0 million , as the implied fair values of these two reporting units were estimated to be below their
respective goodwill carrying values. This impairment was triggered by rising resin prices from September
2005 increasing the carrying values of inventories and receivables in both segments, and, when coupled
with the impact on accounts payable or reduction in credit terms, resulted in increased carrying values of
net assets in excess of the calculated implied fair value. The impairment charge recorded in the financial
statements is based on managements’ preliminary estimates of the fair value of plant, property and
equipment and intangible assets. We intend to obtain valuations from a third party expert in fiscal 2007
and will record an adjustment to the carrying value of goodwill in the Specialty Films segment if the
valuation indicates an additional impairment exists in excess of the amount recorded in the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.
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The Company has four operating segments, all of which have goodwill. (See Note 14 for a discussion
of our change in operating segments). The changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the year ended

December 31, 2005 and 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Industrial Engineered Corporate/
Specialty Films  Printed Products Films Films Other Total
Balance as of December 31, 2004 . . . $ 82,174 $ 49,405 $2,442 $48.216 — $ 182,237
Foreign exchange rate adjustment . . — — 8 — = 8
Balance as of December 31, 2005 . . . 82,174 49405 2,450 48,216 — 182,245
Foreign exchange rate adjustment . . — — (5) 1 4
Goodwill impairment . ........... (60,579) (49,403) — — = (109,984)
Balance as of December 31, 2006 . . . $ 21,595 $ — $2,445 $48,217 3— § 72257
Other intangible assets, are as follows as of December 31 (in thousands):
2006 2005
Gross Gross
Carrying  Accumulated  Carrying  Accumulated
Value Amortization Value Amortization
Other intangible assets:
Customerlists. ...........ooviiinina.n. $23,144  $(12,204) $23,162  $(10,419)
Other......oo i e 22,873 (21.424) 22,641 (20,665)
Total.....oovvvve i $46,017 $(33,628) $45,803 $(31,084)

The weighted average remaining amortization periods for customer lists is 6.2 and 7.1 years for 2006
and 2005, respectively. The weighted average remaining amortization periods for other intangibles is

0.7 and 1.7 years for 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The estimated amortization for each of the next five years on the other intangible assets included

above 1s as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31

2007 .« e e e e

Amortization expense for other intangible assets was approximately $2.6 million, $2.5 million, and

$2.5 million, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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7.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, consists of the following (in thousands):

2006 2005

Credit Facilities:
Revolver, variable interest, 8.1% and 9.29% as of December 31, 2006

and 2005, reSpectively . ... ..ot e $113,579  § 130,924
Senior secured discount notes at 11.35% (formerly 11%%), net of

unamortized issue discount of $0 and $767 respectively (2004 Notes). 7,808 7,033
Senior secured notes, interest at 11%4% (2003 Notes)................. 250,000 250,000
Senior secured notes, interest at 11.85% (formerly 11%%) (Amended

2004 NOES) . .o e ittt e e e 302,382 269,755
Senior subordinated notes, interest at 13.0% (net of unamortized issue

discount, premivm and discount related to warrants of $0 and $5,859

at 2006 and 2005, respectively) {2000/2002 Notes) ................. — 314,137
Senior subordinated notes, interest at 13% (New Subordinated Notes) . 55,101 —
Obligations under capitalleases .. ............. ... ... ... . ......... 8,761 9,846
Total. . e 737,631 981,695
Less current portion ............ ... .o i (975)  (973,244)
)T T3 1 e 4101 FA R P PP $736,656 $§ 8451

The scheduled maturities of long-term debt by year, as of December 31, 2006 are as follows (in

thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

2007 o e e e e e e e e $§ 975
7 989
200 e e e e e e e 674,806
(1 56,275
1 1,141
B3 153 T 1) (N A P 3,445
Total debt asof December 31,2006, . ... .. . i i i i i $737,631

Current Exit Credir Facilities

On July 18, 2006, the Company and/or certain of its subsidiaries entered into the Exit Credit Facilities,
consisting of the Working Capital Credit Agreement and the Fixed Asset Credit Agreement (all as defined

in Note 2). The Exit Credit Facilities provide up to $200 million of total commitments, subject to the

previously disclosed borrowing base. The Working Capital Credit Agreement includes a $20 million letter

of credit sub-facility, with letters of credit reducing availability thereunder, and each of the Exit Credit
Facilities includes sub-limits for loans to certain of the foreign subsidiaries of the Company which are

borrowers under the Exit Credit Facilities.

The Exit Credit Facilities will mature on the earlier of (a) July 18, 2011 or (b) one month prior to the

respective maturity dates of the Company’s senior notes if these senior notes have not been refinanced in
fuil: May 15, 2009 with respect to the Company’s 2004 Notes and Amended 2004 Notes, August 15, 2009

with respect to the Company’s 2003 Notes and May 1, 2010 with respect to the Company’s New

Subordinated Notes. The interest rates for all loans other than those made to the Company’s German

subsidiary range from, in the case of alternate base rate loans, the alternate base rate (cither prime rate or

.50% over the Federal Funds Rate) plus 1.75% to the alternate base rate plus 2.00% and, in the case of
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Eurodollar loans, LIBOR plus 2.75% to LIBOR plus 3.00%, in each case depending on the amount of
available credit. The interest rates for loans made in connection with the loans to the Company’s German
subsidiary are, in the case of alternate base rate loans, the alternate base rate plus 5.00% and, in the case
of Euradollar loans, LIBOR plus 6.00%. The commitment fee for the unused portion of the Exit Credit
Facilities is 0.375% per annum.

The Exit Credit Facilities contain covenants that will limit the ability of Pliant and its subsidiaries,
subject to certain exceptions, to, among other things, incur or guarantee additional indebtedness, issue
preferred stock or become liable in respect of any obligation to purchase or redeem stock, create liens,
merge or consolidate with other companies, change lines of business, make certain types of investments,
sell assets, enter into certain sale and lease-back and swap transactions, pay dividends on or repurchase
stock, make distributions with respect to certain debt obligations, enter into transactions with affiliates,
restrict dividends or other payments from the Company’s subsidiaries, modify corporate and certain
material debt documents, cancel certain debt, or change its fiscal year or accounting policies. The Exit
Credit Facilities also require the Company to comply with a fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.00 to 1.00 for
the first year of the facility and of 1.10 to 1.00 thereafter; provided, that such coverage ratio shall only
apply during periods in which the amount of availability is and remains less than $20,000,000 for a specified
number of days. Once the amount of availability increases and remains above $20,000,000 for a specified
number of days, such coverage ratio becomes inapplicable. In addition, the amount of availability under
the Exit Credit Facilities must not be less than $10,000,000 at any time. The loans will automatically
beceme immediately due and payable without notice upon the occurrence of an event of default involving
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Upon the occurrence and during the
continuation of any other event of default under the Exit Credit Facilities, by notice given to the Company,
the Administrative Agent may, and if directed by the Required Lenders (as defined in the Exit Credit
Facilities) must, terminate the commitments and/or declare all outstanding loans to be immediately due
and payable.

The Working Capital Credit Agreement is secured by a first-priority security interest in substantially
all our inventory, reccivables and deposit accounts, capital stock of, or other equity interests in, our existing
and future domestic subsidiaries and first-tier foreign subsidiaries, investment property and certain other
assets of the Company and its subsidiaries and a second-priority security interest in fixed assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries party to the Working Capital Credit Agreement. The Fixed Asset Credit
Agreement is secured by a first-priority security interest in the fixed assets of certain foreign subsidiaries of
the Company and a second-priority security interest in capital stock of the fixed asset borrowers and their
subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had borrowings of $113.6 million and availability of $63.2
million under the Exit Credit Facilities.

Prior DIP Credit Facility

On January 4, 2006, the Company entered into the DIP Credit Facility (as defined in Note 2), among
the Company and certain other debtors, as joint and several borrowers, General Electric Capital
Corporation, as administrative agent, collateral agent and lender, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as
syndication agent and lender, and the lenders from time to time party thereto. The DIP Credit Facility
provided for a $200 million commitment of debtor-in-possession financing to fund the working capital
requirements of Pliant and of Pliant’s subsidiaries that were Debtors during the pendency of the
bankruptcy proceeding. Although the DIP Credit Facility was nominally in the amount of $200 million,
availability was reduced by the aggregate borrowing base of $131.2 million under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement as of the bankruptcy filing.
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The DIP Credit Facility provided the Company with up to approximately $68.8 million of additional
liquidity, subject to a borrowing base calculated based upon specified percentages of the Debtors’ eligible
current and fixed assets, minus $10 million and other reserves. The Company made no borrowings under
the DIP Credit Facility. The DIP Credit Facility was terminated upon the Company’s emergence from
bankruptcy and replaced with the Exit Credit Facilities described above. In addition, approximately $1.5
million of capitalized financing fees associated with the DIP Credit Facility were written off upon
emergence,

Prior Revolving Credit Facility

On November 21, 2005, the Company entered into the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (as
defined in Note 2) providing up to $140 million of total availability, subject to certain borrowing base
limitations. The Amended and Restated Credit Agreement included a $25 million letter of credit sub-
facility, with letters of credit reducing availability under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement.

On December 31, 2005, an Event of Default occurred under the Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement as a result of our failure to make the interest payments due on December 1, 2005 to holders of
the 2000/2002 Notes. Upon the bankruptcy filing and execution of the DIP Credit Facility described above,
the commitments under the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement were terminated. The $130.9
million of borrowings as of December 31, 2005 remained outstanding until the Company’s emergence from
bankruptcy, at which time they were refinanced through the Exit Credit Facilities.

Senior Notes

The bankruptcy filing constituted an Event of Default under the separate Indentures for all of the
Company’s Notes, which were then classified as current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2005. Under the Plan, the 2000/2002 Notes were exchanged for a combination of New
Subordinated Notes, new preferred stock, new common stock and cash. The 2000/2002 Notes were deemed
impaired for bankruptcy proceeding purposes and the remaining unamortized discount of $5.9 million was
recognized as financial restructuring costs in the consolidated statement of operations. The 2003 Notes,
2004 Notes and Amended 2004 Notes were reinstated in accordance with their terms, subject to a .225%
payment-in-kind interest rate increase with respect to the 2004 Notes and Amended 2004 Notes, thereby
increasing the interest rate of such notes to 11.35% and 11.85%, respectively.

On July 18, 2006, the Company, certain of its subsidiaries and The Bank of New York Trust Company,
N.A,, as trustee, entered into an Indenture, dated as of July 18, 2006 (the “New Subordinated Notes
Indenture”), among the Company, certain subsidiaries of the Company and The Bank of New York Trust
Company, N.A,, as trustee, with respect to the issuance on such date of the New Subordinated Notes in an
aggregate principal amount of $34,967,000. The New Subordinated Notes Indenture provides that interest
will accrue on the New Subordinated Notes from the date of issuance at the rate of 13% per annum until
maturity on July 15, 2010 and will be payable semi-annually on the New Subordinated Notes on each
January 15 and July 15, commencing January 15, 2007, to holders of record on the immediately preceding
January 1 or July 1. The New Subordinated Notes accrue payment-in-kind interest with respect to the first
two interest payment dates and then accrue semi-annual cash pay interest with respect to the interest
payment dates thereafter. The New Subordinated Notes Indenture does not provide for a sinking fund
with respect to the New Subordinated Notes. Pursuant to SFAS 15, Accounting by Debtors and Creditors for
Troubled Debt Restructuring, these $35 million of Notes were recorded at aggregate principal plus interest
to maturity of $20.1 million or a total of $55.1 million.

On July 18, 2006, the Company, certain of its subsidiaries and Wilmington Trust Company, as trustee,
entered into the First Supplemental Indenture amending the Amended and Restated Indenture to
increase the interest rate by .225% per annum with respect to the 2004 Notes and the Amended 2004

[
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Notes, which additional interest will accrue as payment-in-kind interest. As a result, on July 18, 2006, the
interest rate on the Amended 2004 Notes was increased to 11.85% per annum and the interest rate on the
2004 Notes was increased to 11.35% per annum. Commencing on December 15, 2006, only the incremental
interest rate increase of .225% will accrue as payment-in-kind interest on the 2004 Notes and the
remaining 11%% interest rate will accrue as cash pay interest. The First Supplemental Indenture did not
amend the covenants or acceleration provisions of the Amended and Restated Indenture.

New Subordinated Notes

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $35 million of New Subordinated Notes outstanding.
Pursuant to SFAS 15, Accounting for Debtors and Creditors for Trouble Debt Restructuring, these $35 million
of New Subordinated Notes were recorded at aggregate principal plus interest to maturity of $20.1 million
or a total of $55.1 million. The New Subordinated Notes Indenture provides that interest will accrue on the
New Subordinated Notes from the date of issuance at the rate of 13% per annum until maturity on July 15,
2010 and will be payable semi-annually on the New Subordinated Notes on each January 15 and July 15,
commencing January 15, 2007, to holders of record on the immediately preceding January 1 or July 1. The
New Subordinated Notes accrue payment-in-kind interest with respect to the first two interest payment
dates and then accrue semi-annual cash pay interest with respect to the interest payment dates thereafter.
The New Subordinated Notes are subject to the Company’s right, which will be assignable, to refinance the
New Subordinated Notes during the first year after issuance by tendering to the holders of all the New
Subordinated Notes cash in an amount equal to (i) $20,000,000 plus (ii) interest accrued at a rate of 13%
per annum from the date of issuance through the date of payment on a principal amount of $20,000,000
minus (iii) any interest previously paid in cash on the New Subordinated Notes. Commencing on July 19,
2007, the Company may redeem the New Subordinated Notes in whole or in part at a redemption price
equal to 100% of the aggregate principal amount of the New Subordinated Notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest to the redemption date. The New Subordinated Notes Indenture provides the holders of the New
Subordinated Notes with the right to require the Company to repurchase the New Subordinated Notes at a
repurchase price equal to 101% of the aggregate principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest upon a
change of control of the Company (as defined in the New Subordinated Notes Indenture). The New
Subordinated Notes Indenture does not provide for a sinking fund with respect to the New Subordinated
Notes.

The New Subordinated Notes Indenture contains various covenants including, among other things,
covenants limiting the incurrence of indebtedness and restricting certain payments, limiting restrictions on
the ability of subsidiaries to make distributions to the Company, limiting sales of assets and subsidiary
stock and the entry into affiliate transactions, as well as provisions governing merger and change of contro!
transactions. The Company may be required under certain circumstances t¢ offer to repurchase New
Subordinated Notes with the proceeds of certain asset sales. Upon a change of control transaction, Holders
of New Subordinated Notes may require the Company (subject to certain exceptions) to repurchase New
Subordinated Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest. The New Subordinated Notes will automatically become due and payable without notice upon the
occurrence of an event of default involving insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or certain of its
subsidiaries. In addition, upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any other event of default
under the New Subordinated Notes Indenture, by notice given to the Company, the Trustee or holders of
at least 25% in principal amount of the New Subordinated Notes may declare the principal of and accrued
and unpaid interest on all the New Subordinated Notes to be immediately due and payable.

Amended 2004 Notes

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $302.4 million aggregate principal amount of Amended
2004 Notes outstanding. The Amended 2004 Notes accrued payment-in-kind interest at the rate of 11%%
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from the date of issuance until July 18, 2006, on which date the interest rate was increased by .225% to
11.85% in accordance with the Plan. Such incremental interest rate increase of .225% also accrues as
payment-in-kind interest. The Amended 2004 Notes mature on June 15, 2009 and interest is payable semi-
annually on each June 15 and December 15.

The Amended 2004 Notes are secured on a first-priority basis by a security interest in our real
property, fixtures, equipment, intellectual property and other assets other than the second-priority
collateral and on a second-priority basis by a security interest in substantially all our inventory, receivables
and deposit accounts, 100% of the capital stock of or other equity interests in existing and future domestic
subsidiaries and foreign subsidiaries that are note guarantors, 65% of the capital stock of or other equity
interests in existing and future first-tier foreign subsidiaries that are not note guarantors, investment
property and certain other assets of the Company and the note guarantors. The Amended 2004 Notes are
guaranteed by the Company’s existing and future domestic restricted subsidiaries and certain foreign
subsidiaries,

Prior to June 15, 2007, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount of the Amended
2004 Notes with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings by it at a redemption price equal to
111.625% of the sum of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, provided that after giving
effect to such redemption (i) at least 65% of the principal amount of the notes remain outstanding and
(ii) any such redemption by the Company is made within 120 days after such equity offering.

On or after June 15, 2007, the Company may redeem some or all of the Amended 2004 Notes at the
following redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the sum of the principal amount plus accrued
and unpaid interest); 111.625% if redeemed on or after June 15, 2007 and prior to December 15, 2007;
108.719% if redeemed on or after December 15, 2007 and prior to June 15, 2008; 105.813% if redeemed
on or after June 15, 2008 and prior to December 15, 2008; 102.906% if redeemed on or after December 15,
2008 and prior to June 15, 2009; and 100.000% if redeemed on June 15, 2009,

2004 Notes

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $7.8 million of 2004 Notes outstanding. The 2004 Notes
accreted at the rate of 11%% from the date of issuance until July 18, 2006, on which date the interest rate
was increased by .225% to 11.35% in accordance with the Plan. The 2004 Notes accreted at the rate of
11.35% until December 15, 2006 to an aggregate principal amount of $1,000.88 per $1,000 stated principal
amount. Commencing on December 15, 2006, interest on the 2004 Notes will accrue at the rate of 11.35%
with such incremental interest rate increase of .225% accruing as payment-in-kind interest and the
remaining 11% % payable in cash semiannually on June 15 and December 15, commencing on June 15,
2007. The 2004 Notes mature on June 15, 2009.

The 2004 Notes are secured by a first-priority security interest in the first-priority note collateral and a
second-priority security interest in the second-priority note collateral. The 2004 Notes are guaranteed by
the Company’s existing and future domestic restricted subsidiaries and certain foreign subsidiaries.

Prior to June 15, 2007, the Company may redeem up to 35% of the accreted value of the 2004 Notes
with the net cash proceeds of certain equity offerings by it at a redemption price equal to 111.125% of the
accreted value thereof plus accrued interest, so long as (i) at least 65% of the accreted value of the notes
remains outstanding after such redemption and (ii) any such redemption by the Company is made within
120 days after such equity offering. On or after June 15, 2007, the Company may redeem some or all of the
2004 Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as percentages of the sum of the principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest): 105.563% if redeemed on or after June 15, 2007 and prior to
June 185, 2008; 102.781% if redeemed on or after June 15, 2008 and prior to June 15, 2009; and 100.00% if
redeemed on June 15, 2009,
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2003 Notes

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had $250 million of 2003 Notes outstanding. The 2003 Notes
accrued interest from the date of issuance through September 30, 2006 at the rate of 11% % and will
continue to accrue interest at such rate through the date of maturity. The 2003 Notes mature on
September 1, 2009 and interest is payable in cash semiannually on each March 1 and September 1. On
July 18, 2006, in accordance with the Plan, the Company paid to the trustee with respect to the 2003 Notes,
for further distribution to the holders thereof, an aggregate cash payment of $18.5 million, $14.5 million of
which represented the interest payment due on March 1, 2006 plus interest on such unpaid interest and the
balance of which was a $4 million consent fee.

The 2003 Notes rank equally with the Company’s existing and future senior debt and rank senior to its
existing and future subordinated indebtedness, including the New Subordinated Notes. The 2003 Notes are
secured by a second priority security interest in both the first priority note collateral and the second
priority note collateral. The 2003 Notes are guaranteed by some of the Company’s subsidiaries.

Prior to June 1, 2007, the Company may, redeem up to 35% of the original aggregate principal
amount of the 2003 Notes with the net cash proceeds of one or more equity offerings by it at a redemption
price equal to 111.125% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. On or after
June 1, 2007, the Company may redeem some or all of the 2003 Notes at the following redemption prices
(expressed as a percentage of the sum of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest):
105.563% if redeemed on or after June 1, 2007 and prior to June 1, 2008; 102.781% if redeemed on or
after June 1, 2008 and prior to June 1, 2009; and 100% if redeemed on or after June 1, 2009.

2000/2002 Notes

As of December 31, 2006, none of the 2000/2002 Notes were outstanding. Upon emergence from
bankruptcy, the entire $320 million aggregate principal amount of 2000/2002 Notes previously outstanding
were exchanged for a combination of New Subordinated Notes, new preferred stock, new common stock
and a $3.2 million cash consent fee.

Interest Rate Risk and Derivative Instruments

Borrowings under the Company’s credit facilities are at variable rates of interest, exposing us to the
risk of increased interest rates. The Company’s leveraged position and the covenants contained in its debt
instruments may also limit its flexibility to adjust to changing market conditions and its ability to withstand
competitive pressures, thus putting it at a competitive disadvantage. The Company may be vulnerable to a
downturn in general economic conditions or in its business or be unable to carry out capital spending that
is important to its growth and productivity improvement programs. Thus the Company periodically utilizes
interest rate derivatives contracts to reduce the effect of interest rate increases,

The Company applies SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”, as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138. In accordance with these statements, the
Company recognizes the fair value of derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet. To the
extent that the derivatives qualify as a hedge, gains or losses associated with the effective portion are
recorded as a component of other comprehensive income while the ineffective portion is recognized in
income. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had no outstanding interest rate derivatives.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense—current and long-term debt in the statement of operations for 2006, 2005 and 2004
are as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Interest expense accrued, net(a). ...l $75,044  $109,038 § 95,191
Recurring amortization of financing fees .................. 4613 5,256 4,510
Write-off of previously capitalized financing fees ........... — — 7.897
Change in fair value and cash payment of interest rate

derIvativeS . it s — — 2,755
TOTAL ..o e e e $79.657 $114294 $110,353
Cashinterest payments. .. .......ovureniennnereennnnnnn. $41,748 § 60,800 §$ 80411

(a) Interest expense for 2006 includes interest for the two days prior to the bankruptcy filing for our
2000/2002 Notes as these notes were impaired for bankruptcy proceedings, plus interest on the
December 1, 2005 unpaid intercst payment through January 2, 2006. Interest expense for these notes
for the period January 3, 2006 through July 17, 2006 would have been $22,432.

8. Leases

Capital Leases The Company has acquired certain land, building, machinery and equipment under
capital lease arrangements that expire at various dates through 2018, At December 31, the gross amounts
of plant and equipment and related accumulated depreciation recorded under capital leases were as
follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Landand building . ....... ... . $ 4322 § 4,639
Machinery and equipment . ......... oo i e 12,265 7,317
Total assets held under capital leases. . .......... ..o et 16,587 11,956
Less: accumulated depreciation ........ ... i (2,598 (3,372)

$139890 § 8,584

In November 2006, the Company renegotiated the terms of two capital leases and one operating lease.
The new lease agreement was recorded as a capital lease with an incremental $7.4 million recorded as
machinery and equipment.

In December 2003, the Company recorded a capital lease of $4.4 million for the buildings at its
Mexico facilities in its Printed Products segment. In November 2004, the Company entered into a capital
lease of $5.1 million for a production line in our Industrial segment. Amortization expense associated with
capital leases is included in depreciation expense.
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Operating Leases The Company has non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for vehicles,
equipment, warehouse, and office space that expire through 2014, as well as month-to-month leases. The
total expense recorded under all operating lease agreements in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations is approximately $10.6 million, $11.2 million, and $12.6 million, for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases
and the present value of future minimum capital lease payments (with interest rates between 8.9% and
12.3%) as of December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital

Year Ending December 31 Leases Leases
200 e e e $ 7,316  § 2,164
2008 . e e e 5,595 2,042
2000 e e 5,021 1,980
2000 e e e 3,999 1,980
200 e e e 3,346 1,795

03 =T | 101 AR 10,023 5,610

Total minimum lease payments. . ......covviiiiiii i iiinnenneaana. $35300 $15,571

Amounts representing inferest .. ...o.uiuiina i i a., (6,810)

Present value of net minimum capital lease payments ................. 3 8,761

9. Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes for the years ended
December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
United StAtES .. ..ottt e e $186,530 % (99,739) $(82,859)
Foreign ... ..o i e e (1,444) (10,114)  (11,709)
Total. .. $185,086 $(109,853) $(94,568)

The following is a summary of domestic and foreign provisions for current and deferred income taxes
and a reconciliation of the U.S. statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate.

The provisions (benefits) for income taxes for the years ended December 31, are as follows (in
thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal ... oo e 5y — % — 3 —
Lo < AP 79 77 80
FOTeIgn .o e 2,273 1,035 1,714
TOtal CUTTENE. o o oottt ettt e e ettt ivertariannanns 2,352 1,112 1,794
Deferred:
Feeral. . .. ..uuiei ettt (2467)  (10)  (1,048)
R0 1 7= 945 (18) (346)
Foreign ... o e (821) 933 1,189
Totaldeferred ..... ... ... (2,343) 905 (205)
Total income tax eXpense. .. ...o.vuverieieereienrrnannn $ 9 $2,017 § 1,589
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The effective income tax rate reconciliations for the years ended December 31, are as follows (in
thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income

L (S $ 185,086 $(109,853) $(94,568)
Expected income tax provision (benefit) at U.S.

statutoryrate of 35%. .. ... ... 64,780 (38,448)  (33,099)
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Cancellation of debtincome ....................... (137,783) — —

Loss of NOL carry forward on cancellation of debt

(1 Lo )11 (-2 R 61,848 — —

Financial reorganization expenses .................. 22,322 — —

Goodwill ... 38,157 — 3

Accrued dividends on preferred stock . .............. 95 14,272 12,364

Statetaxes. ......... ...ttt 7,451 (2,307) {1,597)

Change in valuation allowances .................... (64,303) 24,396 18,282

Foreign rate difference. .. ... ... .. ... ... . ... 532 2,441 2,361

Other,net ... ... .. s 6,910 1,663 3,275
Total inCome tax eXpense . . .. ..o vueeeneneaenen e $ 9 $ 2017 $ 1,589
Effective income taxrate ......... ..o, 0.0% 1.8% 1.7%

Components of net deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, are as follows (in
thousands):

2006 2005
Deferred income tax assets:
Net operating loss carry forwards. ... ... iiniiien e $ 73,673  $129,294
AMT and foreign tax credit carry forwards. ....................... 4,755 4,755
Accrued pension COSES. . . ... ...ttt 6,163 12,289
Accruedemployeebenefits ............... i 7,238 8,550
Accrued plant closing CostS ...... .ot 382 1,080
Allowance for doubtful trade accountsreceivable.................. 1,125 1,860
Inventoryrelated costs . .......... i 676 806
Other ... e 4,216 1,858
08,228 160,522
Valuation Allowance. .. ... ... .. ittt i, (33,305) (94,516)
Total deferred income tax assels. .. ..ot ienineieninninnnenn, 64,923 66,006
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Tax depreciation in excess of book depreciation ................... (69,058)  (70,857)
Amortization of intangibles. _........ o it i e {6,700) (7,692)
Other . . e e e e {6,698) {7,608)
Total deferred income tax liabilities. ... ........................ (82,456)  (86,157)
Net deferred income tax liability. ... i $(17,533) $(20,151)
As reported on consolidated balance sheets:
Net current deferred income taX assel, ... ..vvr vt vevnnrinernnnnen, $ 13754 % 11,424
Net non-current deferred income tax liability .. ................... (31,287)  (31,575)
Net deferred income tax Hability. . ........... .. ... oo ooiih $(17,533) $(20,151)
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The net operating loss carry forwards for federal tax purposes are approximately $162.3 million. These
losses expire in 2023 through 2026. Due to uncertainty regarding realization, valuation allowances of
approximaltely $13.6 million and $70.9 million in 2006 and 2005 respectively have been recorded to offset
the deferred tax asset related to the federal net operating losses.

The net operating loss carry forward for state tax purposes are approximately $8.4 million. These
losses expire in 2010 through 2026. Due to uncertainty regarding realization, a valuation allowance of
approximately $2.2 million (81.4 million, net of federal income tax) in 2006 has been recorded to offset the
deferred tax asset related to the net operating losses. '

The alternative minimum tax credit carry forwards for federal tax purposes are approximately $1.2
million. These credits do not expire but are limited to the extent that the regular tax liability for a future
year exceeds the tentative minimum tax for the year. Due to uncertainty regarding realization, a valuation
allowance of approximately $1.2 million has been recorded to offset the deferred 1ax asset related to the
alternative minimum tax credit.

The charitable contributions deduction carry forwards for federal and state tax purposes are
approximately $0.5. Due to uncertainty regarding realization, a valuation allowance of approximately $0.2
has been recorded to offset the deferred tax asset related to the charitable contributions deductions.

U.S. pension expenses of approximately $10.1 million net of deferred tax assets of approximately $3.9
million have been charged to Other Comprehensive Income. Due to uncertainty regarding realization of
the deferred tax assets, a valuation allowance of approximately $3.1 million has been recorded to Other
Comprehensive Income to offset the deferred tax asset.

The net operating loss carry forwards for Mexican tax purposes are approximately $39.3 million.
These losses expire in 2012 through 2016. Due to uncertainty regarding realization, a valuation allowance
of approximately $10.3 million has been recorded to offset the deferred tax asset related to the net
operating losses in Mexico.

The foreign tax credit carry forwards for federal tax purposes are approximately $3.6 million expiring
in 2010 through 2011. Due to uncertainty regarding realization, valuation allowances of approximately
$3.6 million for 2006 and 2005 has been recorded to offset the deferred tax asset related to the foreign
tax credits.

Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries amounted to approximately $23.8 million as of
December 31, 2006. Approximately $14.2 million is considered to be permanently invested and $9.6 million
may be distributed in future years. Upon distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends or
otherwise, the Company would be subject to both U.S. income taxes, subject to an adjustment for foreign
tax credits, and withholding taxes payable to foreign countries. Determination of the amount of
unrecognized deferred U.S. income tax liability is not practicable because of the complexities associated
with the calculation.

10. Employee Benefit Plans

Defined Contribution Plan 'The Company sponsors a salary deferral plan covering substantially all of
its non-union domestic employees. Plan participants may elect to make voluntary contributions to this plan
up to 15% of their compensation. The Company matches employee contributions up to 3% of the
participants’ compensation. The Company expensed approximately $2.4 million, $2.2 million and
$1.7 million as its contribution to this plan for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Defined Benefit Plans The Company sponsors three noncontributory defined benefit pension plans
(the “United States Plans”) covering domestic employees with 1,000 or more hours of service. The
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Company funds its plans in amounts to fulfill the minimum funding requirements of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, Contributions are intended to not only provide for benefits
attributed to service to date but also for those expected 1o be earned in the future. In the second quarter of
2004, the Company redesigned its retirement programs which led to the curtailment and “freeze” of the
pension plan for U.S. salaried employees effective June 30, 2004. As a result, a curtailment gain of $1.6
million was recognized as income in 2004. The Company also sponsors a defined benefit plan in Germany
(the “Germany Plan”).

The consolidated accrued net pension expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
includes the following components (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
United States Plans
Service cost-benefits earned during the period................ $ 445 § 421 $ 2583
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation. . ................ 5,050 4,837 4,970
Expected return On assets. .. ... ..ovvirvenvennenneanaaaan (5,397) (5,213) (4,560)
Curtailment (gain) loss. ... 53 —  (1,562)
Other . e e e e e 269 124 372
Total accrued pension EXPenSe ... ...venrvrvervenearennens $ 420 § 169 $ 1,803
Germany Plan
Service cost-benefits earned during the period. . .............. $ 158 § 127 % 112
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation.................. 129 121 115
Actuarial loss .. ... oo o e 6 — —
Total accrued pensionexpense . .........coovvieineiinne... $ 293 § 248 § 227
Employer Contributions
2007 Expected to plan trusts oo vvvviuiiesiorianinarsiiiiar e eiieiiariaseasianiian, § 7,163
Expected Benefit Payments ’
2007 e e e e e $ 3,176
7 3,289
5 3,456
7 L) 3,642
71 3,842
2 K L 23,846

2006 2005 2004

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net Cost

Discounted rate ... ..ot e 5.75% 6.00% 6.25%
Expected return on plan assets . ..........iueii it e 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase (non-unionplans)................ooooiviinnen, 40% 4.0% 4.0%

Long-Term Rate Investment Return Assumption

The rate of investment return assumption was developed through analysis of historical market returns,
current market conditions, and the fund’s past experience. Estimates of future market returns by asset
category are lower than actual long-term historical returns in order to generate a conservative forecast.
Overall, it was projected that funds could achieve a 9.00% return over time.
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Investment Strategy

The Company’s investment portfolio contains a diversified blend of equity and debt securities.
Furthermore, equity investments are diversified across domestic and international stocks as well as large
and small capitalizations. Investment risk is measured and monitored on an ongoing basis through
quarterly investment portfolio reviews. The target allocation of equity securities is 70 percent of the plan
assets. The target allocation of debt securities is 30 percent of the plan assets, As of December 31, 2006,
the actual allocation was 66 percent equity securities. and 34 percent fixed income.

Measurement date

Pliant uses a measurement date of December 31 for its pension plans. The following tables set forth
the funded status of the United States Plans and the Germany Plan as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and
the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at those dates (in thousands):

2006 2005

United States Plans
Change in benefit obligation:

Obligation at January L. ... ......oeitii e $87,173  §80,564

B TVICE COSE . .t e e e e 445 421

|10 e A 1= A A A N 5,050 4,837

Curtailments. .. ... ... (1,157) —

Actuarial (ain) 10SS .. ...ttt e (1,611) 4,300

Benefitspaid. .. ... e (3,094) (2,949

Obligation at December31 ......... ... it $86,806 $R87173
Change in plan assets:

Fair value of assetsatJanuary 1 .. ... ... .. ... ..o oL, $59,132 $58,373

Actual return on plan assets. .. ..o it e 6,025 3,262

Employer contributions .. ... ...t e 5,424 446

Benefit payments. .. ...t e e (3,094 (2,949
Fair value of plan assets at December 31.......... ... ... ... . ..., $67,487 $59,132
Underfunded status at December 31 .......oiiiiii i, $19,319  $28,041
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of (in thousands):

2006 2005

Accrued Denefit COS .. v vttt e e et e e $19,319 $ 14,619
Additional minimum liability in other liabilities. .. ...................... — 12,112
Intangible asset. . ... oot — (736)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes of $840 and $575..  (8,865) (10,801)

The projected benefit obligation, accumulated benefit obligation, and fair value of assets for the plans
were as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Projected benefit obligation. . ........... ... oo $86,806 $87,173
Accumulated benefit obligation ........ ... o i 86,806 85,863
Fairvalue of ASSets . ... ...t et et iin e s 67,487 59,132
Weighted-Average Assumptions as of December 31
DISCOUNT FALE . ..ottt e e et e 6.00%  5.75%
Rate of Compensation NCIease ...........cevirmeeneinennenneinn, 4.00%  4.00%
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2006 2005
Germany Plan
Change in benefit obligation:

Obligation atJanuary 1...... ... . i it $2,407 $2315
1) 1 1l e 1 A 158 127
TS0 o] A A 129 121
Benefitspald. .. ..ot e (38) (33)
Actuarial (Zain)/loss ... ..o e 428 —
Change due toexchangerate. . ........ov ittt 282 (123)
Obligation at December 31 ... ...ooiiiivrin i i $3,366  $2,407
Fair value of plan assets at December 31. ... ... ... ... ... — —
Underfunded status at December31 ..., i iivn i iaane. $3,366 $2,407

Assumptions used for future compensation was 1.75% for 2006, 2005 and 2004, Discount rates were
4.50% for 2006, 4.50% for 2005 and 5.25% for 2004. The cash surrender value of life insurance policies for
Germany Plan participants included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets is approximately
$1.1 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Effective Januvary 1, 2003 the Company revised the United States Plans to exclude the participation of
new non-union employees in such plans.

Foreign Plans Other Than Germany Employees in other foreign countries are covered by various post
employment arrangements consistent with local practices and regulations. Such obligations are not
significant and are included in the consolidated financial statements in other liabilities.

Other Plans  As part of the acquisition of Blessings Corporation in 1998, the Company assumed two
supplemental retirement plans covering certain former employees of Blessings Corporation. The liability
for these plans included in other liabilities and at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately
$2.0 million and $1.8 miliion, respectively. This liability was frozen at the time of the acquisition.

Adoption of SFAS 158 The incremental effects of adopting the provisions of SFAS 158 on the
Company’s statement of financial position at December 31, 2006 are presented in the following table:

At December 31, 2006

As reported at
Prior to adopting Effect of adopting December 31,
SFAS 158 SFAS 158 2006
Prepaid pension asset ............ ... ..ciiieann. $ 573 $ (573) $ —
Intangible asset. .. ... 630 (630) —
Accrued pension liability in other liabilities .......... 15,166 9,993 25,159
Additional minimum liability in other liabilities. .. .. .. 10,082 (10,082) —
Non-current deferred income tax liability .. ..., ...... 31,552 (265) 31,287
Accumulated other comprehensive loss.............. (17,397) (849) (18,246)

Included in accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2006 are unrecognized prior
service costs of $630 ($365 net of tax) and unrecognized actuarial losses $9,936 ($9,361 net of tax) that have
not yet been recognized in net periodic pension cost. The prior service cost and actuarial loss included in
accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost
during 2007 is $47, and $63, respectively.

11. Redeemable Stock

Among the transactions effected pursuant to the Plan, as of July 18, 2006 the Company
(i) extinguished its Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock, (ii) issued 335,592 shares of Series AA Preferred
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Stock, and 100,003 shares of New Common Stock and (iii) entered into a Stockholders Agreement with
respect to the New Common Stock and a Registration Rights Agreement with respect to the Series AA
Preferred Stock. In addition, on July 18, 2006, the Company’s Cash Plan and Stock Plan became effective.

The Stockholders’ Agreement provides for certain restrictions on transfer of the New Common Stock
and requires that all transferees of New Common Stock become a party to the Stockholders’ Agreement.
The Stockholders’ Agreement also grants to certain holders of New Common Stock the right to purchase
their pro rata share of any new equity securities issued by the Company, subject to exceptions for
acquisitions, management equity and certain other transactions. The Stockholders’ Agreement also
contains “drag-along rights” that require all holders of New Commen Stock to participate in and vote in
favor of certain sales of the Company approved by the Board of Directors and certain holders of New
Common Stock.

The Registration Rights Agreement provides that, at any time after the ninth month and prior to
July 18, 2008, certain holders of the Series AA Preferred Stock can require Pliant to register an
underwritten public offering of the Series AA Preferred Stock.

Common Stock  On July 18, 20006, the Company issued 100,003 shares of New Common Stock.

As part of a recapitalization of the Company’s Old Common Stock in May 2000, the Company entered
into employment agreements with its executive officers serving at that time: Richard P, Durham, Jack E.
Knott II, Scott K. Sorensen and Ronald G. Moffitt. The employment agreements established repurchase
rights and put options for shares held by these executive officers following the Recapitalization. These
repurchase rights allowed the Company to repurchase these shares from the employee in the event of
termination for any reason. The put options allowed the employees to require the Company to purchase all
of the shares held by the employee in the event of resignation for good reason, death, disability or
retirement, subject to the restrictive provisions of our credit facilities or any other agreements.
Messrs. Durham, Knott, Sorensen and Moffitt are no longer employees of the Company.

On February 14, 2007, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Mr. Durham whereby
the Company agreed to pay, and has paid, cash consideration of $3,500,000 to Mr. Durham and his
affiliates and a note issued by Mr. Durham and his affiliates to the Company has been cancelled. This
$3,500,000 settlement amount was accrued in other current liabilities as of December 31, 2006.

Mr. Durham and his affiliates also agreed to relinquish any and all right to receive a distribution under the
Plan with respect to 4,833 shares of Old Common Stock that had been pledged to secure the note.

Mr. Durham and his affiliates further agreed that the 18,200 shares of Old Common Stock, 1,232 shares of
old preferred stock and warrants for 1,250.48 shares of Old Common Stock described in the July 9, 2002
repurchase notice sent by Durham to the Company were cancelled pursuant to the Plan and that no
distribution would be made pursuant to the Plan in respect of such securities.

On February 6, 2007, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Mr. Sorensen whereby
MTr. Sorensen agreed to pay the Company a sum of cash and relinquish all right and title in his Old
Common Stock and old preferred stock to the Company, and in exchange, the Company cancelled the
notes issued by Mr. Sorenson to the Company.

On February 6, 2007, the Company entered into a settlement agreement with Mr. Moffitt whereby
Mr. Moffitt agreed to pay the Company a sum of cash and relinquish all right and title in his Old Common
Stock and old preferred stock to the Company, and in exchange, the Company cancelled the notes issued
by Mr. Moffitt to the Company.

On September 8, 2003, the Company entered into a separation agreement with Mr. Knott. As of the
date of the separation agreement, Mr. Knott owned 232 shares of the Company’s Old Common Stock,
6,458 performance-vesting shares (of which 1,291 had vested), 1,292 time-vested shares, options to
purchase 8,902 shares of the Company’s Old Common Stock and 229 shares of its old preferred stock. The

—
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Company cancelled 5,167 unvested performance vesting shares owned by Mr. Knott against a note
receivable from Mr. Knott for $2.5 million. Pursuant to the terms of the severance agreement, and in
addition to the benefits payable to Mr. Knott following a termination without cause under the terms of his
employment agreement with the Company, the Company agreed to extend the termination date of his
right to exercise his vested options to acquire 8,902 shares of Old Common Stock until August 22, 2005;
not to exercise its rights to redeem the Old Common Stock, vested performance-vesting shares, time-
vested shares and preferred stock owned by him until the earlier of a transaction consisting of a sale of the
Company or August 22, 2005; and to pay him a cash payment of $50,000.

On April 21, 2001, the Company amended the terms of Mr. Knott’s promissory note issued in
connection with his purchase of stock in 2000. Further, Mr. Knott's note was modified to remove the full
recourse provisions and modify the related pledge agreement.

Series AA Preferred Stock  In connection with the Plan, on July 18, 2006, the Company issued
approximately 335,600 shares of Series AA Preferred Stock. Except for certain circumstances which
require their consent, the holders of Series AA Preferred Stock do not have voting rights, but do have the
right to elect 2 out of the 7 members of the Company’s Board of Directors.

Holders of shares of the Series AA Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if declared by
the Board of Directors, dividends at the rate of 13% per year on the Stated Value (as hereinafter defined)
of each share of Series AA Preferred Stock. Dividends on the Series AA Preferred Stock are cumulative
from the date of issue, accrue, whether or not they have been declared, quarterly in arrears on March 31,
June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year. The “Stated Value” of each share of Series AA
Preferred Stock is equal to $1,000 per share plus accumulated and unpaid dividends for quarterly periods
ending on or prior to the date of determination minus any distributions {other than dividends not
otherwise added to the Stated Value) made with respect to such Series AA Preferred Stock.

The Company may not declare, pay or set aside for payment any dividends on the New Common
Stock unless it has paid or declared and set aside for payment full cumulative dividends on the shares of
Series AA Preferred Stock.

Upon any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, holders of
Series AA Preferred Stock will be entitled to a liquidation preference over the holders of New Common
Stock equal to the Stated Value of each share of Series AA Preferred Stock plus accrued and unpaid
dividends thereon. The Series AA Preferred Stock is redeemable at the option of the Company at any
time, in whole or in part, at an amount equal to the Stated Value thereof plus accrued and unpaid
dividends thereon. The Series AA Preferred Stock is convertible into the Company’s other equity
securities. If the Series AA Preferred Stock has not been redeemed or repurchased by July 18, 2011, the
holders of at least 40% of the outstanding shares of Series AA Preferred Stock shall have the right to cause
all of the outstanding class of Series AA Preferred Stock to be converted into a number of shares of New
Common Stock equal to 99.9% of the number of fully diluted shares of New Common Stock after giving
effect to such conversion (excluding shares, if any, of New Common Stock issued to stockholders of the
other party to a merger qualifying for the “Merger Exception” as defined in our Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation).

Series M Preferred Stock  On February 20, 2007, the Company issued 8,000 shares of Series M
Preferred Stock to certain employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Plan. The Series M Preferred
Stock, participates in the enterprise value of the Company upon a “liquidation event” or upon an 80%
“redemption” of the shares of Series AA Preferred Stock or upon a public offering, to the extent the
proceeds exceed $224.8 million. A participant’s restricted Series M Preferred Stock vests monthly over a 36
month period beginning with the July 18, 2006 emergence from bankruptcy, or upon a liquidation event,
redemption, or public offering; or upon certain terminations of employment within a limited period before
an accelerated vesting event.
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Upon receiving their awards in February 2007, participants purchased their shares of Series M
Preferred Stock for $20 per share. The shares were issued for an aggregate purchase price of $160,000. At
that time, the fair market value of the shares of Series M Preferred Stock (as determined by an appraisal
by an independent appraisal firm), was $103 per share. Each participant made an election under
Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code to pay tax at that time on the $83 difference between those
amounts; and the Company paid a bonus of $138 per share (the tax-grossed-up amount of the $83
difference) to each participant to enable the participant to pay such taxes. If a participant’s employment
terminates, his restricted shares that are not vested are forfeited (that is, repurchased by the company for
the $20 per share that the participant paid for it). The Company may repurchase {other than from
Mr. Bevis) restricted shares that were vested upon termination. Repurchase is at fair market value as of
the date of termination if the repurchase occurs within 180 days of the termination of employment,
otherwise at fair market value as of the date of the repurchase. Fifty percent of the repurchase price may
be paid on a deferred basis in certain circumstances.

Dividends on the Series M Preferred Stock are paid only under certain circumstances, including
redemption of shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, described in the Certificate of Incorporation. If those
circumstances exist, dividends are required to be paid on the Series M Preferred Stock regardless of
whether full cumulative dividends on the Series AA Preferred Stock have been paid or declared and set
aside for payment.

Otherwise, upon a liquidation event or redemption of shares of Serics AA Preferred Stock, the
Series M Preferred Stock is redeemed for an amount equivatent to the participants’ share of the Stock
Plan’s 8% share of the proceeds in excess of the $224.8 million hurdle amount (subject to certain
adjustments). Upon a public offering the Series M Preferred Stock is converted to common stock.

Series A Preferred Stock  On July 18, 2006, shares of Series A Preferred Stock were exchanged for
shares of Series AA Preferred Stock. As of December 31, 2005, 140,973 shares were issued and designated
as Series A Preferred Stock. As a result of the mandatory redemption features, as of December 31, 2005,
the carrying value of the Series A Preferred Stock is net of $24.6 million unamortized discount due to
detachable warrants to purchase common stock. In addition, the preferred stock balance as of
December 31, 2005 includes $148.0 million for accrued dividends.

Series B Preferred Stock  Prior 10 emerging from bankruptcy, the Company had a 2004 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan pursuant to which it sold 720 shares of Series B Preferred Stock to its Chief Executive
Officer and certain other officers in private transactions at $162 per share. The Series B Preferred Stock
was cancelled pursuant to the plan of reorganization in the bankruptcy reorganization proceeding. As a
condition to participating in the Stock Plan and the Cash Plan, participants were required to relinquish
their rights under the 2004 Restricted Stock Plan.

12, Stock Option Plans

The Company formerly had a 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and a 2002 Stock Incentive Plan, both
providing for the grant of awards which included restricted stock and stock options. Subject to a limited
period to exercise options (which were not exercised by any named executive officer), all outstanding
options under those plans were cancelled pursuant to the Company’s Plan upon emergence from
bankruptcy.
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No options were granted under the 2002 plan. A summary of stock option activity under the 2000 plan
is as follows:

Option Weighted Average

Share Exercise Price
Outstanding at December 31,2003, ......... ... ... ool 45,012 407.25
Oranted . .. ... e i 3,850 483.13
Exercised. . ..ot e e e — —
Forfeitedorcancelled.......... .. ... ..o oot {17,394) 483.13
Qutstanding at December 31,2004, . ...... ... ... .ot 31,468 396.74
Granted. .. ... e e e e e — —
Exercised. . ... e e — —
Forfeited orcancelled, . ... ... ... ... ... ... (4,282) 483.13
Qutstanding at December 31,2005, .. ...... ..o i 27.186 357.67
Granted. .. . e e e e e — _
Exercised. . ... .. e e e e i i — —
Forfeited orcancelled. ..... ... ... .. it (27,186) 357.67

Exercisable at December 31,2006 ........... ...t — —

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Environmental Contingencies The Company’s operations are subject 1o extensive environmental laws
and regulations concerning emissions to the air, discharges to surface and subsurface waters, and the
generation, handling, storage, transportation, treatment, and disposal of waste materials, as adopted by
various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which it operates. The Company makes every
reasonable effort to remain in full compliance with existing governmental laws and regulations concerning
the environment.

Royalty Agreements  The Company has entered into royalty agreements (the “Royalty Agreements”)
for the right to use certain patents in the production of its Winwrap stretch film. The Royalty Agreements
require the Company to pay the patent holder a fee of $.05 for each pound of Winwrap produced and $.10
per pound for each pound of corcless Winwrap produced, In 2006, the Company purchased these patents
for $1.0 million. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company paid and
expensed royalties of $0.5 million, $1.7 million, and $1.6 million, respectively, under the Royalty
Agreements.

Litigation On January 3, 2006, Pliant and ten subsidiaries filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of
the Bankruptcy Code in the Bankruptcy Court. The cases are being jointly administered under the caption
“In re: Pliant Corporation, et al., Case No. 06-10001". Three of the Company’s subsidiaries with Canadian
operations commenced ancillary proceedings in a Canadian court to recognize the Chapter 11 proceedings
as “foreign proceedings”. The Company’s operations in Mexico, Germany, and Australia were not
included in the Chapter 11 filing.

On June 19, 2006, the Company filed the Plan with the Bankruptcy Court, which was approved by the
Bankruptcy Court on June 23, 2006. On July 18, 2006 the Company consummated its reorganization
through a series of transactions contemplated in the Plan and it filed with the Bankruptcy Court a notice
announcing the effectiveness of the Plan. See Note 2 for additional information.

As a consequence of the Company’s commencement of these bankruptey proceedings, substantially all
pending claims and litigation against it in the United States and Canada were automatically stayed
pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code and CCAA. These stays were lifted upon the Company’s emergence
from bankruptcy.
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On August 30, 2005, Tredegar Film Products Corp. filed a complaint against the Company, Case
No. 05 CH 14715 (Cook County, Illinois Circuit Court, Chancery Division). In this lawsuit, Tredegar seeks
compensatory damages in excess of $30,000 and $2 million in punitive damages against the Company for
alleged misappropriation and misuse of alleged Tredegar trade secrets related to the hiring by the
Company of two former Tredegar employees. On May 2, 2006, Tredegar filed a First Amended Verified
Complaint, which added several allegations but did not make any additional claims against the Company.
The case is in the discovery stage.

The Company is involved in ongoing litigation matters from time to time in the ordinary course of its
business. In our opinion, none of such litigation is material to its financial condition or results of
operations.

14. Operating Segments

Operating segments are components of the Company’s business for which separate financial
information is available that is evaluated regularly by its chief operating decision maker in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance. This information is reported on the basis that it is used
internally for evaluating segment performance.

In 2006, the Company reorganized its Specialty Products Group and separated it into two operating
segments, Specialty Films and Printed Products. In addition, the Company combined its prior Performance
Films segment with its Engineered Films segment. These changes were in response to a re-evaluation of
the Company’s aggregation criteria. The Company now has four operating segments; Specialty Films,
which manufactures personal care, medical and agricultural films, Printed Products which produces
printed rollstock, bags and sheets used to package food and consumer goods; Industrial Films segment
which manufactures stretch film used to bundle, unitize and protect palletized loads during shipping and
storage and PVC films used by supermarkets, delicatessens and restaurants to wrap meat, cheese and
produce; Engineered Films segment which manufactures film for sale to converters of flexible packaging
and a variety of barrier and customs film for smaller niche flexible packaging and industrial markets.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as those described in the surnmary of
significant accounting policies. Sales and transfers between our segments are eliminated in consolidation.
The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments based on net sales (excluding
intercompany sales) and segment profit. The segment profit reflects income from continuing operations
adjusted for interest expense, income taxes, depreciation, amortization, restructuring and other costs and
other non-cash charges (principally the impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and fixed assets). The
Company’s operating segments are managed separately with separate management teams, because each
segment has differing products, customer requirements, technology and marketing strategies.
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Segment profit and segment assets as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
are presented in the following table (in thousands). Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior
year amounts to be consistent with the 2006 presentation.

Specialty Printed Industrial Engineered Corporate/
Films Products Films Films Other Total
2006
Net sales to customers. . . .. $212,871 $230,953 $321,069 $385729 § 8373 §$1,158,995
Intersegment sales. . ...... 11,282 3,103 16,485 14,448 (45,318) —_—
Total netsales.......... 224,153 234,056 337,554 400,177 (36,945) 1,158,995
Depreciation and
amortization . ,......... 9,306 9,599 6,917 11,196 3,612 40,630
Interest expense .......... 16 5,341 412 1,815 72,344 79,928
Segment profit (loss). ..... 28,145 20,834 31,799 51,482 (28,289) 103,971
Segment total assets....... 150,483 140,624 107,634 198,076 80,940 677,757
Capital expenditures . ... .. 13,656 8,475 4,953 7,024 6,413 40,521
2005
Net sales to customers. . ... $195,210 $215,023 $306,984 $347911 § 7,712 $1,072,840
Intersegment sales........ 3,912 2,743 15,707 7,843 (30,205) —
Total netsales.......... 199,122 217,766 322,691 355,754 (22,493) 1,072,840
Depreciation and -
amortization . .......... 8,548 10,140 6,740 10,589 4,521 40,538
Interest expense .......... — 7,555 391 867 146,259 155,072
Segment profit (loss). .. ... 27,621 24,099 26,608 42922 (29,255) 91,995
Segment total assets. ...... 246,964 141,796 107,528 228,616 96,001 820,905
Capital expenditures . .. ... 9,828 7,909 3,397 7,472 4,896 33,502
2004
Net sales to customers. . . .. $183,826 $206,907 §$254,104 $317,111 $ 6,732 § 968,680
Intersegment sales........ 4,321 9,709 7,170 8,082 (29,282) —
Total netsales.......... 188,147 216,616 261,274 325,193 (22,550) 968,680
Depreciation and
amortization . .......... 8,373 10,559 5,395 10,451 6,273 41,051
Interest expense .......... — 4,467 29 659 140,523 145,678
Segment profit (loss). .. ... 32,961 15,995 26,245 49,004 (29,577 94,628
Segment total assets. .. .... 236,579 138,454 105,543 208,989 87.527 777,092
Capital expenditures . . . ... 2,507 7,945 8,113 3,151 2,374 24,090
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A reconciliation of the totals reported for the operating segments to the totals reported in the

consolidated financial statements is as follows (in thousands):

2005 2004

$ 91,995 $ 94,628
(40,538)  (41,051)
— (359)
(3,802) —
(2,436)  (2,108)
(155,072)  (145,678)

$(109,853) § (94,568)

$ 724,904 $ 689,565
96,001 87,527

2006
Profit or Loss
Total segment profit ...... ... ..o i $ 103,971
Depreciation and amortization .......................... ... (40,630
Impairment of fixed assets ........... . i i, (280)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets................. (109,984)
Reorganization Costs. ........oviiiii it (82,369)
Restructuring and othercosts .............. ... ... e 641
Interest eXpense . . ...t e (79,928)
Gain on extinguishment of debt .......... ... ... ... ... ... 393,665
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes .  $ 185,086
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments ........................ $ 596,817
Otherunallocated assets. . ... et i aes 80,940
Total consolidated assets ...............coviuiiiiinn.. $ 677,757

$ 820,905 $ 777,092

There were no sales to a single customer in 2006, 2005 or 2004 that was more than 10% of

consolidated net sales.

Net sales and long-lived assets of our US and foreign operations are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Net Sales
United States . ... oo iy $ 937,814 $ 868,875 $779.966
Foreign countries (1) ..................... 221,181 203,965 188,714
Total ... $1,158,995 $1,072,840 $968,680
Long-lived assets
United States .. ....ooviiiiiiiiiiininnnn 255,622 243,967
Foreign countries. . .............. ..., 48,821 51,026
Total ..o e $ 304,443 § 294,993
Total Assets
United States . ... ... oiiiiiiiiiinnns. 561,846 700,529
Foreigncountries. . ....................... 115,911 120,376
Total ..o $ 677,757 § 820,905

(1) Foreign countries include Australia, Canada, Germany and Mexico, none of which individually

represents 10% of consolidated net sales or long-lived assets.
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15. Warrants Qutstanding

The following warrants were issued and outstanding as of December 31:

2006 2005
Issued with the senior subordinated notes . .................coon. —_ 18,532
Issued in connection with recapitalization transaction . ............. — 43,242
Issued in connection with Uniplast acquisition .................... — 31,003
Issued in connection with the March 2003 Preferred Stock issuance. . —_ 43,062
Total outstanding ......... ... i e — 136,739

As of December 31, 2006, no warrants were outstanding or exercisable.

16. Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. In the
case of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable, the carrying amount is
considered a reasonable estimate of fair value. The fair value of fixed debt in 2006 and 2005 was obtained
from market quotes. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time. Because no market exists for
a significant portion of the Company’s financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments
regarding current economic conditions, risk characteristics of various financial instruments, interest rate
levels, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
judgment and therefore cannot be determined or relied on with any degree of certainty. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. See Note 7 for interest rate derivative information.

Below is a summary of the Company’s financial instruments’ carrying amounts and estimated fair
values as of December 31, (in thousands):

2006 2005
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Volae
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ............... $4,199 $4,199 $12,802 $12,802
Accountsreceivable. .. .. ... ... ... ... 137,042 137,042 133,268 133,268
Total financial assets.................. $141.241 $141,241 $146,070 $146,070
Financial liabilities:
Floating ratedebt. . ..................... $113,579 $113,579 $130,924 $130,924
Fixedratedebt...................... ... 624,052 597,059 850,771 710,335
Accountspayable. .......... ... ... ... 81,231 81,231 52,000 52,000
Total financial liabilities. . ............. $818,862 $791,869  $1,033,695 $893,259

17. Related-Party Transactions

As of March 13, 2007, J.P. Morgan Partners (BHCA), L.P. or its affiliates (“JP Morgan”) owned
approximately 50.09% of the Company’s outstanding New Common Stock, and 12.48% of its outstanding
Series AA preferred stock. CCMP Capital Advisors, LL.C, a private equity firm formed in August 2006 by
the former buyout/growth equity professionais of J.P. Morgan Partners, LLC, serves as an investment
advisor to JP Morgan as to its investment in the Company.

The Company entered into a Consulting Agreement with NB Consulting Group, LLC for a term of
one year, effective as of March 1, 2006, during which the NB Consulting Group will provide certain
consulting services to the Company, as described in that agreement. Nathalie Bevis, Principal and Chief
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Executive Officer of NB Consulting Group, is the spouse of Harold C. Bevis, the Company’s President and
Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the Agreement, NB Consulting Group will be paid $86.54/hour for
performance of such services, and will not receive more than $180,000 on an annual basis. As Principal and
Chief Executive Officer of NB Consulting Group, Mrs. Bevis derives benefit from this Agreement.

18. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) as of December 31, were as
follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Minimum pension liability, net of taxes of $840and $575 ..................... $ (9,726) $(11,213)
Foreign currency translation adjustments .. ..........oiiiiiiini ... (8,520) (8,378)
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) .. ...........c.co il $(18,246) $(19,591)

19. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statements

The following condensed consolidating financial statements present, in separate columns, financial
information for (i) Pliant (on a parent only basis) with its investment in its subsidiaries recorded under the
equity method, (ii) guarantor subsidiaries (as specified in the Indenture dated as of May 30, 2003, as
amended (the “2003 Indenture”) relating to the 2003 Notes, the First Supplemental Indenture with respect
to the Amended and Restated Indenture relating to the 2004 Notes and the Amended 2004 Notes and the
New Subordinated Notes Indenture relating to the New Subordinated Notes (the 2003 Indenture, the
Amended and Restated Indenture, as amended by the First Supplemental Indenture, and the New
Subordinated Notes Indenture, collectively, the “Indentures”)) on a combined basis, with any investments
in non-guarantor subsidiaries specified in the Indentures recorded under the equity method, (iii) direct
and indirect non-guarantor subsidiaries on a combined basis, (iv) the eliminations necessary to arrive at the
information for Pliant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, and (v) Pliant on a consolidated basis, in
each case as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
The 2003 Notes, the 2004 Notes, the Amended 2004 Notes and the New Subordinated Notes are fully and
unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several basis by each guarantor subsidiary and each guarantor
subsidiary is 100% owned, directly or indirectly, by Pliant , except that the 2003 Notes are not guaranteed
by Uniplast Industries Co. and the Amended 2004 Notes are not guaranteed by Pliant Solutions
Corporation (“Pliant Solutions™). Substantially all of the assets of Pliant Solutions were sold on
September 30, 2004 and the remainder disposed prior to December 31, 2005. There are no contractual
restrictions limiting transfers of cash from guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries to Pliant . The
condensed consolidating financial statements are presented herein, rather than separate financial
statements for each of the guarantor subsidiaries, because management believes that separate financial
statements relating to the guarantor subsidiaries are not material to investors.
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2006 (In Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents .. ......
Receivables.....................
Inventories .....................
Prepaid expenses and other . . ... ..
Income taxes receivable .. .. .. v
Deferred income taxes ...........
Total current assets . ...........
Plant and equipment, net ...........
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net ...............
Investment in subsidiaries...........
Otherassets. ......oiiiiieiiinnnn
Totalassets ..............ovun.

LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(DEFICIT)

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term
debt and debt in default ........
Trade accounts payable. .. ........
Accrued liabilities ...............
Due to (from) affiliates...........
Total current liabilities .. .......

Long-term debt, net of current
1) ¢ # (0] 1 TN A

Other liabilities. ... ................

Shares subject to mandatory
redemption .....................
Total liabilities .. ..............
Stockholders’ (deficit):
Preferred Stock. . ................
Commonstock ..................
Paidincapital ...................
Retained earnings (deficit)........
Stockholders’ notes receivable. . . . .
Accumulated other comprehensive
loss ..o
Total stockholders’ (deficit).........
Total liabilities and stockholders’
(deficit) ............. ... ...

Pliant Consolidated
Caorporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only _Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations _Corporation
$ 7 % 1,005 $ 3,187 $ — § 4199

108,907 8,131 23,439 — 140,477

83,007 6,703 10,393 —_— 100,103

3,698 445 3,136 — 7,279
(792) 1,443 347 — 998

13,452 2 300 — 13,754

208,279 17,729 40,802 -— 266,810

255,622 15,888 32,933 — 304,443

57,777 13,153 1,327 — 72,257

2,498 9,873 18 — 12,389

(17,932) — — 17,932 —

18,905 — 2,953 — 21,858
$ 525149 § 56,643 $ 78,033 $ 17932 § 677,757
$ 895 § — 3 80 3 — § 975

65,710 3,298 12,223 — 81,231

56,078 1,779 4,064 — 61,921

(90,702) 65,746 24,956 — —

31,981 70,823 41,323 — T 144,127

708,404 16,700 11,552 — 736,656

25,636 — 3,810 — 29,446

22,887 4,703 3,697 — 31,287

788,908 92,226 60,382 —_ 941,516

198,899 — — — 198,899

1 —_ 11,916 (11,916) 1

154,521 14,020 43,822 (57,842) 154,521

(598,934)  (51,983)  (30,812) 82,795  (598,934)
(18246) 2,380 (7,275) 4,895  (18,246)
(263,759) _(35,583) 17,651 17,932 (263,759)
$ 525149  § 56,643 $ 78,033 $ 17,932 § 677,757
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006 (In Thousands)

Netsales....................
Costofsales ................
Grossprofit...............
Total operating expenses .. ...
Operating income (loss) . . ..
Interestexpense .............
Gain on extinguishment
ofdebt ......... ...
Equity in earnings of
subsidiaries ...............
Other income (expense), net . .
Income (loss) from
continuing operations
before income taxes. .. ...
Income tax (benefit) expense. .
Income (loss) from continuing
Operations .. .......eeuunn.
Loss from discontinued
operations ................
Net income (loss)............

Pliant Consolidated
Corporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only Guarantors  Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Corporation
$ 983,335 $75,157 $146,024 $(45,521)  $1,158,995

861,272 69,604 132,416 (45,521) 1,017,771

122,063 5,553 13,608 —_ 141,224

261,700 3,036 7,281 — 272,017

(139,637) 2,517 6,327 — (130,793)
(72,594} (1,783) (5,551) — (79,928)
393,665 — — — 393,665

(5,105) . — 5,105 —
7,973 (3,612) (2,219) — 2,142
184,302 (2.878) (1,443) 5,105 185,086
(775) (80) 864 — 9

185,077 (2,798) (2,307) 5,105 185,077
$ 185,077 $(2,798) $ (2,307) $ 5,105 $ 185,077
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Feor the Year Ended December 31, 2006 {In Thousands)

Cash flows from continuing

Cash flows from continuing
investing activities:
Capital expenditures for plant
and equipment .............
Net fixed asset transfers .......
Proceeds from sale of assets. . ..
Net cash used in investing
activities. .........oooinin.
Cash flows from continuing
financing activities:
Payment of financing fees. .. ...
Repurchase of preferred stock .
Repayments of DIP revolver
due to refinancing ..........
Loans to/from affiliates........
Borrowing under revolver. .....
Payments of capital lease
obligations,net.............
Net cash provided by (used) in
continuing financing activities . .
Cash used in discontinued
Operations ...........oceevenn.
Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents . . .
Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents ..........
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year..........
Cash and cash equivalents at end
oftheyear...................

Pliant Consolidated
Corporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only  Guarantors  Non-Guarantors  Eliminalions Corporation
$ 58463 $ 2,290 $(1,186) $— $ 59,567

(36,133)  (2,208) (2,180) — (40,521)

1,037 (866) (171) — —

2,655 — 22 = 2,677

(32,441) (3,074) (2,329) = (37,844)

(8,799) — — — (8,799)

(76) — — — (76)

(91,524)  (39,400) — — (130,924)

(16,321) 22,700 {6,379) — —

89,500 16,700 7,379 — 113,579

(1,395) — (243) = (1,638)

(28,615) — 757 = (27,858)

(2,259) 636 (845) = (2,468)

(4,852) (148) (3,603) — (8,603)

4,859 1,153 6,790 — 12,802
$ 7 $ 1,005 $ 3,187 $=— $ 4,199
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
As of December 31, 2005 (In Thousands)

Pliant Consolidated
Corporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only  Guarantors Non-Goarantors Eliminations Corporation
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents............. 5 480 § 1,152 $ 6,790 $ — $ 12,802
Receivables......................... 106,735 10,137 20,812 _ 137,684
Inventories. . ..............coviennn.. 88,950 8,025 9,851 — 106,826
Prepaid expenses and other............ 4,903 892 1,427 _— 7,222
Income taxes receivable............... (701) 1,365 410 — 1,074
Deferred income taxes. ............... 12,360 —_— (936) —_ 11,424
Total currentassets ................ 217,107 21,571 38,354 —_ 277,032
Plant and equipment, net. . .............. 243,968 15,421 35,604 — 294,993
Goodwill ........ ... ... ..o 167,583 13,331 1,331 —_ 182,245
Intangible assets,net . .. ................ 3,829 10,853 37 —_ 14,719
Investment in subsidiaries . .............. (41,415) — — 41,415 —
Otherassets. . ... 49,251 — 2,665 — 51,916
Totalassets . ...................... $ 640,323 $ 61,176 $ 77,991 $ 41,415 § 820,905
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and
debtindefault..................... $ 933,795 $ 39,400 3 49 $ — $ 973,244
Trade accountspayable ............... 37,826 2,909 11,265 — 52,000
Accrued liabilities. ................... 78,100 3,267 3,837 -— 85,204
Due to (from) affiliates . .............. {105,150) 44,571 60,579 — —
Total current liabilities. ... .......... 944,571 90,147 75,730 — 1,110,448
Long-term debt, net of current portion . ... 4,100 _— 4,351 —_ 8,451
Other liabilities. ....................... 31,953 — 2,724 — 34,677
Deferred income taxes. . ................ 23,945 4,503 3,127 —_ 31,575
Shares subject to mandatory redemption. . . 270,689 — — — 270,689
Total liabilities .................... 1,275,258 94,650 85,932 — 1,455,840
Minority interest. . ......oooiiiiiiiia — — — - —_
Redeemable stock:
Preferredstock . ..................... 102 — —_ —_ 102
Commonstock ...................... 6,645 — — — 6,645
Total redeemable stock ............. 6,747 — — — 6,747
Stockholders’ (deficit):
Commonstock ...................... 103,376 14,020 29,302 (43,322) 103,376
Warrants to purchase common stock. . . . 39,133 -— — — 39,133
Retained earnings (deficit) ............ (763,940) (49,184) (29,596) 78,780 (763,940)
Stockholders’ notes receivable ......... (660) — — — (660)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss. . (19,591) 1,690 (7,647) 5,957 {19,591)
Total stockholders’ (deficit) ............. (641,682) (33,474) (7,941) 41,415 (641,682)
Total liabilities and stockholders’
(deficit) ..ot i, $ 640,323 $ 61,176 § 77,991 3 41415 $ 820,905
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 (In Thousands)

Pliant Consolidated
Corporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only Guarantors  Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Corporation
Netsales.................... $ 898,682 $70,118 $134,553 $(30,513)  $1,072,840
Costofsales ................ 780,857 64,662 124,703 (30,513) 939,709
Gross profit............... 117,825 5,456 9,850 — 133,131
Total operating expenses ... .. 78,711 4,451 8,832 — 91,994
Operating income ......... 39.114 1,005 1,018 — 41,137
Interest expense ............. (146,638) (831) (7,603) — (155,072)
Equity in earnings of
subsidiaries ............... (10,339) — — 10,339 —
Other income (expense), net . . 7,171 (4,127) 1,038 — 4,082
Income (loss) from
continuing operations
before income taxes. .. ... (110,692) (3,953) (5,547) 10,339 {109,853)
Income tax (benefit) expense . . 1,178 {6) 845 — 2,017
Income (loss) from continuing
operations . ............... (111,870) (3,947) (6,392) 10,339 (111,870)
Loss from discontinued
operations . ............... (1,096) — — — {1,096)
Net income (loss)............ $(112,966)  $(3,947) $ (6,392) $10,339  § (112,966)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005 (In Thousands)

Pliant Consolidated
Corporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only  Guarantors Non-Guarantors Eliminations Corporation

Cash flows from continuing operating

activities: . ... ... $(18,436) $(36,425) $(2,209) 5— $ (57,070}
Cash flows from continuing investing
activities:
Capital expenditures for plant and
equipment . . ... (30,298) (1,020) (2,184) — (33,502)
Proceeds from sale of assets. ....... 58 605 4,527 — 5,190
Net cash provided by (used
in) investing activities ........... {(30,240) (415) 2,343 — (28,312)
Cash flows from continuing financing
activities:
Payment of capitalized fees ........ (12,130} — — — (12,130}
Repurchase of preferred stock .. ... (12) — — — (12)
Borrowing under revalver.......... 67,524 39,400 — — 106,924
Payments of capital lease
obligations .................... (2,048) — — = (2,048)
Net cash provided by continuing
financing activities . ............... 53,334 39,400 —_ = 92,734
Cash used in discontinued operations . (195) — — = (195)
Effect of exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents,......... 396 (2,111 1,780 — 65
Net (decreasc)/increase in cash and
cashequivalents................... 4,859 449 1,914 — 7,222
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year.............. — 704 4,876 — 5,580
Cash and cash equivalents at end of
theyear ..............ooiiiina $ 4859 § 1,153 $ 6,790 $— $ 12,802
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004 (In Thousands)

Netsales....................
Costofsales ................
Grossprofit...............
Total operating expenses . .. ..
Operating income (loss} . ...
Interest expense .. ...........

Equity in earnings of

subsidiaries . ..............
Other income (expense), net . .

Income (loss) from
continuing operations

before income taxes......
Income tax (benefit) expense. .

Loss from continuing

operations .. ..............

Loss from discontinued

operations . ......... ... ...
Net income (loss)............

Pliant

Consolidated

Corporation Combined Combined Pliant

Parent Only Guarantors Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Corporation
$ 796,794 $ 75,931 $125,335 $(29,380) $ 968,680
671,297 66,431 118,471 (29,380) 826,819
125,497 9,500 6,864 — 141,861
76,869 4,026 9,119 — 90,014
48,628 5,474 (2,255) — 51,847
(140,566) (646) (4,466) — (145,678)
(30,004) — — 30,004 —
8,139 (3,278) (5,598) — (737)
(113,803) 1,550 (12,319) 30,004 (94,568)
119 867 603 — 1,589
(113,922) 683 (12,922) 30,004 (96,157)
—  (17,765) — — (17,765)
$(113,922)  $(17,082) $(12,922) $ 30,004 $(113,922)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004 (In Thousands)

Pliant Consolidated
Corporation Combined Combined Pliant
Parent Only Guarantors Non-Guarantors  Eliminations Corporation
Cash flows from continuing
operating activities: . ............ $ (35311) § 3,305 $ 30,562 $— $ (1444
Cash flows from continuing investing
activities:
Capital expenditures for plant and
equipment................... (17,086) (517) (6,487) — (24,090)
Proceeds from sale of assets...... 6,450 —_ — = 6,450
Net cash used in investing
activities..................... {10,636) (517) (6,487) = (17,640)

Cash flows from continuing
financing activities:

Payment of capitalized fees ...... (9,864) — — — (9,864)
Net proceeds from issuance of

preferredstock............... 117 — — — 117
Proceeds from issuance of

senior discount notes.......... 225,299 — — — 225,299
Borrowings/(payments) on

long-termdebt ............... (165,922) — (24,163) - (190,085)

Net cash provided by (used) in
continuing financing

activities. . ...... .. ... ... ..., 49,630 — - (24,163) e 25,467

Cash used in discontinued

operations . ....... ... .iheii., (3,952) (892) — = (4,843)
Effect of exchange rate changes on :

cash and cash equivalents........ 269 (2,384) 2,848 — 733
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ]

cash equivalents ................ — (488) 2,760 — 2,272
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year............ — 1,192 2,116 = 3,308
Cash and cash equivalents at end of

theyear ............cooeivnnn. $ — § 704 $ 4,876 $— $ 5,580

20. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes a gain of $1.9 million on the sale of
remaining real estate in the Company’s Merced, California facility and $0.3 million of other less
significant items.

Other income for the year ended December 31, 2005 includes a $4.1 million gain in sale of the
Company’s Alliant business. Other expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 includes $1.3 million
loss on the sale of real property, $0.1 million currency gain, and $0.5 million other less significant items.
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21. SELECTED QUARTERLY INFORMATION-UNAUDITED

Selected quarterly financial information for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as
follows (in thousands):

Quarter Ended
December 31, 2006  September 30, 2006  June 30,2006  March 31, 2006

NetSales ................oit. § 278,909 $293,357 $289,073 $297,656
Grossprofit...................... 35,919 34,001 36,955 34,349
Net income/{loss). ...........oout (117,539) 377,412 (13,989) (60,807)
Quarter Ended
December 31, 2005 September 30, 2005 June 30, 2005 March 31, 2005
NetSales ............. ...t $288,733 $261,973 $259,246 $262,888
Grossprofit........... ... ... 33,774 32,472 32,935 33,950
Net income/(loss)................. (35,986) (25,421) {26,131) (25,428)

22. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 30, 2004, the Company sold substantially all of the assets of its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Pliant Solutions Corporation {(“Pliant Solution”) which was previously reported as a separate
operating segment, and manufactured decorative and surface coverings through the conversion of various
films into consumer packaged goods. These products were sold through retailers to consumers for a wide
range of applications, including shelf-lining, decorative accents, glass coverings, surface repair, resurfacing
and arts and crafts projects.

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets, Pliant
Solutions was accounted for as a discontinued operation and, accordingly, its operating results are
segmented and reported as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of
operations. Net sales for the nine months ended December 31, 2004 were $22.5 million. No tax benefits
were recorded on the losses from discontinued operations or on the $10.4 million loss on sale of assets as
realization of these tax benefits is not certain.

22. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Issuance of Series M Preferred Stock

On February 20, 2007, the Company issued 8,000 shares of Series M Preferred Stock to certain
employees pursuant to the Company’s Stock Plan. The Series M Preferred Stock, participates in the
enterprise value of the Company upon a “liquidation event” or upon an 80% “redemption” of the shares of
Series AA Preferred Stock or upon a public offering, to the extent the proceeds exceed $224.8 million. A
participant’s restricted Series M Preferred Stock vests monthly over a 36 month period beginning with the
July 18, 2006 emergence from bankruptcy, or upen a liquidation event, redemption, or public offering; or
upon certain terminations of employment within a limited period before an accelerated vesting event.

Upon receiving their awards in February 2007, participants purchased their shares of Series M
Preferred Stock for $20 per share. The shares were issued for an aggregate purchase price of $160,000. At
that time, the fair market value of the shares of Series M Preferred Stock (as determined by an appraisal
by an independent appraisal firm), was $103 per share. Each participant made an election under
Section 83(b) of the Internal Revenue Code to pay tax at that time on the $83 difference between those
amounts; and the Company paid a bonus of $138 per share (the tax-grossed-up amount of the $83
difference) to each participant to enable the participant to pay such taxes. If a participant’s employment
terminates, his restricted shares that are not vested are forfeited (that is, repurchased by the company for
the $20 per share that the participant paid for it). The Company may repurchase (other than from
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Mr. Bevis) restricted shares that were vested upon termination. Repurchase is at fair market value as of
the date of termination if the repurchase occurs within 180 days of the termination of employment,
otherwise at fair market value as of the date of the repurchase. Fifty percent of the repurchase price may
be paid on a deferred basis in certain circumstances.

Otherwise, upon a liquidation event or redemption of shares of Series AA Preferred Stock, the
Series M Preferred Stock is redeemed for an amount equivalent to the participants’ share of the Stock
Plan’s 8% share of the proceeds in excess of the $224.8 hurdle amount (subject to certain adjustments).
Upon a public offering the Series M Preferred Stock is converted to common stock.

Canadian Restructuring

On February 20, 2007 the Company’s Board of Directors approved management’s proposed plan to
close the Company’s plant in Langley, British Columbia and converting/distribution operations in Barrie,
Ontario and integrate their assets into existing manufacturing facilities. The Company plans to discontinue
all manufacturing in Langley by the end of the third quarter of 2007. Barrie’s operations are planned to
ceasc by the end of the second quarter of 2007 with the equipment and inventory relocated concurrently.
The Company currently estimates the restructuring costs associated with these closures to be
approximately $10 million, with approximately $4.5 million related to equipment relocation and $5.5
million associated with one-time employee severance and other related costs.
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PLIANT CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULEII
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(In Thousands)
Balance at Additions Foreign Balance
Beginning Charged to Currency at End
Description of Year Profit & Lass Write-offs Impact of Year
ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
ACCOUNTS:
2006 ... $5,672 $ 404  $(2346) $21  $3,751
2005 ..o $4,489 $2,608  $(1,413)  $(12) $5,672
2008 .. $4,736 $1,600  $(1,878)  $31  $4,489
{Reductions From) Additions to
Balance at Additions Other Additions Balance
Beginning to Continuing Comprehensive to Discontinued at End
of Year Operations Income Operations of Year
INCOME TAX VALUATION
ALLOWANCE:
2006 ... $94.516 $(64,303) $3,092 $ — $33,305
2005 ...l $69,693 $ 24,396 $ — $ 427 $94.516
2004 ... $44 484 $ 18,282 $ — $6,927 $69,693
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Company, as Second Priority Notcholder Agent and as 2004 Noteholder Agent, and Pliant
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 26, 2004).

Restricted Stock Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2000, between Pliant Corporation and
Jack E. Knott (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form $-4 (File No. 333-42008)).

Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2000, in favor of Pliant Corporation made by Jack E.
Knott (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-42008)).

Amendment No, 1, dated as of April 1, 2001, to the Pledge Agreement dated as of May 31,
2000, among Pliant Corporation and Jack E. Knott (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36
to Post-Effective Amendment No. 2 to Pliant Corporation’s Registration Statement on

Form S-4 (File No. 333-42008)).

Release Agreement, dated December 31, 2004, between Pliant Corporation and Brian Johnson
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.62 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Letter Agreement, dated January 26, 2005, between Pliant Corporation and James Ide
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.63 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Severance and Release Agreement, dated as of March 18, 2005, between Pliant Corporation
and Lori Roberts (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Pliant Corporation 2004 Management Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.65 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).
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Pliant Corporation 2004 MIP Long Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.66 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Fourth Amendment to the Pliant Corporation Defined Benefit Pension Plan (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.69 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Buy Out Agreement, dated January 5, 2005, among Pliant Corporation, Pliant Investment, Inc.
and Supreme Plastics Group PLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.70 to Pliant
Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on
March 31, 2005).

Assignment of Limited Liability Company Interests, dated January 5, 2005, between Pliant
Investment, Inc. and Supreme Plastics Group PLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.71
to Pliant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004
filed on March 31, 2005).

Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Assets, dated July 12, 2004, among Pliant Corporation,
Pliant Solutions Corporation and Kittrich Corporation (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Pliant Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 6, 2004).

Management Incentive Compensation Plan, effective as of January 1, 2005, between Pliant
Corporation and certain eligible officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pliant
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2005).

Severance and Release Agreement, effective as of March 18, 2005, between Pliant Corporation
and Lori Roberts (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.64 to Pliant Corporation’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed on March 31, 2005).

Employment Agrecment, dated June 10, 2005, between Pliant Corporation and R. David Corey
{(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Pliant Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed by on June 9, 2005).

Working Capital Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Pliant Corporation,
certain subsidiaries of Pliant Corporation, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA,
as administrative agent, and Merrill Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger
and book manager (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly
Report on 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Fixed Asset Credit Agreement, dated as of July 18, 2006, among Pliant Corporation Pty Ltd.,
Pliant Corporation of Canada Ltd., Pliant Film Products GmbH, Aspen Industrial, S.A. de
C.V,, the lenders party thereto, Merrill Lynch Bank USA, as administrative agent, and Merrill
Lynch Commercial Finance Corp., as sole lead arranger and book manager (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly Report on 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Pliant Corporation 2006 Restricted Stock Incentive Plan, dated as of July 18, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly Report on 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Pliant Corporation Deferred Cash Incentive Plan adopted as of July 18, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Pliant Corporation’s Quarterly Report on 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006 filed November 14, 2006).

Employment Agreement, dated December 21, 2006, by and between Pliant Corporation and
Harold C. Bevis (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10 to the Current Report on Form 8-K
filed by Pliant Corporation on December 22, 2006).
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Subsidiaries of Pliant Corporation.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a}.
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.5.C, Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Harold C. Bevis, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-X for the year ended December 31, 2006 of Pliant
Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2007 /s{ HAROLD C. BEVIS
Harold C. Bevis
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Joseph J. Kwederis, certify that:

1. T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 of Pliant
Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annuval report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
annual report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disctosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal
quarter) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) Allsignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability
to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financiai reporting.

Date: March 30, 2007 /5/ JOSEPH J, KWEDERIS
Joseph J. Kwederis
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.8.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Pliant Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), 1,
Harold C. Bevis, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to §306 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

March 30, 2007 . /sf HAROLD C. BEVIS
Harold C. Bevis
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Pliant Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I,
Joseph J. Kwederis, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as
adopted pursuant to §906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and )

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

March 30, 2007 /s{ JOSEPH J. KWEDERIS
Joseph J. Kwederis
Chief Financial Officer
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